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ABOUT THE INTEGRATED REPORT
Statutory Annual Reporting Process
The Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) (56 of 2003) and the Municipal Structures Act Section 46 require
City Power Johannesburg, as a municipal entity of the City of Johannesburg to prepare an annual report for each
financial year. This Integrated Annual Report is a complete reporting version as required by the Acts, National
Treasury Guidelines, and City of Johannesburg internal guidelines and integrated reporting best practice. The
report is structured as follows:
• About the Integrated Report
• Leadership and Corporate Profile
• Governance
• Service Delivery Performance
• Human Resources and Organisational Management
• Financial performance
• Auditor-General Findings
• Annexures
This report presents Johannesburg City Power’s 2016/17 Integrated Annual Report for the period 1 July 2016 to
30 June 2017.
Referencing Content Online
The City Power’s 2016/17 Integrated Annual Report is available on the City Power website as a downloadable
document: www.citypower.co.za and on the parent Company site www.joburg.org.za.
Scope and Boundary of the Integrated Report
The Integrated Annual Report of City Power for the 12 months as at 30 June 2017 provides a review of the
financial, social, environmental and governance performance of City Power. Through the use of an integrated
reporting format, and application of globally recognised governance and sustainability reporting frameworks, this
report aims to offer stakeholders a clear view of how City Power strategy, governance, performance and prospects
– in the context of its external environment – lead to the creation of value over the short, medium and long term.
The boundary of this report is limited to financial and non-financial performance reporting as it relates to City
Power during the 2016/17 financial year. The integrity of the integrated annual report was overseen by the Board
of Directors in conjunction with its Committees. This was achieved by setting up appropriate teams, structures
and processes to undertake the integrated reporting process and then performing a thorough review of the resulting document. The Board of City Power approved this Integrated Report on the 30th of November 2017.
Reporting Philosophy
Integrated Approach to Reporting
City Power subscribes to Integrated Annual Reporting. As such, the report aims to reflect its commitment to a
measured and integrated approach to its strategy and operational practices, as well as the reporting of its economic, social and environmental impacts.
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Aligning with Leading Practice Frameworks
City Power compiled this report using stakeholder feedback, as well as the input of reporting professionals and
its own internal review process. The reporting structure allows the Company to meet the requirements of the
Municipal Finance Management Act, Municipal Structures Act, National Treasury and City of Johannesburg
Guidelines, as well as, as far as possible, the guidelines provided by the International Integrated Reporting Council
(IIRC) and the reporting priorities outlined in the King Code of Governance for South Africa.
Key Features of this Report
Key features of this year’s report include:
• Illustrating how City Power derives “material issues” and how they inform Company strategy;
• Introducing a diagrammatic representation of Company’s sustainability-driven business model to demonstrate
the visible links between strategy and sustainability priorities;
• Harnessing the principle of ‘materiality’ to inform report content;
• Linking, as far as possible, City Power’s material risks to strategy and material issues, as well as providing
mitigation activities to manage risk exposure;
• Presenting a high-level diagrammatical representation of the linkages between the Company’s business model,
operational structure, strategic objectives, capital inputs and business outcomes to demonstrate the connectivity
between strategy, operations and performance.
Assurance
Assurance on the Integrated Annual Report was facilitated through engagements with City Power Audit Committee and the City Power Board. The City, through the Municipal Public Accounts Committee, will consider this
report as part of Council’s oversight process between February and March 2017. City Power Integrated Annual
Report will be subjected to the City’s annual reporting oversight and monitoring framework. The Auditor-General
(South Africa) has also audited the Company’s performance. City Power will continue to refine its approach to
integrated reporting in future annual reports to further align with international reporting standards and to promote
consistency, accessibility and accountability with respect to its multi-faceted role in creating and sustaining value
for all citizens of Johannesburg.
Approval of the Integrated Report
The City Power Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the 2016/17 Integrated Annual
Report. The Board confirms having collectively reviewed the content of the Report and agree that it addresses
issues that are material and that it provides a fair representation of the integrated performance of City Power for
the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017.
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CHAPTER ONE: LEADERSHIP & CORPORATE PROFILE
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Foreword: Member of the Mayoral Committee for Environment and Infrastructure
Services Department, Councillor Nico de Jager

The 2016-2017 financial year was a challenging year as only 46% of the service delivery
targets were met.
Budget cuts meant that available resources were stretched with service delivery City
Power continues to contribute to community development through development and upgrading of the electricity network and maintenance of the infrastructure. In 2016-2017 financial year the entity spent a capital budget of R1,8 billion. City Power created over 4
504 EPWP jobs and 4 850 new houses were electrified. A number of 2 961 new public
lights were installed that brings the total of public lights to more than 270 000 in the city.
New Non-Executive Directors and Independent Audit Committee Members were appointed. They will provide
leadership as stipulated by the Companies Act 71 of 2008, until the end of 2017-2018 financial year.
City Power plays an important role in the Growth and Development Strategy 2040 (GDS) of the City by improving quality of life and development driven resilience for all. City Power also provide a resilient, liveable,
sustainable urban environment underpinned by infrastructure supportive of a low-carbon economy. (See p.28)
Different methods were used to improve public participation and accountability: like the Customer query resolution
in Vorna Valley, educational campaigns were undertaken in Rabie Ridge, Pennyville, Kanana and Alexandra to
educate customers on pre-paid meters, illegal connections, energy efficiency, electricity safety, as well as theft
and vandalism. Another stakeholder engagement has been with respect to Streetlights, where we engaged with
Councillors. Media Coverage also plays an integrated part of engagement with the community.

I see the major future challenges as the following:






The business as usual model is increasingly stressed. Renewable energy will become more pervasive,
especially if storage becomes cheaper. City Power must examine its future strategy in order to sweat its
assets and adapt to the changes coming.
Related to this is the pressure on revenue and the operating margin. For this reason it is essential to focus
with vigour on technical and commercial losses in the system.
They need to provide a service to the informal settlements. At present residents of these settlements
connect illegally. This places the grid under load pressure which causes outages in these settlements and
in neighbouring formal townships. This in turn means that City Power has to undertake expensive repairs
and maintenance and has to provide emergency generators at great cost. The model is unsustainable
and will not be solved by the provision of conventional electrification. We simply do not have the time and
budget for this. So, we have to imagine a new way forward and we will be applying our minds on this.
The interface with our customers’ needs improvement. We hope that efforts to improve the billing and
customer relations management systems in the City will bear dividends. However, City Power must do
everything in its power to improve communication with its customers, although significant strides have
been made in this area.

________________________
Cllr Nico de Jager
Member of the Mayoral Committee
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Foreword: Chairperson of the Board of City Power, Ms. Lael Bethlehem
I am pleased to present City Power’s Annual Integrated Report for the financial year
ended 30 June 2017.
The current City Power Board was appointed in March 2017. We appreciate the role of
the previous Board in leading the Company for most of the period under review.
City Power has obtained an unqualified audit opinion in respect of financial performance.
It is with regret that we note that the Company obtained a qualified audit on its predetermined objectives for the year under review. We have tasked Management to take urgent
steps to address this matter and to ensure that it would not re-occur. It has been a challenging year. The Company
faces four main challenges:
-

Ageing infrastructure which leads to frequent interruptions to electricity supply
An unreliable and fragmented system of revenue management
Theft of electricity cables and other network elements
Insufficient infrastructure for the delivery and metering of electricity in informal areas

We note that the billing of City Power customers is currently managed by the CoJ’s Revenue and Customer
Relationship Management department. City Power, with the support of the CoJ, is working to improve these services.
The entity has also faced serious management challenges and had an acting CEO for almost half of the period
under review.
At the same time we recognise the efforts of many managers and staff at City Power who work tirelessly to keep
the lights on. I also take this opportunity to thank the City of Johannesburg, my fellow Board Members and
Management for their commitment to overcoming the challenges we face.
We are committed to making sustained improvements in the delivery of electricity to the City’s households and
businesses and we look forward to co-operating with many stakeholders in this regard.
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Foreword: Chief Executive Officer of City Power, Mr. Lerato Setshedi
City Power is accountable for providing electricity services to all its customers. As the electricity distribution service provider of the City of Johannesburg, City Power’s core competency is to purchase, distribute and sell electricity within its geographical footprint.
City Power is accountable to provide network services to all its customers, which include:
the purchasing and distribution and sale of electricity, constructing networks, connecting customers, repair and maintenance of networks and installation and maintenance of public lighting.
City Power does not share any powers with other entities, as we report directly to the shareholder.
City Power is committed to meeting the existing and future energy needs of our customers. To succeed over
the long term, we know that we must ensure good governance, operational excellence and financial sustainability. 2016/17 has been a challenging year for City Power. This year’s Auditor General Audit Report highlighted the need to tackle the governance, reputational and sustainability challenges head-on through detailed
turnaround plans and approaches that vigilantly pursue and seek improvement opportunities to move forward.
In 2016/2017 financial year, City Power achieved an unqualified audit opinion. This is the same as the prior
year audit result. However, we strive to have a clean audit environment. The Company however obtained a
qualified audit on its predetermined objectives for the year under review, which is a deterioration from the
previous results.
Good Governance
Given the Forensic Investigation reports that were triggered by alleged corruption activities by senior officials in
the organization and also the audit findings for this reporting period, it is crystal that we need to elevate
strengthening internal controls as a matter of urgency. We also echo the sentiment of the Shareholder and the
Board in our commitment to the zero tolerance stance against fraud and corruption. As Management, we will
ensure effective consequence management and corrective measures. To support our commitment to strengthen
governance, we are going to review our policies, operating procedures, and systems controls to enable a risk
and data intelligent organization. The role of analytics cannot be over emphasized. We still find ourselves with
manual reporting systems that compromised the integrity of our reports. Efforts are underway to automate and
capacitate our performance assurance function to ensure valid, accurate and complete records.
Steady Financial Performance
The financial strength of an organisation is the bedrock of its strategy delivery. 2016/17 was also a challenging
year from a budget cut perspective. It was a year that demanded generating reliable, predictable cash flows as
fundamental to our ability to fund our projects and initiatives necessary to achieve long-term sustainability. We
have collected R16bn, however there is a more to be done. We need to improve our billing accuracy and collection rate, thereby building customer confidence that will translate to cash in the bank. In 2016/17 our operating
expenses also increased which resulted in a much lower profit than expected. Revenue centricity and cost containment efforts need to be strengthened.
Commitment to Sustainable Energy Infrastructure and Reliable Operations
Our performance in 2016/17 indicates an urgent need to address network system capacity and reliability needs.
The pursuit of operational excellence demands we strive to maintain a reliable network that meets NRS compliance requirements. We aim to reduce the number of outages through preventative maintenance going forward.
We have undertaken a number of initiatives and programs that benefit the environment and our customers. Our
view is that renewable energy and suitable infrastructure is a must.
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Investing in Our Community
It is integral to our sense of purpose as an organisation to make sure that what we do has a positive impact in
our community. Our community stewardship in 2016/17 was visible in terms of EPWP jobs created as well as
houses electrified. There is a need to strengthen our stakeholder relations to drive a sense of shared responsibility as we address theft, vandalism and illegal connections. This is crucial as we are also committed to the
safety of our customers and the communities we serve.

Looking Forward
It starts with the Leadership. It is therefore our organisation’s imperative to develop leaders at all levels who reinforce confidence in the future and are branded by the distinctiveness of their competence. The journey to a reenergised, refocused and ethical organisation that keeps the LIGHTS ON has begun. We view workplace culture and positive morale as a catalyst for organsational excellence. As City Power, we commit to turning around
the situation through our revised customer experience methodologies, the determination of our people, and a
deeply embedded focus on operational excellence. In summary, I believe it has been a year that we can build
on and improve further.
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Chief Financial Officer’s Report: Mr. Quentin Green
Financial Review
This review sets out the overall summarised operating results for the Company in comparison with the approved budget. The statement of financial performance reflects a
summary of income and expenditure. Full details appear in the annual financial statements.
Overview of Entity Results
The Company has experienced financial challenges during the year resulting in a much lower profit than expected.
The Company economic resilience has been managed through growth strategies and complemented by costcontainment initiatives to take strides in delivering on its mandate to govern and provide basic infrastructure and
services across the spectrum of its communities.
Over the past year, revenue increased by 7,3% to R15,7 billion while operating expenses increased by 13% to
R15,8 billion.
The Entity reported a net operating surplus of R183 million (2016: R500 million) against a budgeted surplus of
R1 596 million.

Three Year financial
information

2015/2016
Audited
R'000

2016/2017
2016/2017 Actual Budget
R'000
R'000

2017/2018
Budget
R'000

Revenue

14 662 652

15 726 508

17 597 380

17 091 085

Expenditure

13 943 542

15 762 593

15 614 073

14 938 679

Taxation

218 832

-219 218

387 481

366 320

Surplus/(Deficit)

500 278

183 133

1 595 826

1 786 086

1 523 729

1 813 872

1 939 397

1 328 178

Capital expenditure
Operating Revenue

The major revenue streams that supported the Entity’s programmes and activities were:
• Service charges which are made up of:
– Electricity sales;
– Sales to Eskom
• Other;
• Government grants and subsidies; and
• Interest revenue.
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Service Charges represents 96% of the revenue and consist of the following:
 Electricity Sales
 Sales to Eskom
 New Connections
Operating Expenditure
The following graph indicates the main categories of expenditure for the year under review. The proactive management control and containment of cost increases remain a key priority for the Entity.
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The main contributor to expenditure is Bulk Purchases that includes purchases from Eskom and Kelvin.

Capital Expenditure
The capital expenditure for the financial year under review amounted to R1,8 billion.
Capital commitments as at 30 June 2017 amounted to R1.3 billion (2016: R1,4 billion).

Key Financial Indicators

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

R’000

R’000

R’000

Total assets

17,819 130

17,272,132

16,,497,991

Total equity

7,538 073

7,354,940

7,363,829

Total equity and liabilities

17,819 130

17,272,132

16,,497,991

Short-term loan to shareholder

117,720

1,699,824

1,331,603

Bank balances

15,655

4,126

525,599

Capital expenditure

(1,813,872)

(1,523,729)

(2,451,126)

Revenue

15,156 259

14,233,743

13,540,386

Grant and subsidies

275 287

108,583

185,821

Direct cost

(10,588,851)

(9,779,048)

(8,933,188)

Employee costs

(962,661)

(923,822)

(879,170)

Finance income

76,637

145,877

144,051

Finance costs

(431 575)

(389,608)

(317,196)

Surplus before tax

(36 085)

719,110

653,834

Income tax expense – deferred

(219 218)

(218,832)

(229,382)

Surplus for the year

183 133

500,278

424,452

Net cash from operating activities

316 256

1,536,158

1,404,646

Net cash used in investing activities

(150 296)

( 2 287,156)

(1,458,768)

Net cash from financing activities

(153 794)

231,189

577,390

Financial Ratios

Benchmark

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

R’000

R’000

R’000

Liquidity (Current assets/Current liabilities)

1:1

0.69:1

0.85:1

1.11:1

Solvency (Non-Current Assets/Non-Current liabilities)

2:1

3.02:1

2.66:1

2.43:1

31.3%

26.52%

26.81%

2.7

2.8

2.5

Total operating expenditure/revenue
Capital cost

6-8%

Liquidity is below the norm and it means that the Entity would be unable to pay all its current or short-term obligations if they fall due at any specific point. If current liabilities exceed current assets, it highlights serious financial challenges and likely liquidity problems, i.e., insufficient cash to meet short-term financial obligations.
Solvency ratio exceeds the norm and the entity will be able to meet the long term debt.
Capital cost is below the norm and therefore any new borrowings should be limited.
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Comparison with other Metro
Financial Ratio

Tshwane

City
Power

Liquidity

7,73

0,69

Solvency

1,8

3,02

Cost cover

0,5

2,7

Financial Assistance
City Power obtains financial assistance via grants from government.
Sustainability Risks
The Board acknowledges its overall accountability for ensuring an effective results-driven integrated risk management process. Exco has implemented a risk control system to enable management to respond appropriately to significant risks that could impact negatively or positively on business objectives. Risk reviews are
conducted with input from divisional and functional areas. Risks are identified and ranked by divisions and
groups, reviewed, and then assessed by Exco, the Audit Committee, and the Board to determine the major
operational, strategic and business continuity risks.
The ratings of the risks are finalized after considering the mitigation plans, and executive accountability is
assigned for each of the risks.

Expression of Appreciation
A special word of gratitude goes to the accounting staff for their contribution, and to the staff of the Auditor-General for conducting the external audit and for their assistance, support and cooperation during the year.
Finally, a further word of thanks to everybody for the hard work, sacrifices and concerted effort throughout the
year to enable the Entity to finalise these annual financial statements within the prescribed period.
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Company’s Secretary’s Certification
In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act, I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the
Company has lodged with the Commissioner all such returns and notices as required by the Act and that all such
returns and notices are true, correct and up to date.

Extra-large transformer at Sebenza sub station

17 | P a g e

Corporate Profile / Overview of the entity
City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Ltd (City Power) is accountable for providing electricity services to all its
customers. As the electricity distribution service provider of the City of Johannesburg, City Power’s core competency is to purchase, distribute and sell electricity within its geographical footprint.
City Power was established in 2000 as an independent municipal entity, wholly owned by the City of Johannesburg. The National Energy Regulator of South Africa (NERSA) granted City Power a license to trade on
19 December 2001. Today, City Power has approximately 414 000 customers; ranging from domestic to
commercial and industrial properties.
The City, by means of a Service Delivery Agreement, regulates the service provided by City Power in respect
of financial issues (such as tariffs and capital expenditure), human resource issues (such as skills development), delivery targets (maintenance of assets and addressing assets) and standards of customer care.
City Power is accountable to provide network services to all its customers, which include:
 The purchasing and distribution and sale of electricity
 Constructing networks
 Connecting customers
 Repair and maintenance of networks
 Installation and maintenance of public lighting.
City Power is not the sole provider of electricity services for the City. The areas not covered by City Power
(predominantly Soweto and Sandton), are serviced by Eskom.
City Power is currently reviewing its business model, moving towards being an energy company. The drive
for the change is:
• Increasing and securing the supply of energy
• Acquiring electricity from renewable and alternative sources
• Reducing greenhouse gas emissions
• Strategic use of a mix of technologies and energy sources to achieve goals
The above have to be done whilst:
• Reducing the burden of cost on the consumer
• Balancing the financial sustainability of the business, delivery of services and Shareholder goals
• Moving to the “Smart City” concept via a Smart Grid and integration with other City initiatives (e.g.
transport)
City Power is committed to the City’s long-term aspirations of a resilient, sustainable and liveable Johannesburg
by 2040. The Company contributes to this aspiration through quality service delivery provision of an electricity
network that guarantee sustainable living and by providing enabling support that drives economic growth. City
Power promotes optimal management of the City’s electricity network and encourages careful consideration for
the environment. The Company bases this on a strong commitment to sound financial management and governance.
City Power is well positioned to achieve sound financial management, efficient systems and processes, pursuit
of sustainable additional revenue streams and capital efficiency. This, City Power, does through engaging all
relevant stakeholders and responding to stakeholder needs with a productive workforce. City Power achieves
this while maintaining an electricity network functioning within the City.
Defining Material Issues
City Power periodically reviews its material issues against the changing context of the operating environment,
and their relative significance to its business and to the Company’s stakeholders. The Company has therefore
determined the relevance of issues to address and report on, mindful of their significance to both the business
and its stakeholders.
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Understanding and prioritising the issues that matter to the business and its stakeholders enable the Company
to address the right issues and report on them effectively. This allows the Company to evolve its strategy and
tailor its reporting so it is aligned with the interests and needs of the Company’s stakeholders, as well as those
of the Company.
City Power defines issues to be material to its business in terms of:
• The degree to which an issue is aligned with the Company’s vision and purpose, brand portfolio and
geographic location;
• The potential impact of the issue on the Company’s operations, or on its consumers;
• The extent of City Power’s influence on the issue;
• The importance of an issue to the Company’s key stakeholders.
Our Approach to Materiality
City Power’s purpose as a business is to contribute positively to the GDS 2040 objective of creating a liveable,
resilient and sustainable Johannesburg. The GDS 2040 is the blueprint for achieving the Company’s vision of
growing the business, whilst decoupling the environmental impact from the business’ growth and increasing its
positive social impact.
City Power has undertaken an in-depth materiality assessment to determine the issues to include set targets for
and report on. City Power Business Plan is the central focus of the Company’s sustainability strategy and reporting. However, the Company also reports on issues that are not contained in its Business Plan but are of interest to its stakeholders. City Power keeps these under regular review and aims to be as responsive as possible to stakeholder needs.
Assessing City Power Material Issues
City Power periodically reviews its material issues against the changing context of the business, stakeholder
feedback, and emerging trends. The Company also ensures that its reporting continues to reflect the critical issues for stakeholders as they arise. The following are City Power’s top material issues:
• Vandalism and theft
• Improved communication with councillors and community based planning
• External revenue generation opportunities
• Inclusive business models – Improved support for small to medium scale businesses
• Clean governance
• Customer centricity
• Leverage reputation to attract investments
Stakeholder Management
The Company’s stakeholders are a critical component of the business’s planning and operations. City Power’s
strategic and operational plans are developed based on an assessment of the Company’s stakeholder needs. In
conjunction with the City, City Power undertakes a participatory approach to its strategic planning processes. In
fulfilling its strategic intent, City Power manages stakeholder relations and collaborative partnerships. These address both stakeholders identified in terms of the shareholder agreement and GDS mandate, and others that
may influence the achievement of the organisation’s vision and mission.
City Power report to the following stakeholders:
• City Of Johannesburg
• National Treasury
• NERSA
• SARS
• Department of Energy
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Summary of the significant frameworks and legislation used to prepare the report
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA)
Generally Recognised Accounting Principles (GRAP)
Section 46(1) on the Municipal Systems Act (MSA)
King IV code on Corporate Governance(KING IV)
Discussion papers issued by the South African Integrated Reporting Committee and the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC)
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
Joburg 2040 Growth and Development Strategy (GDS)
Integrated Development Plan (IDP)
Municipal Finance Management Act (56 of 2003)
Municipal Structures Act (117 of 1998)
Municipal Systems Act (32 of 2000)
National Treasury Circular 63
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (5 of 2000)
Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act (53 of 2003)
The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (108 of 1996)
Promotion of Access to Information Act (2 of 2000)
Protected Disclosure Act (26 of 2000)
Companies Act (71 of 2008)
Labour Relations Act (66 of 1998)
Basic Conditions of Employment Act (75 of 1997)
Employment Equity Act (55 of 1998)
Skills Development Act (97 of 1998)
Skills Development Levy Act (9 of 1999)
Occupational Health and Safety Act ( 85 of 1993)
National Health Act (61 of 2003)
Income Tax Act (58 of 1962)
Value Added Tax (89 of 1991)

Scope and boundary of the Integrated Report
The boundary of this report is limited to financial and non-financial performance reporting as it relates to City
Power during the 2016/17 financial year. The integrity of the integrated annual report was overseen by the
Board of Directors in conjunction with its Committees. This was achieved by setting up appropriate teams, structures and processes to undertake the integrated reporting process and then performing a thorough review of the
resulting document.
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Customer Base
As can be seen from the table below, the total number of customers supplied by City Power has gradually
decreased since 2014/15.
Type

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

25

23

33

LPU

3 911

3 997

4 407

Business

9 588

10 028

10 909

Domestic

139 311

132 537

148 908

Prepayment

261 042

249 719

250 085

Total

413 877

396 304

414 342

Agriculture

Conventional customers reported above are based on customers invoiced as at end of June 2017, therefore
they do not represent total active accounts as other customers were not billed or invoiced.

Electricity Sales and Purchases
Sales
Measure Indicator
Electricity sales
Growth in electricity sales
Revenue
Growth in revenue
Number of customers
Gross margin

Unit

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

MWh

9 494 361

9 492 775

8 736 231

%

0.01

8.66

-1.33

R’000

15 156 259

14 233 743

13 270 481

%

6.48

7.20

4.91

No.

413 877

396 304

414 342

%

30.13

31.2

22.29
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Purchases
Unit

2016/17

2015/16

2014/15

Bulk purchases

R’000

10 588 851

9 779 048

8 933 188

Direct costs of bulk purchases
% reduction in electricity consumption

c/kWh

87,10

80,42

72,27

%

-0.07

-1.63

-2.08

Measure Indicator

Total purchases volumes has been dropping year on year signifying that customers are reducing consumption
despite high increase in the losses.

City Power Staff Complement
City Power fosters effective human resources practices with a view to contributing to the organisation’s goals.
The Company’s staff complement as at 30 June 2017 is 1 733 which includes permanent and contract employees.
Market Opportunities
The City of Johannesburg has embarked upon a journey to become a sustainable and smart City of the future in
line with the principles of the Growth and Development Strategy 2040. Energy will be a critical component in
realising this aspiration. Whilst energy is key to unlocking the economic and socio-economic development objectives, unchecked consumption of coal-based power will increase carbon and energy intensity, thus threaten economic and environmental sustainability and the quality of living within the City.
Significant Factors Affecting External Environment and City Power Response
The IRP 2010-2030 (Integrated Resource Plan) has noted that on projection on electricity supply and demand,
about 42% of electricity generated in South African comes from renewable resources. The opportunity presented
to City Power is to move from an electricity distributor to an energy utility.
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The top opportunities:
Rising emerging markets’ energy demands (including poverty reduction and access to power)
Acquisitions or alliances to gain new capabilities (including growing skills base)
Growth in energy and ancillary services markets (including sustainable jobs)
Enhancing relationships with external regulatory and compliance bodies
Improving public perceptions (including customer control)
Increased focus on investor relations programs and communications (including security of supply to drive
investor appetite)
7. Integration of distributed energy resources (including necessity to innovate)
8. Increased investment in generation capacity and delivery infrastructure in emerging markets (including
security of supply and network investment)
9. Rising energy innovation in emerging markets
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Benchmarking
Benchmarking is a key step in the continuous improvement process for a company. City Power has focused on
benchmarking on tariffs, technical and non-technical losses both nationally and internationally.
National Benchmarking: Tariffs
In 2013/14 financial year, City Power embarked on a Tariff Rationalisation Journey. Some City Power tariffs at
the time were the most expensive, let alone being outside the NERSA guidelines. City Power conducted a successful “preliminary” Cost of Supply Study in FY14/15. Most of the findings were implemented as they confirmed
some of the concerns that had been received through various engagements with customers. This journey has
resulted in City Power tariff moving in the customer-centric manner. The table below shows that City Power is
not the most expensive in the Time of use category.

National Benchmarking: Losses
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Though the Metropolitan Municipalities below are structured differently, what was common is that all
have a strategy to minimise losses, showing that losses management is part of day to day operations
of these municipalities. Below are some of their strategies that they shared with us in managing losses:
Municipality

Ekurhuleni

Technical losses

Non-technical losses

* Refurbishing and replacing old equipment
in the network
* Strengthening over-headlines
* Installation of Check Meters on Eskom Intake points

* Quarterly Audit of Meter installation
* Pre-installation and Post-Installation
Meter Audits
* Seal management
* Customer awareness
* Improvement on Meter maintenance and reading
* Clean sweep audits
* Installation of Protective Structures
* Electrification of unproclaimed settlements
* High penalties for anyone found
stealing electricity
* Educational Awareness especially
in schools
1. AREA SWEEPS

* Refurbishing and replacing old equipment
in the network
* Strengthening over-headlines
Cape Town

1. OPTIMAL NETWORK CONFIGURATION
The Planning and Design engineers ensure
that all network additions are implemented
with correct equipment ratings and configuration so as to minimize losses.
2. EFFECTIVE MAINTENANCE ON NETWORK

eThekwini

The unit has adopted a comprehensive
maintenance schedule to promote the reliability of the
network as well as enhance the efficiency
of the network.
3. EFFICIENT NETWORK LOADING
Power flow into the network is carefully
monitored on a 24 hour basis and the correct, most efficient electrical loading configuration is adopted. Illegal electricity connections are a major contributing factor to nontechnical losses

Nelson Mandela

Not part of the Focus

The Revenue Protection teams continuously investigate high theft areas
to remove all illegal
connections.
2. EMPLOYMENT OF SECURITY
INTELLIGENCE TEAMS
Private investigators are deployed to
site to try and gather evidence to apprehend suspects.
3. INSTALLATION OF ANTITHEFT TECHNOLOGIES AT SUBSTATIONS
The employment of this technology
deters intruders from entering into
substations and carrying out illegal
connections.
4. THEFT HOTLINE
A 24 hour hotline has been set up to
report acts of theft and illegal connections - Once a suspicious activity
is reported, security will be dispatched immediately to the affected
site.
* Frequent audit on well developed
areas
* Use of protective structures in so
called "No Go Areas"
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Municipality

Technical losses

Non-technical losses
* High penalties for anyone found
stealing electricity
* Audit and analysis of meter and billing data
* Have one central point or a meter
laboratory for the control, monitoring
and management of meters

Electricity Losses Comparison between Metro's 2015/16
City Power
Tswane
Ekhuruleni
Ethekwini
Cape Town

23,2%
19,3%
15,6%
10,7%
11,4%

International Benchmarking

Trends depicted below have been extracted from the Paper: Reducing Technical and Non‐Technical
Losses in the Power Sector - Background Paper for the World Bank Group Energy Sector Strategy
July 2009 compiled by Mr Pedro Antmann.
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Business of today, tomorrow, risks and opportunities
City Power’s geographical area of supply includes
the entire jurisdiction of the City of Johannesburg
with the exception of Sandton and Soweto.

Dependencies
The delivery of City Power services, programmes
and projects often has some kind of dependency
on the city, other spheres of government, the private sector, communities and other stakeholders.
These dependencies can take on different forms
such as of approvals, permission, coordination,
endorsement, partnership, resources (financial,
human, infrastructural, equipment and technology), amongst others. City Power endeavours to
capitalise on these dependencies in order to deliver services that are efficient and effective.
Municipal departments and the sharing of functions between the municipality/entity and sector departments
City Power was established in 2000 as an independent municipal entity, wholly owned by the City of Johannesburg. The City, by means of a Service Delivery Agreement, regulates the service provided by City Power in respect
of financial issues (such as tariffs and capital expenditure), human resource issues (such as skills development),
delivery targets (maintenance of assets and addressing assets) and standards of customer care.
In line with the establishment of City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Ltd, the Council utilises an Environment and
Infrastructure Services Department (EISD) to oversee the performance and Group Governance to oversee the
governance of the company, as well as to regulate it. In this regard various agreements in principle were concluded during the establishment of the companies. These included the Sale of Business Agreement (SBA) and
the Service Delivery Agreement (SDA).
Currently City Power utilises the CoJ Call Centre for logging of complaints, queries and technical problems. The
billing of City Power customers is currently managed by CRM.
The Environmental and Infrastructure Services Department (EISD) is responsible for infrastructure planning and
approval and ensures alignment with City’s spatial development plan and the growth management strategy. City
Power works closely with this department for the implementation of their infrastructure planning and implementation
In order to coordinate operations and transcend operational boundaries, the City adopted a cluster configuration
to City Departments linked to the four pillars of Good Governance, Human and Social Development, Sustainable
Services and Economic Growth.
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Strategic Objective

City Power Strategic Journey
City Power was established in 2000 according to the principles of the Egoli 2002 Plan and it is wholly owned
by the City of Johannesburg. The organisational strategy has evolved over the years in alignment to Board
and Shareholder direction. The figure below illustrates the evolution and change in focus over the years.

COJ Strategy
Document
City
Power
Focus Areas

2002-2006

2006-2011

2011- 2016

Egoli 2002

GDS 2030

GDS 2040

Bringing the different municipalities together

Improving network performance

Improving condition monitoring
maintenance

Moving from fire fighting
to planned maintenance

Perfecting time-based
maintenance

Developing and initiating
Capex program to reduce
backlog
Introduction of customer
segmentation

Introducing condition monitoring maintenance

Making sure we get paid for our
services & improve revenue
management
Improve stakeholder communication, engagement and management including R&CRM
Review Company business
model to move to an energy
company
Shift to low carbon infrastructure
and introduction of SSM & DSM

Introduction of prepaid
meters

Implementation and improving Capex program to reduce backlog
Consolidation and centralisation of customers services
Improving prepaid & smart
meter technologies

Introduction on TOU and green
tariffs

Piloting of DSM projects
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Anticipated Changes that may Impact on Strategy, Business Model and Future Performance
The energy sector is in transformation and this creates challenges both at an industry level and at a municipal/entity level.
Change drivers
Infrastructure Investment
Changing energy mix and distributed generation
Empowered customers
Digitization
Regulatory frameworks
New competitors
Talent and diversity

Changes over time
Significant investment is required to update or replace power, gas and
water assets
Generation mix is shifting to cleaner sources, including natural gas and
renewables, and is becoming more decentralised
Customers will have more choices to manage their energy consumption
through both distribution generation and energy management solutions
Smart meters, ‘big data’ and analytics can be used to optimize energy
delivery, improve energy efficiency and enhance customer experiences
Regulatory compact is under pressure to accommodate changing customer demands and encourage innovation
New and powerful entrants have begun to offer customers innovative
home energy management products and services
Aging workforce and challenges of the new digital economy will require
effective knowledge transfer and fresh thinking

Short, Medium and Long-term Strategic Objectives
The strategic objectives (short, medium and long term) viewed from the balance scorecard is outlined as follows:
Strategic PerStrategic Intent
Short Term
Medium Term
Long Term
spective
Financial
• Increase the finan• Recover R1 bil• Reduce losses
• Reduce losses
cial resilience and
lion rand in histo 16%
to 15%
sustainability of the
toric debt
• Improve reve• Expand footprint
business
• Reduce losses
nue collection
• Optimise profit
to 17%
• Optimise profit
margin
• Optimise profit
margin
margin
Customer
• Improve cus• Promote energy • Promote energy • Socio-economic
tomer/stakeholder
efficiency
efficiency
development
centricity and en• Socio-economic
• Socio-economic • Quality supply
sure active citizenry
development
development
and service
• Quality supply
• Quality supply
• Improve comand service
and service
munity participa• Improve com• Improve comtion
munity participamunity participation
tion
Internal Process
• Efficient and effec• Ensure govern• Ensure govern• Ensure governtive internal proance and risk
ance and risk
ance and risk
cesses and syscompliance
compliance
compliance
tems to meet serthroughout the
throughout the
throughout the
vice delivery and
value chain
value chain
value chain
compliance require- • Improve asset
• Improve asset
• Improve asset
ments
management
management
management
• Improve ICT
• Improve ICT
• Improve ICT
• Data clean up
• Data clean up
• Improve data
Improve data
Improve data
management
management
management
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Strategic Perspective
Learning and
Growth

Strategic Intent

Short Term

Medium Term

Long Term

• Maximum employee productivity
whilst conducting
business in an ethical manner

• Ensuring high
performing
teams
• Performance
management
• Talent planning,
acquisition and
development to
address current
and future skills
needs
• Structural realignment in the
short term and
filling of strategic
vacancies to
support the organizational
structure

• Ensuring high
performing
teams
• Performance
management
• Talent planning,
acquisition and
development to
address current
and future skills
needs
• Structural realignment in the
medium term
and filling of
strategic vacancies to support
the organizational structure

• Ensuring high
performing
teams
• Performance
management
• Talent planning,
acquisition and
development to
address current
and future skills
needs
• Structural realignment in the
long term and
filling of strategic
vacancies to
support the organizational
structure

The GDS2040 of COJ is aligned to the National Development Programme and the Gauteng 2055. All these
documents are the government’s promise to the citizens. The main objectives of these documents are to
sustain human and economic development.
Alignment to GDS 2040
It is vital for any company to align their Business Plan to the vision of its shareholders. The City Power Business
Plan is aligned to the City of Johannesburg’s Growth and Development Strategy 2040 (GDS2040), Vision and
Integrated Development Plan (IDP). These are also aligned to the Gauteng 2055, National Development Plan
(NDP) and the SDG. These are all done within the legislative and regulatory framework of municipalities.
The Batho Pele (“People First”) principles are aligned to the Constitution – know the service you’re entitled to.
The Batho Pele principles is a South African political initiative that stands for the better delivery of goods and
services to the public. The Batho Pele initiative aims to enhance the quality and accessibility of government services by improving efficiency and accountability to the recipients of public goods and services. Government officials must follow the “Batho Pele” principles which require public servants to be polite, open and transparent and
to deliver good service to the public. The COJ has developed the GDS2040 in line with the Batho Pele principles
as outlined below. It requires that eight service delivery principles be implemented:

1.

Batho Pele
principles
Consultation

2.

Service
standards

3.

Access

Definition of the Batho Pele principles
Citizens should be consulted about
the level and quality of the public
services they receive and, wherever
possible, should be given a choice
about the services that are offered.
Citizens should be told what level
and quality of public service they will
receive so that they are aware of
what to expect.
All citizens should have equal access to the services to which they
are entitled.

City Power Response
City Power is accountable to the
community member of the City of Johannesburg and the employees
should render the services that is
due to them without favour or doubt.
COJ through City Power ensure citizens of the City have access to electricity and public lighting.
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4.

Batho Pele
principles
Courtesy

Definition of the Batho Pele principles
Citizens should be treated with courtesy and consideration.

5.

Information

6.

Openness
and transparency

7.

Redress

8.

Value for
money

Citizens should be given full accurate information about the public
services they are entitled to receive.
Citizens should be told how national
and provincial departments are run,
how much they cost and who is in
charge.
If the promised standard of service
is not delivered, citizens should be
offered an apology, a full explanation and a speedy and effective remedy; and when complaints are
made, citizens should receive a
sympathetic, positive response.
Public services should be provided
economically and efficiently in order
to give citizens the best possible
value for money.

City Power Response
City Power customers are able to
raise any queries through the call
centre, the walking centre and on
the website.
Community Engagement is done
through different forums including
IDP Outreach programmes. The organisation also publishes its repots
on its website.

Communities are kept abreast of
what City Power and COJ are doing
through IDP Outreach Programmes
and community forums.

The organisation implements
NERSA approved tariffs that are affordable.

The business plan is developed and executed by the Board and Management in cooperation with COJ to ensure alignment, sustainability and meeting the needs of all current and future prosumers, consumers and customers of the energy.
There are four GDS outcomes in the GDS2040. These are outlined below:
Outcome

GDS 2040 Outcomes

City Power Contribution

1

Improved quality of life and development
driven resilience for all

Security of energy supply including Electrification and public lighting

2

Protect resources for the future generations,
built to last and offer a healthy, clean and
safe environment

Security of energy supply utilising smart grid
and green technologies

3

An inclusive, job-intensive, resilient and
competitive economy

Employment creation, BBBEE and SMME support

4

A leading metropolitan government that proactively contributes to and builds a sustainable, socially inclusive, locally integrated and
globally competitive global credit rating.

Revenue Management, Protection and Completeness, Security of energy supply, Benchmarking and trend setting in the energy industry
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There are six GDS principles in the GDS 2040 which are outlined below:
GDS 2040 principles

City Power Contribution

Eradicating poverty

Security of energy supply including Electrification and public
lighting

Building and growing an inclusive economy

Security of supply, Employment creation, BBBEE and SMME
support

Building sustainable human settlements

Electrification and public lighting

Ensuring resource security and environmental sustainability

Security of energy supply utilising smart grid and green technologies

Achieving social inclusion

Stakeholder engagement and communication

Promoting good governance

Enterprise Risk Management & compliance
Achievement Clean Audit

For more detail on the GDS 2040 visit www.joburg.org.za
Mayoral Priorities and City Power Alignment
The twelve (12) priority areas for the next mayoral term of office as follows:
Strategic Priorities

City Power Contribution

Employment Creation, investment attraction and retention

Employment creation

Informal Economy, SMME and entrepreneurial support

BBBEE and SMME support

Green and Blue Economy

Green Technologies

Transforming Sustainable Human settlement

Security of energy supply

Agriculture and food security
Climate Change and Resource Sustainability
Smart City and Innovation

Smart grid

Building safer communities

Public lighting

Repositioning Joburg in the Global
Arena

Benchmarking and trend setting in
the energy industry

Financial Sustainability

Revenue Management,
Protection and Completeness
Security of energy supply

CP indicators
Improve % of Socioeconomic development Index

% Capex Spent,
% Quality of supply
(NRS048),
% Quality of service
(NRS047)
Mega Watts of energy from alternative sources

% Meter reading
rate,
% reduction of loss,
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Strategic Priorities

City Power Contribution

CP indicators

Active and Engaged Citizenry

Stakeholder engagement and communication

Improve Customer
Satisfaction index

Good Governance

Enterprise Risk Management &
compliance

Achievement Clean
Audit

City Power is still on track to meet the company’s set targets for the IDP until the 2017/18 financial year. This is,
however, dependent on budget allocation in line with the budget requirements that have been identified.
City Power also recognises that in order to ultimately achieve the goals of its shareholder, it needs to work
closely with other municipal entities and government departments. These interdependencies are captured in the
table below.
Inter-Departmental/ Sectoral Dependency Description

Departmental Response

Joint Action (Provide details on how the dependency will be managed)

Customer relations and billing

Working with R&CRM on Customer relations and billing

Improve meter reading to improve billing accuracy
and payment levels

Housing Department (local
and Provincial)

Electrification and public lighting of households

Alignment of electrification with housing master plan

Provision of grant funding for
electrification & public lighting

Electrification and public lighting from Department of Energy
(DoE) & Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
(COGTA)

Sourcing of funding from DoE & MIG by City Power

Approval environmental impact assessment for infrastructure projects
Way Leave application

Gauteng department of agriculture and social development
Johannesburg Roads Agency

Compliance with the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) act

Approval of township establishment/ subdivision

Department of Development
Planning

Participate in the commenting process for township
establishment (compliance to turnaround times)

Processing of way leaves prior to project execution

Growth and Development Strategy (GDS) and City Power’s Strategic Agenda Alignment
The CoJ has a Growth and Development Strategy (GDS), which is translated into its integrated development,
plan (IDP). City Power influences the GDS’s many sectors and principles, but most of the company’s influence
resides in the infrastructure and services sector. The five-year plan for the infrastructure and services sector
is to achieve:
“A city with a backbone of efficient and well-maintained service infrastructure, extended to all, so that all citizens and stakeholders can access an expanding package of innovative, safe, reliable and affordable services.”
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Salient Features
Below are the organisation’s achievements for the 2016/17 financial year:


Financial: See annual financial statements



Non-Financial:


IDP Programmes

Sustainable
Human Settlement

Green/Blue
Economy
Smart City
Financial resilience and
sustainability
Transformative business
support and
SMME and
entrepreneurial support

Resource
sustainability,
safer city,
governance

Key Performance Area

Security of Supply: Basic service delivery

Demand Side
Management
Smart Grid
Revenue Management

Socioeconomic
Development

Good governance through:
Business efficiency and effectiveness

KPI

Unit

Actual
2015/16

Plan
2016/17

Actual
2016/17

Number of new houses electrified

Number

5 438

4 000

4 850

Number of days to repair street
lights

Days

9

10

20

Number

3 148

2 400

3 197

Number

197

128

253

Number

3 160

2 000

2 961

Number

14 974

5 000

6 225

65

77

96

95,86

Number of all Medium Voltage network outages
Number of all High Voltage network outages
Number of public lights installed
Number of Ripple relays installed
% Smart meters installed as per
the metering policy
% of collection levels

%

New unit of
measurement
95,05

%

% Meter reading performance

%

79,91

98

89,6

Number of jobs created through
EPWP

Number

5 410

4 500

4 504

Number of jobs created through
J@W

Number

New

1 500

511

Attainment of unqualified ISO accreditation

Audit Report

Unqualified
audit with minor findings
per accreditation

Attainment of unqualified audit

Audit Report

Unqualified

Unqualified
audit with
minor findings per accreditation
Full Compliance

Unqualified audit with minor
findings per accreditation
Unqualified
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Executive Management and Company Structure
Administratively City Power is led by the Managing Director under the supervision of City Power Board. The
Board is the Accounting Authority in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA). The Board provides strategic direction, leadership and oversight so as to enhance shareholder value and ensure City Power’s
long-term sustainability, development and growth. In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Board is supported by the
Managing Director and the executive team ensuring good corporate governance practices.

Board

City Manager

Managing Director

Company Secretary

GM: Strategy

Director: Finance

Strategy
Development

Director: RAC

Director: HR

Data Governance

Learning Academy

COO

Revenue Management

Management
Accounting

Programme
Management

Strategy Assurance

Internal Audit

Talent Management

Financial Reporting

Budget

SHEQ

Employee Relations

Legal & Compliance

Organisation
Effectiveness

Director: Metering
Services

ICT

Planning

Field Services

Metering Device
Management

SCM
Director: Eng Services

Capital Execution
Customer Interface Unit

Warehouse & Fleet

Technology
Security Management

HR Business Support
Plant Conditioning
Monitoring

Smart Nerve Centre

Director: Eng Operations

Workshop

Enterprise Risk
Management

Energy Management

Field Services: Metering
GM: Relationship
Management
Field Services: Secondary
Plant

Field Services: South
(Primary Plant)

Field Services: North
(Primary Plant)

Availability of Supply

Facility Management

City Power has ensured a capable and effective leadership team to ensure that the Company is able to deliver
on its mandate. The current staff complement (as at 30 June 2017) stands at 1 733 employees. The Company is
working to ensure that the capacity within the lower levels of the organisation is unlocked through skills development of current staff as well as recruitment of new staff.
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Statement of Responsibility
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and preparation of the annual financial statements and other performance information with integrity and fair presentation of
the state of affairs of the Entity. The annual financial statements and other performance information have been
prepared under the supervision of the Director: Finance, Mr Quentin Green. The financial statements presented
on (p.117) have been prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and include amounts based on prudent judgement and estimates made by the management.
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information in the annual report and are responsible
for both its accuracy and its consistency with the financial statements.
The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements and the Directors have no reason
to believe that the entity will not be a going concerns in the foreseeable future based on the forecast and available
cash resources. Refer to the Directors report on page 19 with regard to the appropriateness of the going concern
assumption for the preparation of the financial statements.
The Auditor-General, who was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including
Minutes of all meetings of Shareholders, the Board of Directors and Committees of the Board, has audited the
financial statement and other performance information. The Directors believe that all representations made to the
Auditor-General during their audit are valid and appropriate. The Auditor-General’s report is presented in Annexure B.
The financial statements were approved for submission to the Auditor-General for the purpose of auditing by the
Board of Directors on 30 November 2017 and signed on its behalf by Ms. Lael Bethlehem.
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CHAPTER TWO: GOVERNANCE
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Corporate Governance Statement
To ensure accountability and governance arrangements are in place, Section 121(2) (c) of the MFMA supports
the requirements of Section 18(1) (d) of the MSA: information on matters of governance should be communicated to communities. This should, according to Sections 65(1) (a) of the MFMA and Section 46 of the MSA
be undertaken through the compilation and publication of the Annual Report. The purpose of such an annual
report is to promote accountability to communities for decisions taken by the Council and matters relating to
administrative structures, throughout a financial year.
City Power has comprehensive governance structures, systems, policies and procedures in place – underpinned by a sound set of values and ethics to support the Company’s operations. These structures enable a
clear separation of policy making, regulation and implementation. City Power is part of the City’s objective to
create focused, specialised and non-bureaucratic processes for efficient service delivery.
The Board of City Power ensures that high standards of Corporate Governance throughout City Power are
upheld for the delivery of the Company’s strategic objectives, shareholder value and the long-term protection
of stakeholder interests.
City Power is committed to the highest standards of business integrity, ethics and professionalism. Good
corporate governance is an integral part of the Company’s operations. Accordingly, the Board and Management of City Power are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company’s
governance processes and practices are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure the same are in line with best
practices. The entity works closely with the Shareholder’s Group Governance Division to ensure compliance
with all material aspects of corporate governance. The Company is therefore committed to fulfilling its mandate in a manner that is in keeping with governance best practices and in particular with regard to accountability, transparency, fairness and integrity as advocated by the King Report on Corporate Governance (King
III). The principles, as enunciated in King III are entrenched in the internal controls, policies and procedures
governing corporate conduct. The Board is satisfied that every effort is made by Management to comply with
all material aspects of King III.

Ethical Leadership
Responsible leadership, characterised by the values of responsibility, accountability, fairness and transparency, has been a defining characteristic of the entity since the company’s establishment in 2001. The Board
recognises the impact the Company has on the economy and society and therefore strives to ensure that
there must be an ethical relationship between the Company and all its stakeholders. The Board has taken
steps to entrench ethical leadership in the formulation of the company’s strategy and to ensure that there are
consequences for non-adherence to these values. The Board provides effective leadership based on a principled foundation and the Company subscribes to high ethical standards. The Board has put in place structures and controls to inculcate an ethical culture.
The fundamental objective has always been to do business ethically while building a sustainable company
that recognises the short- and long-term impact of its activities on the economy, society and the environment.
In its deliberations, decisions and actions, the Board is sensitive to the interests and expectations of the
Company’s stakeholders and to ensure that the Company’s decisions are grounded in the Company’s values.
Annual Board assessments and evaluations are conducted and an annual report for the previous year was
efficiently completed in accordance with the prescripts of section 121 of the MFMA. The compilation of this
annual report was guided by the same principles.
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Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors and executives recognise and are committed to the principles of openness, integrity
and accountability advocated by the King III code on corporate governance. Through this process, the shareholder and other stakeholders are assured that the company is being ethically managed according to prudent
risk parameters in compliance with generally accepted corporate practices. The monitoring of the Company’s
compliance with King III forms part of the mandate of the Audit Committee. The Company has complied with
the code in all material respects during the year under review.
The Board of Directors has adopted a Board Charter, which includes matters of ethics, procedure and conduct
of Members. The Charter is aligned with the CoJ Charter. Registers are kept and updated on the disclosure
and declaration of interests of Directors and Senior Management. The Board and Senior Management ensure
there is full material compliance to all relevant legislation. The Company Secretary has certified in terms of
section 268(d) of the Companies Act that all statutory returns have been submitted to the Companies and
Intellectual Property Commission (CIPC). The Board of Directors subscribes to the City of Johannesburg’s
corporate governance protocol (the protocol) which, inter alia, regulates its relationship with CoJ as its sole
shareholder and parent municipality in the interest of good corporate governance and good ethics.
City Power’s practices are, in most material instances, in line with the principles set out in King III. The Board
continually reviews the Company’s progress to ensure improvements in corporate governance. During the
review period, the Company entrenched its risk management reviews and reporting and compliance assessments were conducted in terms of the Companies Act and the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA).

Corporate Citizenship
The Board and Management recognise that the entity is formed under a political structure. As such, it has a
social and moral standing in society with all the attendant responsibilities. The Board is therefore responsible
for ensuring that the entity protects, enhances and invests in the well-being of the economy, society and
natural environment, and pursues its activities within the limits of social, political and environmental responsibilities outlined in international conventions on human rights. The Board has a Social, Ethics & HR Committee which is tasked with the responsibility of ensuring that the organisation strives to be a good corporate
citizen.
Compliance with Laws, Rules, Codes and Standards
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws and considers adhering to
non-binding rules, codes and standards. The Board has a Risk, Assurance and Compliance sub-committee
which is tasked with the responsibility of exercising oversight over compliance.
By-Laws
A by-law is a law that is passed by the Council of a municipality to regulate the affairs and the services it
provides within its area of jurisdiction. A municipality derives the powers to pass a by-law from the Constitution
of the Republic of South Africa, which gives certain specified powers and competencies to local government
or the entity as set out in Part B of Schedules 4 and Part B of 5 of the Constitution. In the year under review,
no new by-laws that affect the entity were implemented.

Public Accountability, Participation
Different methods were used to improve public participation and accountability, like the Customer query resolution in Vorna Valley, educational campaigns were undertaken in Rabie Ridge, Pennyville, Kanana and
Alexandra to educate customers on pre-paid meters, illegal connections, energy efficiency, electricity safety
as well as theft and vandalism. Another stakeholder engagement has been with respect to Streetlights, where
we engaged with Councillors. Media Coverage also plays an integrated part of engagement with the community.
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Public Satisfaction on Municipal Services
COJ is responsible for the public satisfaction surveys. During the CoJ’s bi-annual customer survey, which
measures customers’ and residents’ perception of the provision of services, residents indicated that they felt
change has definitely taken root, with the result in the overall performance increasing to 61 percent. The
previous result (2015) was 59 percent. The survey was conducted in April this year, and customers could
rate the performance of the CoJ’s new administration. The results of this survey were also confirmed by a
recent six-monthly Government Performance Barometer that was undertaken by Ipsos. During this survey it
was found that residents’ overall perception of how well the CoJ was performing, went from 39 per cent in
July 2016 to 53 percent in July 2017. How well the CoJ was handling basic services such as water and
electricity showed an increase from 51 per cent to 59 percent;.
Board of Directors
City Power has a unitary Board, which consists of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. An Annual General
Meeting was held on 16 March 2017 at which meeting the entire Board and all the Independent Audit Committee Members were retired and a new Board and 3 new Independent Audit Committee Members were
appointed. Also during the year under review two Non-Executive Director resigned from the Board and one
Independent Audit Committee Member resigned.
During most of the year under review, the Board was chaired by a Non-Executive Director, Mr Frank Chikane.
At the Annual General Meeting held on 16 March 2017 he was retired and Ms Lael Bethlehem was appointed
as Chairperson of the Board.
The Board meets regularly (at least quarterly) and retains full control over the Company. The composition of
the Board reflects a diversity of skills and qualifications as reflected in the table below:
CITY POWER BOARD & AUDIT COMMITTEE’S QUALIFICATION & SKILLS MATRIX –
2016/2017 FINANCIAL YEAR - 01 Jul 2016 – 16 Mar 2017
Name
Mr. F Chikane (Chairperson)

Qualifications
*MPA – Masters in Public Administration
* M.A. – Masters in Theology
*Snr Managers in Government Programme
*Corporate Governance Training Course
*Diploma in Theology

Skills
*Human Behaviour Counselling
*Strategic Planning Leadership
*Coaching/Mentoring
*Management
*Facilitation
*Administration

Mr. N Hlubi

*MBA
*B juris Degree (Law),
*LLB Degree (Law),
*MAP (Business),
*CFP(Financial Planning),
*Cert in Compliance Management
* BScEng (Electrical)
* BSc (Science)
* Project Management
* Professional Engineer (ECSA)
*Cand Construction Project Manager
*Masters with Honours in Economics & Management
*Executive Leadership Programme
*Higher Certificate in Business Management

*Strategic Planning
*Business Administration
*Law
*Finance
*Compliance Man. & Audit,
*Risk Management
* Project Engineer & Commissioning
* Project Management
* Quality Management
* Business Leadership
* Entrepreneurship
*Economic Analysis & Modelling
*Public Finance
*Development Finance
*Banking, Project Finance, Investments
*Strategy & Leadership
*Policy Development
*Business Development
*Audit & Risk Management

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

(resigned – 31 Aug 2016)

Mr. V Lukhele

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

Ms. S Mokotoko

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)
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Name
Ms. N Mohlala

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

Mr. K Mokhobo

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

Qualifications
*Post Degree Diploma in Management
*Diploma in Municipality Management Development
Programme
*Licensed Accountant
*Certificate – IAC
*Accountant Technician
*BComm
*BAcc
*CA(SA)
*ACMA(UK)
*Certificate in International Business

Mr. D Naidu

*B Paed Science
*ND Work Study
*NHD Industrial Engineering
*Management Development Programme

Mr. T Sithole

*MBA
*BSc in Engineering (Electrical)
*Project Management
*Strategic Management

Ms. T Ramano

*BComm Accounting
*Post Graduate Diploma – Accounting
*Chartered Accountant SA

Mr. W Hattingh

*M.Com (Specialising in Performance Audits)
*B.Com (Hons)
*MBA
*B.Com
*National Diploma in Management Services
*LLB (UCT) (2006 Dean’s Merit List)
*LLM International Commercial Law
*Admitted Attorney of High Court of SA

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

(resigned – 21 Nov 2016)

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

Ms. L Mabhena-Olagunju
(resigned – 08 Feb 2017)

Ms. M Shongwe

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

*Bachelor of Accounting
*Charted Accountant

Skills
*Accounting & Finance
*Human Resource Management
*Training & Personal Development
*Community Work
*Strategy & Project Management
*Operational Management
*Marketing
*Audit
*Forensics
*Finance & Accounting
*Mergers & Acquisitions
*Strategic Planning Leadership
*Corporate Governance
*Project Management
*General Management
*Strategy & Risk Management
*Project Management
*Finance
*Corporate Governance
*Business Process Engineering
*Systems
*Business Leadership
*Engineering Design (EPCM)
*Project Management
*Power/Electrical Engineering
*Energy Management
*Project Finance
*Asset Management
*ISO Systems Compliance
*Strategic Planning Leadership
*Financial Management
*Strategy & Risk Management
*Coaching/Mentoring
*Finance

*Legal
*Drafting
*Review and Negotiations of Legal Documents
*Review and analysis of Legislation
*Corporate governance
*Accounting
*Auditing
*Risk management
*Quality Assurance
*Entrepreneurship

CITY POWER BOARD & AUDIT COMMITTEE’S QUALIFICATION & SKILLS MATRIX –
2016/2017 FINANCIAL YEAR - 16 Mar 2017 to 30 Jun 2017
Name
Ms. L Bethlehem

Qualifications
*MA Industrial sociology
*BA (Hons) Political Studies
*Certificate in Public Finance

Mr. I Bux

*B Comm Accounting-Major
Economics-Major
Auditing-Major

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

Skills
*Governance
*Development Management
*Economic Development
*Construction Oversight
*Commercial Law
*Contracts
*Entrepreneurship
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Name

Dr. H Chewane

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

Mr. D Gibson

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

Mr .D Hunt

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

Thomas Kgokolo

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

Qualifications
*NDPs Computer Science
Cobalt
Pastel
*MBchB
*Diploma – Occupational Medicine & Health
*Certificate in Evaluation of Permanent Impairments (ACIME – American College of Independent Medical Examiners)
*(LLB in Progress)
*BA (Law) SA
*Attorneys’ Admission Diploma
*Conveyancer
*Hons BA (Political Science) – (Cum Laude)
*Bsc Eng Electrical
*Diploma in Engineering
*Advanced Executive Programme (SBL)
*MBA
*CA (SA)
*B.Com Honours (CTA)
*Certificate in Business Management
*B.com (Accounting)

Ms. N Kahlana-Mcubuse

*MBA
*MA (Social Development )
*BCom (Information Systems & Management)

Ms. M Mbonambi

*B.Com Accounting
*B.Com Honours
*Cert in Risk Management
*Cert in Corporate Governance

Mr. Mello

*B. Sc Electrical Engineering
*M. Sc Electrical Engineering
*Certificate Financial Management

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

Skills
*Financial Management
*Negotiator
*Relationship Management
*Strategic Planning
*Medical Doctor (GP)
*Occupational Health & Safety Medical Practitioners
*Former Member of IYA (Parliament)
*Assessor and evaluation of medial impairments
*Health Portfolio Committee of Parliament
*Health & Wellness Specialist
*Law
*Risk Management
*Human Resources
*Finance
*Social & Ethics
*Accounting
*Engineering
*Science & Technology
*Business Administration
*Corporate finance
*Risk management
*External audit management
*GRAP expert
*IFRS expert
*Assets management
*Financial engineering and strategies
*Corporate governance
*Stakeholder Engagement
*Investor Relations
*B-BBEE & Transformation
*Sustainable Development
*Economic Development
*Strategic Planning
*Vision Mapping
*Coaching
*Women Empowerment
*Renewable Energy Projects Dev. & Management
*Fund raising
*Public Speaking
*Socio-economic Dev. Projects design & implement.
*Advocacy
*Cause Related Marketing and Campaigning
*CSR and Corporate Citizenship
*Climate change adaptation strategies
*Participatory Development
*Community Asset Mapping
*People development and motivation
*Relationship Management
*International relations and Regional trade strategies
*New markets entry strategies
*Financial management and Financial reporting
*Risk Management and controls
*Strategic planning and performance management
*Compliance with Laws & regulations
*Governance
*Business Management
*Strategic Planning
*Business Development
*Entrepreneurship
*Telecommunications
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Name
Mr. L Nage

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

Mr. M Seopela

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

Mr. S Xulu
(MD)

Mr. Q Green
(Director: Finance)

Mr. E Ngomane

Mr. M Padiaychee

Ms. S Yanguya

Qualifications

Skills
*Renewable Energy
*Masters in Finance and Investment
*Financial Management
*B.Com Accounting
*Corporate Governance
*Auditing and Compliance
*Risk Management
*Building Departments and Restructuring
*Business & Finance Transformation
*Complex & Large Project Management
*Cash Flow Modelling & Treasury Management
*Business Operations Management
*Organizational Redesign
*Knowledge Management and Research
*Investment Management
*Scenario Planning
*LLB
*Financial Planning and Management
*Post Grad Diploma in Corporate Law
*Project Management
*LLM in Management & Development Law
*Statutory Compliance
*LLM in Contract Law
*Contract Management
*LLM in International Law
*Human Capital Managements
*Corporate Governance
*Planning & Restructuring
*Project Management
*Master of Philosophy (Mphil) Electrical &
*Capital Planning and Designs
Electronics Engineering
*Engineering Management
*National Diploma: Electrical Engineering
*Project Management
*B. Tech in Electrical Engineering
*Engineering Management
*B. Sc Honours with specialization in Applied *Financial Management,
science: Electrotechnics
*Human Resource Management
*Executive Developmental Program
*Project Management
*Customer Services
*Bachelor of Commerce degree
*Accounting & Finance
*Certificate in Theory of Accountancy
*Audit
Chartered Accountant (S.A.)
*Forensics
*Corporate Leadership
*Project Management
*Strategy
*Systems and Internal control
*Corporate turnaround
*Knowledge of MFMA and other local government
legislation and regulation
*Marketing, media and communication
*B.Sc. Eng (Civil)
*Project Management
*GDE (Project Management)
*Policy, Legislation and Framework formulation
Pr. Engineer
*Public Transport Planning,
*Traffic Impact Assessment
*Road Signs Planning and Design
*Traffic Calming & Safety Measures
*B Com
*Strategic Planning
*B Compt. (Hons)
*Business Administration and Transformation
*CTA
*Finance
*Compliance Management and Audit
*Risk Management
*Certificate in Corporate Finance and Funding; *Financial management
*Certificate in International Treasury Manage*Funding
ment;
*Treasury Management;
*Higher Diploma in International Tax law
*Local SA and International Tax
*Higher Diploma in Tax law;
*Auditing
*FCCA - Fellow of the Association of Certified
*Financial Accounting
Chartered Accountants;
*Negotiation skills
*Interpersonal and communication skills

42 | P a g e

Name

Qualifications
*CA SA - Chartered Accountant of South Africa;
*Bachelor of Commerce Accounting (Honours
Degree)

Skills
*Time management and
*Strong organizational and analytical skills

The Board remains accountable to the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality (the Company’s sole
shareholder) and its stakeholders, the citizens of Johannesburg. A Service Delivery Agreement (SDA), concluded in accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Systems Act (MSA) governs the Company’s relationship with the City of Johannesburg. The Board provides monthly, quarterly, bi-annual and annual reports
on its performance and service delivery to its parent municipality as prescribed in the SDA, the MFMA and
the MSA. Such reports are submitted within the stipulated timeframes.
Non-Executive Directors contribute an independent view to matters under consideration and add to the depth
of experience of the Board. The roles of Chairperson and Managing Director of the Company are separated,
with responsibilities divided between them. The Chairperson has no executive functions. Members of the
Board have unlimited access to the Company Secretary, who acts as an advisor to the Board and its committees on matters including compliance with Company rules and procedures, statutory regulations and best
corporate practices.
The Board or any of its Members may, in appropriate circumstances and at the expense of the Company,
obtain the advice of independent professionals. A director and peer review as well as a Board evaluation are
undertaken on an annual basis.
The Board Committee did an evaluation and the Board Members are satisfied that good governance is generally practised and that the Board is functioning well in its oversight and support role. The Memorandum of
Incorporation provides that the Directors of the Company will be elected by the Shareholder and appointed
by the Board of Directors. The Managing Director is appointed by the Board in consultation with the Shareholder.
Attendance at meetings held during the year was as follows:
Directors

Board

HR

Social,
Ethics
& HR

Social & Risk,
Quarterly Audit
Ethics
Assurance Review
& Compliance

(dissolved –
30 Mar 2017)

(established –
30 Mar 2017)

9

3

2

3

5

3

5

4

Mr. F Chikane

6 of 6

-

-

3 of 3

-

3 of 3

-

-

Mr. QB Green

8 of 9

2 of 3-

1 of 2

2 of 3

3 of 5

2 of 3

5 of 5

4 of 4

Mr. NSA Hlubi

1 of 1

-

-

-

1 of 1

1 of 1

0 of 2

-

Mr. VG Lukhele

6 of 6

2 of 3

-

3 of 3

3 of 3

-

-

-

Ms. SK Makotoko

2 of 6

2 of 3

-

-

1 of 1

1 of 2

-

2 of 2

Ms. NP Mohlala

6 of 6

3 of 3

-

3 of 3

-

2 of 3

-

-

Mr. DR Mokhobo

5 of 6

-

-

-

-

2 of 3

4 of 4

2 of 2

Mr. D Naidu

6 of 6

-

-

-

3 of 3

3 of 3

-

2 of 2

Ms. MMT Ramano

0 of 2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

NR OF MEETINGS HELD FOR
THE FINANCIAL YEAR
(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

(resigned – 31 Aug 2016)
(retired – 16 Mar 2017)
(retired – 16 Mar 2017)
(retired – 16 Mar 2017)
(retired – 16 Mar 2017)
(retired – 16 Mar 2017)
(resigned – 21 Nov 2016)

(dissolved –
30 Mar 2017)

Revenue
Management
(prev. known as
Ad Hoc RRP)
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Directors

Board

HR

Social,
Ethics
& HR

(dissolved –
30 Mar 2017)

(established –
30 Mar 2017)

Social & Risk,
Quarterly Audit
Ethics
Assurance Review
& Compliance
(dissolved –
30 Mar 2017)

Revenue
Management
(prev. known as
Ad Hoc RRP)

Mr. TI Sithole

5 of 6

3 of 3

-

3 of 3

1 of 1

3 of 3

4 of 4

-

Mr. SG Xulu

5 of 9

3 of 3

0 of 2

2 of 3

2 of 5

2 of 3

3 of 5

2 of 4

Ms. L Bethlehem

3 of 3

-

1 of 2

-

-

-

-

-

Mr. I Bux

3 of 3

-

-

-

1 of 2

-

-

2 of 2

Dr. H Chewane

3 of 3

-

2 of 2

-

0 of 2

-

-

-

Mr. D Gibson

2 of 3

-

2 of 2

-

2 of 2

-

-

-

Mr. D Hunt

3 of 3

-

-

-

-

-

1 of 1

2 of 2

Mr. T Kgokolo

1 of 3

-

-

-

-

-

1 of 1

-

Ms. N Kahlana-Mcubuse

3 of 3

-

2 of 2

-

-

-

-

-

Ms. M Mbonambi

3 of 3

-

-

-

1 of 2

-

1 of 1

-

Mr. M Mello

2 of 3

-

-

-

-

-

-

2 of 2

Mr. L Nage

3 of 3

-

-

-

1 of 2

-

-

2 of 2

Mr M. Seopela

3 of 3

-

2 of 2

-

-

-

-

2 of 2

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Independent Audit Committee

-

Mr. W Hattingh

-

-

-

-

-

-

3 of 4

--

Ms. L Mabhena-Olagunju
(resigned–08 Feb 2017)
Ms ML Shongwe

-

-

-

-

-

-

2 of 3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3 of 4

-

Mr. E Ngomane

-

-

-

-

-

-

0 of 1

-

Mr. M Padiaychee

-

-

-

-

-

-

1 of 1

-

Ms. S Yanguya

-

-

-

-

-

-

1 of 1

-

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

(retired – 16 Mar 2017)

(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)

Board Committees
The Board has the following Committees and working groups to assist it in carrying out its responsibilities.
Each committee is chaired by a Non-Executive Director.
•
•
•
•

Audit Committee
Human Resources Committee (The HR Committee was dissolved on 30 Mar 2017)
Social & Ethics Committee (The Social & Ethics Committee was dissolved on 30 Mar 2017)
Social, Ethics & Human Resources Committee (This new Committee was established on 30 Mar 2017, combining the
Human Resources and the Social & Ethics Committee into one comtee.)

•
•
•

Risk, Assurance & Compliance Committee
Quarterly Review Committee
Special Ad Hoc Committee – Revenue Recovery Project (This Committee was reconstituted as the Revenue Management

•

Revenue Management Committee (established – 31 Aug 2016)

Committee on 31 Aug 2016.)
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consisted of the following Non-Executive Directors and Independent Audit Committee
Members:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Thomas Kgokolo (Chairperson) (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Denis Hunt (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Masaccha Mbonambi (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Erick Ngomane (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Manu Padiaychee (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Susan Yanguya (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
2017)

Nhlanhla Hlubi (resigned – 31 Aug 2016)
Khati Mokhobo (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Thulani Sithole (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Waldo Hattingh (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Matseliso Shongwe (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Linda Mabhena-Olagunju (resigned – 08 Feb

The Committee met 5 times during the year under review.
The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board by performing an objective and independent review of
the functioning of the company’s finance, accounting and risk control mechanisms. It exercises its functions
through close liaison and communication with senior management and the internal and external auditors.
The Audit Committee operates in accordance with a written Terms of Reference authorised by the Board,
and provides assistance to the Board with regards to:











Ensuring compliance with applicable legislation and the requirements of regulatory authorities
Matters relating to financial accounting, accounting policies, reporting and disclosures
Matters relating to risk management
Internal and external audit policy
Activities, scope, adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function and audit plans
Reviewing and recommending the approval of external audit plans, findings, reports and fees
Reviewing and recommending the approval of strategic risks and mitigating strategies
Compliance with the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct
Compliance with the Code of Ethics and
Recommend and provide input into the multi-year Business Plan

The Audit Committee adequately addressed its responsibilities in terms of the Committee’s Terms of Reference during the period.
Human Resources Committee
(The HR Committee was dissolved on 30 March 2017 when a new Committee, the Social, Ethics & Human Resources Committee was
established.)

The Human Resources Committee consisted of the following Non-Executive and Executive Directors:
•

•
•
•
•

•

Nomaswazi Mohlala (Chairperson) (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Quentin Green
Vusi Lukhele (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Shiva Makotoko (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Thulani Sithole (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Sicelo Xulu

The Committee met 3 times during the year under review.
The Human Resources Committee advised the Board on remuneration policies, remuneration packages and
other terms of employment for employees including all Directors and senior Management. Its specific terms
of reference also included recommendations to the Board on matters relating to general staff policy, remuneration, performance bonuses, executive remuneration, Director Remuneration, fees and service contracts,
performance compact, and compliance with relevant legislation and strategic alignment with the objectives
of the Company.
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Social and Ethics Committee
(The Social & Ethics Committee was dissolved on 30 March 2017 when a new Committee, the Social, Ethics & Human Resources
Committee was established.)

The Social and Ethics Committee consisted of the following Non-Executive and Executive Directors:
•
•

•
•
•

•

Thulani Sithole (Chairperson) (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Frank Chikane (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Quentin Green
Vusi Lukhele (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Nomaswazi Mohlala (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Sicelo Xulu

The Committee met 3 times during the year under review.
The Social and Ethics Committee adequately addressed its responsibilities in terms of the Committee’s
Terms of Reference during the period. The Social and Ethics Committee advised the Board on the institutionalisation of ethics in the internal structures, systems and processes of the company. The Social and
Ethics Committee ensured that there was strong emphasis on the responsibility of the Company towards the
communities in which the company operates, social transformation within the workplace, and the protection
of the safety, health and dignity of employees.
Social, Ethics & Human Resources Committee
The Board, at its meeting held on 30 March 2017, resolved to combine the Social & Ethics Committee with
the Human Resources Committee.
The Committee consisted of the following Non-Executive and Executive Directors:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Noxolo Kahlana-Mcubuse (Chairperson)
Lael Bethlehem
Hlayiseka Chewane
Douglas Gibson
Mandla Seopela
Quentin Green (in attendance)
Sicelo Xulu (in attendance)

The Committee met twice during the year under review.
The Social, Ethics & Human Resources Committee advises the Board on remuneration policies, remuneration packages and other terms of employment for employees including all Directors and Senior Management.
Its specific terms of reference also include recommendations to the Board on matters relating to general staff
policy, remuneration, performance bonuses, executive remuneration, Director Remuneration, fees and service contracts, performance compact, and compliance with relevant legislation and strategic alignment with
the objectives of the Company.
The Committee advises the Board on the institutionalisation of ethics in the internal structures, systems and
processes of the company. The Social and Ethics Committee ensures that there is strong emphasis on the
responsibility of the Company towards the communities in which the company operates, social transformation
within the workplace, and the protection of the safety, health and dignity of employees.
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Risk, Assurance & Compliance Committee
The Risk, Assurance & Compliance Committee consisted of the following Non-Executive and Executive Directors:
•
•
•
•
•

•

•

Douglas Gibson (Chairperson) (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Irfan Bux (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Hlayiseka Chewane (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Masaccha Mbonambi (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Lerato Nage (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Quentin Green (in attendance)
Sicelo Xulu

Dayalan Naidu (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Nhlanhla Hlubi (resigned – 31 Aug 2016)
Vusi Lukhele (retired – 16 Mar 2017
Shiva Makotoko (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Thulani Sithole (retired – 16 Mar 2017)

The Committee met 5 times during the year under review.
The Committee assists the Board in exercising oversight over regulatory and legislative compliance. The
Committee also maintains oversight over the implementation of the Company’s Supply Chain Management
Policy in terms of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act (56/2003): Municipal Supply
Chain Management Regulations (Gazette no. 27636/ 30 May 2005), Section 6(a).

Quarterly Review Committee
The Quarterly Review Committee consisted of the following Non-Executive and Executive Directors:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Lael Bethlehem (Chairperson) (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Douglas Gibson (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Thomas Kgokolo (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Noxolo Kahlana-Mcubuse (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Magatho Mello (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Quentin Green (in attendance)
Sicelo Xulu (in attendance)

Frank Chikane (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Nhlanhla Hlubi (resigned – 31 Aug 2016)
Nomaswazi Mohlala (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Khati Mokhobo (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Dayalan Naidu (retired – 16 Mar 2017)

The Committee met 3 times during the year under review.
The Committee exercised oversight over the Company’s performance on a quarterly basis and reviews the
Quarterly Reports and Mid-year Report prior to submission to the MMC: Environment, Infrastructure and
Services Delivery. These reports are used for the purpose of evaluating the performance of the Company
on a quarterly basis by the Shareholder. The Performance of the Company is measured in terms of predetermined goals and strategies as set out in the Company’s Business Plan.
Special Ad Hoc Committee – Revenue Recovery Project
(This Committee was reconstituted as the Revenue Management Committee on 31 August 2016.)

The Special Ad Hoc Committee – Revenue Recover Project consisted of the following Non-Executive and
Executive Directors:
•
•
•
•
•

Khati Mokhobo (Chairperson) (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Dayalan Naidu (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Shiva Makotoko (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Quentin Green
Sicelo Xulu

The Committee met once during the year under review.
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The purpose of the Committee was to exercise effective oversight and monitoring of the Revenue Recovery
Project. The main objectives of the Revenue Recovery Project were to reduce non-technical losses by accurately measuring and recording consumption of customers, ensure accurate monthly billing for customers,
and to improve revenue performance and to recover losses. The main role of the Committee was to monitor
City Power and the City of Johannesburg’s plan to manage Revenue in a sustainable manner and to report
to the Board and the Shareholder on the performance of the Revenue Recovery Project.
Revenue Management Committee
(Established – 31 August 2016)

The Revenue Management Committee was established on 31 August 2016 and consisted of the following
Non-Executive and Executive Directors:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Magatho Mello (Chairperson) (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Irfan Bux (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Denis Hunt
(appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Lerato Nage (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Mandla Seopela (appointed – 16 Mar 2017)
Quentin Green
Sicelo Xulu
Shiva Makotoko (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Khati Mokhobo (retired – 16 Mar 2017)
Dayalan Naidu (retired – 16 Mar 2017

The Committee met 3 times during the period under review.
The purpose of the Committee is to exercise effective oversight and monitoring of Revenue Management
and related matters. The main objectives of the Revenue Management Committee are to provide the Board
with assurance that the Company’s revenue and meter management strategy is being effectively implemented and maintained, to sustainably reduce and wherever possible recover non-technical losses, to improve and maintain revenue performance, including by accurately measuring and recording the consumption
of customers, to monitor and exercise oversight over the Service Level Agreement with the City of Johannesburg’s Revenue and Customer Relationship Management Unit, and to exercise oversight over the City of
Johannesburg’s ability to produce accurate monthly billing for customers, and to exercise oversight over the
Financial Accounting and Reporting of City Power’s revenue.
The main role of the Committee is to monitor City Power’s and the City of Johannesburg’s Revenue Management in a sustainable manner including exercising oversight over the management of: post-paid and prepaid metering performance, meter reading performance, Non-Technical Losses and recovery of associated
revenue, accurate billing of customers, and the financial accounting and reporting of revenue.
City Oversight Committees
City Power is also reporting to the following committees at the City.
Group Risk Governance Committee (GRGC)
GRGC provides oversight advisory services to the City and entities on matters relating to Risk Governance and
Compliance as well as overseeing Enterprise Risk Management System. The committee also ensures
that all risks that might affect the service delivery level and attainment of clean audit are addressed
and measures are put in place to prevent future occurrences.
Group Audit Committee (GAC)
The Group Audit Committee’s (GAC) primary role is to provide oversight with respect to the financial
control environment and to advise the Mayoral Committee in this regard. The GAC approves and
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monitors the Auditor General (AG) and Internal Audit Strategy, the review and recommendation for
adoption of the CoJ Annual Financial Statements (AFS) and providing assurance within the Combined
Assurance Framework, on the adequacy and effectiveness of the CoJ’s Internal Control Environment
as well as the CoJ policies and procedures in this regard.
Group Performance Audit Committee (GPAC)
GPAC amongst other responsibilities, assesses and oversees the organisational performance
management system and service delivery performance of the City including the Municipal Entities. The
other primary objective of the GPAC is to assist the Mayoral Committee in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities and reviewing the performance targets as set out in the Business Plans, Integrated
Development Plan (IDP), and the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP).
Director’s & Senior Management Remuneration.
Non-Executive Directors' Remuneration
In terms of the provisions of the Remuneration Policy adopted by the Mayoral Committee, Group Governance is required, at least annually, to make recommendations on the fees payable to the Non-Executive
Directors of the City of Johannesburg’s municipal entities. In line with this requirement, Group Governance
produces a report on the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors and Independent Audit Committee
Members which is in line with the provisions of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (MFMA) and
Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (as amended).
The remuneration and incentives for Non-Executive Directors and Independent Audit Committee Members
of City Power are determined by the Shareholder.
Non-Executive Directors’ and Independent Audit Committee Members’ fees are only paid in accordance
with City Power’s approved budget.
Executive Director’s
Name

Position

Salary

Other
Performance
Allowances Bonus

Travel

TOTAL

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

Mr. S Xulu

Managing Director

2 190

638

220

128

3 176

Mr. Q B Green

Director: Finance

2 122

575

-

96

2 793

4 312

1 213

220

224

5 969

Total
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Non-Executive Directors: Previous Board (01 Jul 2016– 16 Mar 2017)

Name

Position

Other
Director's
Allowances Fees

Travel

Total

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

Rev. F Chikane (retired 16 Mar 2017)

Chairperson

Mr. NS Hlubi (resigned 31 Aug 2016)

Board Member

-

Mr. VG Lukhele (retired 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

2

Ms. SK Makotoko (retired 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

1

Ms. NP Mohlala (retired 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

Mr. DR Mokhobo (retired 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

Ms. T Ramano (resigned 21 Nov 2016)

Board Member

-

Mr. D Naidu (retired 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

2

Mr. TI Sithole (retired 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

14

Total

273

-

287

25

-

25

140

-

142

76

-

77

2

137

-

139

2

148

-

150

-

-

-

161

-

163

2

180

-

182

24

1 140

-

1 164

Non-Executive Directors: Current Board (16 Mar 2017 – 30 Jun 2017)
Name

Position

Ms. L Bethlehem (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Chairperson

Mr. I Bux (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Other
Director's
Allowances Fees

Travel

Total

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000
110

110

Board Member

78

78

Dr. H Chewane (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

102

102

Mr. D Gibson (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

109

109

Mr. D Hunt (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

110

110

Mr. T Kgokolo (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

40

Ms. N Kahlana-Mcubuse (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

118

118

Ms. M Mbonambi (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

62

62

Mr. M Mello (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

66

66

Mr. L Nage (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

66

66

Mr. M Seopela (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Board Member

2

42

91

Total

-

91

952

2

954

Independent Audit Committee Members: Previous (01 Jul 2016– 16 Mar 2017)
Name
Mr. W Hattingh (retired 16 Mar 2017)
Ms. L Mabhena-Olagunju (resigned 08 Feb 2017)
Ms. ML Shongwe (retired 16 Mar 2017)
Total

Position
Independent Audit
Committee Member
Independent Audit
Committee Member
Independent Audit
Committee Member

Other
Director's
Allowances Fees

Travel

Total

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000
2

44

-

46

0

15

-

15

0

44

-

44

2

104

-

105
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Independent Audit Committee Members: Current (16 Mar 2017 – 30 Jun 2017)
Name
Mr. E Ngomane (appointed 16 Mar 2017)
Mr. M Padiaychee (appointed 16 Mar 2017)
Ms. S Yanguya (appointed 16 Mar 2017)

Position

Other
Director's
Allowances Fees

Travel

Total

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

Independent Audit
Committee Member
Independent Audit
Committee Member
Independent Audit
Committee Member

Total

-

12

12

20

20

20

20

52

-

52

Senior Management
Salary

Other
Performance
Allowances Bonus

Travel

TOTAL

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

Name

Position

Mr. XP Lembethe (resigned 24 Mar 2017)

Director: Engineering
Services

1 174

315

-

91

1 580

Ms. TS Masotsha (appointed 1 Nov 2016)

Director: Corporate Services

1 055

262

-

-

1 317

1 624

431

-

-

2 055

1 004

319

-

-

1 323

Mr. TM Nzimande
Ms. PJ Shabalahla (appointed 1 Nov 2016)

Director: Engineering
Operations
Director: Risk, Assurance &
Compliance

R'000

Mr. L Setshedi

Director: Metering

1 541

453

-

111

2 105

Mr. TG Nkgoedi

Director: Special Projects

1 575

416

-

-

1 991

Mr. MJ Smith

Company Secretary

1 348

398

-

93

1 839

9 322

2 594

-

295

12 211

Total
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Stakeholder Engagement Approach
Integrated Communications Strategic Approach and Overview
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The Relationship Management section developed an integrated marketing communications strategy for City
Power – that integrates public relations, marketing and advertising, internal communications, stakeholder engagements and corporate social investment efforts – in order to improve communications with all its stakeholders and to integrate communications throughout all departments and project streams. The strategy involves:


Focused messaging and strategic positioning based on the City’s 2040 growth development strategy and IDP;



Communications alignment to City Power’s vision and mission and the City’s vision;



Consistency in messaging in alignment with the vision and mission to achieve the City’s strategic goals to
match service delivery expectations;



Strategic positioning to ensure that economic and national development targets and milestones on service
delivery are well communicated;



Strategic communications on flagship and CSI programmes;



Addressing all communication challenges with regards to overall communications approach including reviewing of the current RM department policies/lack of policies;



Review of the RM team structure and making recommendations on the departmental structure and skills
required to deliver on the strategy.

Customer Engagement
Stakeholder Management Programmes
Customer Query Resolution at Vorna Valley
A customer query resolution event took place in
Vorna Valey, Midrand. At this event an opportunity
was given to the residents to raise their grievances
regarding metering and accounting queries. The
stakeholder management team co-ordinated with the
internal metering and risk control department to address customer queries. A total of 41 queries were
resolved on the day. The event was well received by
all the community members.

Consumer Relationships
With a view to increasing the level of public awareness and engagement a number of stakeholder engagements were held across the area of supply.
City Power communicates with its customers about products and services relating to meter reading schedules, tariff changes and planned / unplanned maintenance. We regularly make use of print, electronic and
digital platforms to communicate with customers on an ongoing basis.
Educational campaigns were undertaken in Rabie Ridge, Pennyville, Kanana and Alexandra to educate customers on different City Power initiatives. The topics covered included pre-paid meters, illegal connections,
energy efficiency, electricity safety as well as theft and vandalism.
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Under the Blitz Program a direct face to face interaction is established with the
customers by interacting with them in the key public zones of different areas.
The team has been successful in providing responses to customer’s queries
on contractor identification, energy efficiency, and reporting of outages and illegal connections. The Blitz programs have led to an improved level of customer understanding of City Power services and an increasing level of customer engagement. The areas covered under the Blitz Program in the year
included Klipfontein view, Riverlea, and Mayebuyi.
The team undertook to inform members of the public about replacement of all
meters with new prepaid meter technology. The pre-paid meter project affected suburbs of Greenstone, Fleurhof, Pennyville, Naturena, Ennerdale,
Bramley and Westdene areas. Apart from customer engagements, awareness of the project has been created through media releases, social media
platforms and handing out of notification letters informing customers about
pre-meter roll out project. Communication on this project has created a positive impact and this has been visible through increasing level of public participation and acknowledgement to the project.
Another appreciated stakeholder engagement has been with respect to
Streetlights. Engagements with Councillors in areas such Witkoppen, Midrand and Poortview have led to
an increased level of awareness and buy in for the street light project.

Media Coverage and Engagements
The media continues to play an important role in informing and educating customers regarding City Power
projects and service related matters. While the team has engaged with the media on proactive and reactive
news such as planned and unplanned outages, implication of cable thefts in the City, there has also been an
increase in communicating proactive communications to generate positive news aimed at enhancing the
reputation of the company. In the past year, apart from the outages, theft and vandalism reports, the electrification of informal settlements, meter amnesty, alleged contractor corruption, the forensic investigations,
new long-term technology solutions and the launch of the winter plan drove most of the media sentiments .
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Communication on Capital Projects
Lufhereng Substation Unveiling and Exhibition
The City of Joburg together with municipal entities City Power and Joshco hosted a Mayoral event in Lufhereng
on the 27th of July 2016. More than 2000 members of the community attended this event. The Relationship
management department coordinated with political stakeholders and the City of Joburg to ensure the success of
the event. Residents were made aware of the additional services provided by City Power and the benefits of the
new substation.

MMC EISD and FINANCE visit to City Power
City Power’s MD and members of EXCO along with the MMC for Finance and EISD visited the Sebenza and
Kloofendal substations in December 2016. They also visited a house in the Roodepoort area for the installation
of a smart meter as well as visited Kliptown to see illegal connections. The Relationship Management team coordinated efforts to ensure the delegates had a seamless visit.
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Outage communication On Digital Platform Website
The team undertook to communicate planned power interruptions across its digital channels namely the
website and the social media platforms. Within the year, 23 planned outages affecting 24 400 customers
were communicated through electronic screens.
Social Media platforms
City Power’s Twitter account was primarily driven by planned and unplanned outages. The content received
high engagement rates from customers due to residents enquiring about updates on power outages. Power
outage status updates were well received by customers because restoration time updates have proven to be
important to resident.
The City Power twitter account continued to be a vibrant platform where customers were engaged on a
consistent basis. At the end of June 2016 the City Power Twitter account had 257K followers. On average,
the City Power twitter account gained an average of 19,6k followers each month.
In June 2016, City Power started engaging with customers and stakeholders through the Facebook platform.
We are confident that this platform will gain momentum with time, and enable City Power to engage stakeholders with content that aims to be educational and informative.

Company Secretarial Function
The Company Secretary is responsible for providing guidance to the Board collectively and to the Directors individually. The Directors have unlimited access to the Company Secretary who advises the Members, the Board and the
sub-committees regarding their duties and responsibilities.
The Company Secretary in conjunction with the Risk, Assurance and Compliance Group, is responsible for advising
the Board of applicable legislation and regulations and ensuring the Board acts in compliance therewith including
with the Company’s policies and procedures. The Company Secretary is also responsible for the proper administration and good corporate governance of the Board proceedings and all matters relating to the Board.
Risk Management and Internal Controls
Background to Enterprise Risk Management
The City Power Board is ultimately accountable for ensuring that management has designed and implemented
an effective system of enterprise risk management and that risks are managed within the approved risk appetite
and tolerance levels. Moreover, in terms of section 95 (c )(i) of the MFMA, the Accounting Officer of a municipal
entity is responsible for managing the financial administration of the entity, and must for this purpose take all
reasonable steps to ensure that the entity has and maintains effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal controls.
City Power adopted a structured approach to risk management, using consistent approaches to the assessment, treatment, monitoring and reporting of all types of risk, at different levels for activities across the business.
Risk management is becoming embedded into all our business processes to identify the risks and manage them
in a consistent and proactive way.
These risk assessments have been used to identify significant risks that could affect the achievement of the
business plan’s objectives and budgets i.e. the risk of implementation of the corporate, business and/or opera-
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tional plans. Different types of risks were considered and assessed. A risk is significant if the potential consequences could have a material impact on the achievement of a City power’s business plan objectives aligned to
those of the City of Johannesburg.
Risk treatment/mitigation plans were developed and implemented to ensure that strategic, business and operational (organisational) objectives and budgets are met. Each of the strategic risks is allocated to an Exco member to ensure accountability and ownership. Monitoring and review is done at EXCO with Board RAC exercising
oversight as mandated by Board.
Risk Philosophy and Governance
The City Power Board has promoted a ‘risk matured‘culture and set the risk management tone through the approval of the Risk Management Policy and Framework. The Board, in discharging its risk management responsibilities, is supported by the RACC (Risk, Assurance and Compliance Committee), whose main responsibilities
are to ensure that City Power has implemented an effective Risk Management Policy and Risk Management
Plan that will enhance City Power’s ability to achieve its strategic objectives.
Risk Assurance and Compliance (RAC) has been tasked to champion enterprise risk management within city
power. EXCO exercises line of sight on the key risks and analyses them before submissions to Board RAC.
Board RACC provides risk management oversight on the policy, strategy, framework and plan to ensure that a
formal risk assessment is conducted on an annual basis and disclosing results in the annual report.

City Power’s Risk Governance Structure

Risk Governance Structure (CP Risk Management Framework 2015/2016)
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Our Approach
A hybrid approach and methodology to risk management has been adopted by City Power in line with the City of
Johannesburg Risk Framework and also in compliance to the SABS ISO31000 – 2009 guide on risk management.

CP ERM Process: Risk Management Framework (2016/2017

City Power Risk Context as at June 2017 (City Power Business Plan 2016/2017)
The diagram below depicts the environment and risk context under which City Power operates. Some of the issues depicted have been factored in analysing both strategic and operational risks.
Risk Management
“…a process, effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, applied in strategy- setting across the enterprise, designed to identify potential events that may affect the company, and manage risk to be within the risk appetite, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives.” COSO
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Issues which inform the risk context for City Power (2016/2017)

City Power has followed the prescribed ERM methodology in identifying, evaluating and managing its risks. The
positive risk movement has not been significant in the last financial year. This is due to a number of factors,
amongst them the lead time for the appropriate risk treatment plans that deal with the root causes of the risk.
The challenges around funding have also prolonged the risk exposure and some risks were reviewed and revised for relevance based on the changing context and business drivers. The overall risk programme has been
successfully applied to the areas which still require improvement including; regular monitoring and review of the
risk mitigation plans, project risk assessments, as well as risk appetite and tolerance.
City Power seeks to strike a balance between ensuring secure supply of electricity and business sustainability;
whilst complying with the regulative requirements.
City Power’s emerging performance risks are primarily related to the impact of ageing assets and gradually deteriorating asset health. Given the reduced budget, the risk for a gradual performance reversal does exist and
will have to be managed by placing high focus on investment prioritization and efficient utilization of the allocated budget. Focus will also be placed on human performance excellence and improved security risk management.
The work to address all root causes related to technical as well as non-technical losses continues to receive
heightened attention as this has a negative impact on revenue and financial sustainability. One of the key initiatives to address performance and skills capacity is the re-designing of City Power’s operating model and organisational structure.
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Risk Governance Structure (CP Risk Management Framework)
The Board has demonstrated its governance oversight role over the entire system of risk management by monitoring the strategic risk profile, tactical risk profile, mitigation plans, emerging risks, and materialised risks.

The strategic risks that are depicted on Figure 4 and 5 below are currently being managed by the entity. These
are risks that have been approved by Board for inclusion in the 2017/18 business plan. The risk plotted on the
below diagram is a result of the work done by different risk owners and their teams based on recommendations
made by Board Risk and Assurance Committee. Some of the risks were merged to avoid duplication whilst
some became operational risks based on the level of progress made to reduce their criticality or them having
been overstated when they were re-analysed and evaluated by EXCO. The risk mitigation plans are continuously reviewed in line with the changes in the entity’s risk context, progress in mitigation plans implementation
and performance is reported on quarterly:

Heat map: Residual risk (2016/2017)
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Risk and control effectiveness (2016/2017)

Major Strategic Risks (CP Strategic Risk Register 2016/2017)
An annual risk assessment is conducted for both strategic and tactical risks and is aligned with the strategic
planning process of City Power. The risks are documented accordingly and monitored on an on-going basis in
relation to risk mitigation strategies, relevance of existing risks and the identification of additional and
new/emerging risks.
The table below provides an overview of the Strategic Risk profile and mitigation measures implemented:
Risk
1. Inadequate Capital Budget to respond to asset renewal, refurbishment, and expansion needs

Context

Mitigation Action

We are faced with
 Urgently inform Government Authorities of the pending
possible supply interdisaster facing Johannesburg due to the state and age
ruption, impact on cusof the network and to request National Treasury and
tomers, and negative
COJ for urgent assistance
financial implications.
 Frequent condition monitoring of high risk equipment
High failure rates and
 Failed equipment is recycled as a source of spares
 Negotiations with service providers involved
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Risk

Context
possible network collapse may negatively
impact the economy of
Gauteng

Mitigation Action










Identify high risk equipment
Solutions to high risk cable circuits
Develop a comprehensive security strategy
Testing and visual assessment of high risk equipment
Replacement of obsolete equipment in line with available capital budget
Refurbishment of obsolete equipment or major parts
thereof
Demand & Acquisition Plan taking refurbishment
needs into account
Benchmarks costs on major capital projects
Develop contingency plans

2. The reduction of
non-technical
losses to 8% by
June 2018 may
not be realised,
ultimately putting
the financial stability and sustainability of City
Power at risk


We face increased competition
and our ability to compete, protect and drive
revenue growth depends on effectively
managing non-technical losses (such as
cable theft).

Inadequate
management of this,
will result in increased
network outages that
impact customer usage and our reputation

 Investment in network maintenance programmes and
Smart meter project roll out
 Use of protective structures especially in areas which
are deemed to be high risk areas susceptible to energy
theft
 Monitoring of protective structures alarms and events
 Continuous monitoring of output from a number of systems in place to pre-established early warning detection criteria
 Continuous monitoring of alarms and events in a smart
metering environment
 Rehabilitating customers from a culture of non-payment especially in a pre-paid environment
 Normalising illegally connected customers
 Platform of social listening has been introduced to Analyse customer sentiment
 Illegal connections are identified through audits, whistle blowers, system failures from overloads and are
systematically removed
 Data collected from smart meters is used to profile
customers and design tariffs
 Conducting energy balancing by sampling data meters
to give focus area to target so that we can design appropriate solutions
 Regular technical audits will be conducted to improve
the integrity of the load profile and (billing data)

3. Escalation of theft
and vandalism

Escalation of theft and
vandalism of assets
due to organised
crime results in increase in outages,
restoration time and
revenue loss

 Protective structures, security guards at identified “hot
spots”, casting of concrete in trenches
 Replacing stolen copper with aluminium
 All new infrastructure cable is aluminium
 Installed a very basic alarm system with armed response at substations
 Insurance cover in place for some of the equipment –
although this is a reactive control
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Risk

Context

Mitigation Action

.

 Installed alarms on the Transmission pylons
 Anonymous tip-off line for reporting theft, unethical behaviour, meter tampering, corruption
 Develop a comprehensive security strategy
 Explore crime intelligence strategies to protect network
infrastructure against theft and vandalism.
 Increase security officers deployment at substations
and identified hotspots
 Explore new technologies such as aluminium versus
copper
 Increase public awareness including mobilising communities via the Community Policing Forums

4. Unethical business practices resulting in fraud
and corruption
activities

Non-compliance to
legislations, regulations and governance
due to weak implementation of controls
resulting in possible
fines and penalties (financial), and loss of
operating license

 Established governance structures to manage key policies
 Continuous auditing using data analytics tools to produce exception reports of detected errors
 Compliance regulatory universe to be monitored
 Monitor compliance and changes in legislative environment
 Combined audits linked to a combined assurance Plan
 Fraud risk assessment
 Code of conduct and ethics policy approved
 Anti-fraud and corruption policy
 Dedicated whistle blowing hotline and continuous communication on its use and integrity of the process. Focus effort to encourage utilization by staff and community
 Continuous Fraud and corruption campaigns
 Training and awareness campaigns
 Linking of management of risk to KPI's and groups and
individual compacts, and management thereof
 Improve security systems (Access control, motion detection and video surveillance
 Pledge policy and foreign corruption policy (services
charter)
 Rollout of ethics management strategy
 Embed risk culture in organisation

5. Inability of the
business model
to respond to disruptive forces

We are faced with uncertainties in the market as well as change
in consumer behaviour
as a result of economic factors. Insufficient investment in research and develop-

 Current business model has been reviewed towards
becoming an energy company
 Lack of sufficient resources and budget constraints
 Feasibility study has been concluded and will be
shared with all EXCO members (it informs the future
model and options to remain sustainable)
 Embedded generation policy approved by Board
 Continuously improving business integration between
different business units
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Risk

Context

Mitigation Action

ment as well as inade-  Exploring alternative sources of supply
quate funding for fu Fast tracking smart technology sourcing to make the
ture initiatives may furgrid smarter
ther increase this risk
 On-going review of by-laws and policy on how we do
business to accommodate the energy business model
 Continuous trend analysis information strategy and
planning
 Regular Stakeholder engagement
 New business model approved
6. Insufficient capability, capacity
and commitment
to deliver on the
organisational
mandate

Challenges relating to
non-optimal talent
management which
might result to Critical
skills shortage, High
vacancy rate and Escalate cost of outsourced service
amongst other root
causes

 Implementation of the HR Plan that has Productivity,
Performance, Commitment and Compliance as the key
strategic pillars is in place
 Budget allocation for vacancy management approved
by EXCO to enhance current capacity
 Vacancy Management effort reported Quarterly to
Board and City of Johannesburg to monitor efforts to
enhance capacity
 Graduates In-Training Programme in place to enhance
current capacity levels
 Leadership Assessments performed by external service provider as input to Succession Planning
 Skills transfer agreement in place within SCM contracts for internal staff capability building
 Performance management framework in place to drive
alignment of individual, group and company scorecards and identify capability gaps
 Employee Satisfaction Survey conducted to analyse
current employee commitment levels
 Employee Engagements sessions in place to enhance
commitment

Major Strategic Risks (CP Strategic Risk Register 2016/2017)

Risk Finance Performance
There is a fully functional Risk financing/transfer unit that deals with insurable risks including Public Liability
Claims. This unit forms part of the Enterprise wide risk management department to ensure synergies with risk
management and to provide advice in consultation with the City where opportunities may exist for risk financing
options to deal with some of the exposures.
The day-to-day management of claims and queries as well as working with the City during insurance renewal to
ensure a successful underwriting programme are amongst key focus areas.
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Different classes of insurance programmes are applicable to cater for assets, liability and employees:
Insurance Covers

 Assets All Risks
 Property Damage
 Engineering Cover
 Machinery Breakdown

 Group Personal
Accident
 Travel Insurance Cover
 SASRIA

 Electronic Equipment
 Business Interruption
 Contract Works

Total
Premium
 Liability Insurance
 Public Liability

R74m

Asset
Value

R52bn

 Directors & Officers
Liability
 Employment Practices Liability
 Commercial Crime
 Professional Indemnity

City Power Risk Finance Programme (2016/17)

Assets insurance performance
For the current financial year 2016/2017 declared assets are valued at R 52bn replacement cost, and during this
period a total of 302 asset claims were recorded estimated at R 109m. The following four major incidents were
reported:
 Transformer 1 at Florida Glen Substation was burnt
 A transformer had an internal fault at Kloofendaal
 Transformer 1 at the Cleveland substation failed
 A Transformer exploded at CBD Bree Street
A major percentage of losses are as a result of theft and malicious damage. A total of 169 cable theft incidents
were recorded and the process to finalise them is still with the brokers. The replacement cost is estimated at
R9.5m.
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The following provides a cause analysis of asset losses in the past financial year:

Causes - Asset Claims 2016/2017

2%
1%

2%

1%

9%

64%

21%

Accidental Damage

Electrical Breakdown

Explosion

Fire

GPA

Impact

Lightning

Malicious Damage

Riot/ Sasria

Storm

Theft

Figure 4
The cause analysis for asset losses during the last financial year further confirm the already highlighted key
strategic risks around increase in security incidents as well as damage to plant. These pose a serious threat to
network stability in terms of increased possibility for interruption of supply. Going forward data analysis from security, dispatch and insurance about the impact of theft on corresponding outages will enable better and granular risk understanding on higher insurance costs as well as negative impact on customers.
Group Personal Accident
City Power has sadly experienced 28 reported employee injuries and 2 fatalities of which one is an injury on
duty. Group Personal Accident cover constitutes 9% of the total number of claims.
Liability Claims
The total number of Public Liability claims received for the period 2016/2017 is 387, estimated at R20.1m. A total of 124 technical reports are still outstanding to finalise the claims. 9 claims have been lodged which relate to
injury and 6 of the injured were minors who sustained electrical flash burns, estimated at R11.5m.

Internal Audit Function
Constitution of the Internal Audit Function within City Power
The Board is ultimately responsible to oversee the establishment of effective systems of internal control in order
to provide reasonable assurance that the company’s financial and non-financial objectives are achieved. Executing this responsibility includes the establishment of an Internal Audit function in line with the provisions of Municipal
Finance Management Act, 2003 and recommendations of King IV and in accordance with the International Internal
Audit Standards as published by the Institute of Internal Auditors.
Internal control is understood to mean the processes aimed at achieving reasonable assurance about the realisation of the following objectives:



The accomplishment of established objectives and goals for operations and programs;
The economical and efficient use of resources;
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The reliability and integrity of financial and non-financial information;
Compliance with relevant policies, procedures, laws and regulations;
Safeguarding of assets.

The purpose of this charter is to define the role, organisational status, authority, responsibilities and scope of
activities of the Internal Audit function as prescribed by Municipal Finance Management Act, 2004, section 165(1)
and the guidelines of the King III Report on Corporate Governance. It also includes the principles underlying the
realisation of the objectives of the function and the translation thereof.
The internal Audit focus for the 2016/17 financial year was providing timeous and value adding assurance within
the following key business areas:




Revenue and meter management
Network maintenance
Capital Execution

Combined Assurance Approach
Combined Assurance is the integration, coordination, and alignment of risk management and assurance processes within an entity, to optimize and maximize the level of assurance, governance and control oversight over
the risk landscape. If implemented correctly, combined assurance provided by internal and external assurance
providers as well as line management, will be sufficient to satisfy the Audit Committee that significant risk areas
within City Power have been adequately addressed and that suitable controls exist to mitigate and reduce these
risks.
The Risk, Assurance and Compliance Group within City Power (which houses the assurance departments of the
entire organisation) has adopted the combined assurance since the 2015/16 financial year. City Power is the first
MoE within the City of Johannesburg to have an approved combined assurance strategy and implement combined
assurance.
Benefits that have been observed include, reduction of audit fatigue within the business, as well as comprehensive
value adding recommendations that seek to improve not only the general control environment, but compliance,
quality, safety and better process governance in all the audit area that have been reviewed by the combined
assurance team. The combined assurance approach has also helped with the understanding of the effectiveness
of management’s risk mitigation strategies.

Internal Audit are the champions of combined assurance within the entity.

Corporate Ethics and Organisational Integrity
Sections 121(2) (c) of the MFMA, and 18(1) (d) of the Municipal Systems Act (MSA), as applicable to municipal
entities, require that information on matters of governance should be communicated to communities. The provisions stated ensure accountability and governance arrangements are in place. This should, according to Sections 65(1) (a) of the MFMA and 46 of the MSA, be undertaken through the compilation and publication of the
Annual Report. The purpose of such an annual report is to promote accountability to communities for decisions
taken by the Council and matters relating to administrative structures, throughout a financial year.
The Company has a Code of Conduct (‘the Code”) which has been fully endorsed by the Board and applies to all
Directors and employees. The Code is regularly reviewed and updated as necessary to ensure it reflects the
highest standards of behaviour and professionalism.
In summary the Code requires that at all times, all company personnel act with utmost integrity and objectivity
and in compliance with the letter and spirit of both the law and company policies. Failure by employees to act in
terms of the Code results in disciplinary action. The Code is discussed with each new employee as part of his or
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her induction training and all employees are asked to sign an annual declaration confirming their compliance with
the Code. A copy of the Code is available to interested parties upon request. A toll-free anonymous telephone
facility exists for reporting of non-adherence to the Code or ethics-related matters. Furthermore, any breach of
the Code is considered a serious offence and is dealt with accordingly; as a result, this acts as a deterrent. The
directors believe that ethical standards are being met and fully supported by the ethics programme.

Sustainability Report
Safety and Quality
Employee Safety
The SHEQ department is the custodian of Integrated SHEQ Management System based on ISO Standard requirements comprising of: ISO 9001 (Quality Management), 14001 (Environmental Management)
and OHSAS 18001 (Health and Safety Management) Systems. The SHEQ department has proven
track record for continuous improvement regarding Safety, Health, Environment and Quality. The Disabling Injury Frequency (DIFR) has continued to remain below the international threshold of <1. DIFR is
currently at 0.64. During this period under review City Power did not experience any employee fatality.
Public Safety
The risk of theft and vandalism, tempering and illegal connection on the City Power network remains a
greater challenge, resulting in permanent and or partial and temporary disability, sometimes into fatalities. For the period under review, there has been public fatalities =8 (Uncontrollable) recorded and
public incidents = 8(Controllable).
The Public Fatalities: Controllable KPI refers to the number of public fatalities due to electricity related
incidents caused by City Power.
Public Fatalities: Non-controllable KPI refers to the number of public fatalities that are mainly due to
electrocution as a result of various factors such as customer negligence, tampering with electricity installations, attempted theft and vandalism of infrastructure, etc.
Contractor Safety
For this reporting period:
Incidents = 9 and fatalities = 1 (Controllable).
Intervention Measures
 In an endeavour to educate our customers and communities, City Power conducts staff and contractor training and awareness campaigns to ensure greater awareness within communities of
the danger of electricity.
 Joint operations on illegal connections conducted by City Power, Transnet, JMPD forms an integral part of an effective safety campaigns.
 Our integrated program ensures compliance to the relevant legal, regulatory and standard requirement.
 City Power continuously monitors the effectiveness of its safety programs to protect and safeguard against all risks and impact related to its activities.
 City Power is undertaking a major project of electrifying informal settlement areas and this will
reduce network related incidents and other unauthorised activities which may impact negatively
on the business.
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Environmental Management (ISO 14001:2004)
City Power is certified by the South African Bureau of Standards (SABS) in addressing all environmental
management challenges by ensuring that the business remains committed to undertaking its processes in
an environmentally acceptable manner without compromising quality. The system is effectively monitored
and managed.
This activity normally triggers the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) and the Basic Assessment Process (BA) in terms of 2010 Regulations. Based on this section, City Power is in the process of addressing
the non-conformance with the relevant governmental institutions (Gauteng Department of Agriculture and
Rural Development, Water Affairs, CoJ, Environmental Affairs) to rehabilitate the Ferndalespruit and get the
authorisation as stipulated by the National Environmental National Act (NEMA).

Progress:
City Power has submitted the application to the Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development
(APPLICATION TO RECTIFY UNLAWFUL COMMENCEMENT OR CONTINUATION OF LISTED ACTIVITIES IN TERMS OF SECTION 24G OF THE NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT ACT (NO 107
OF 1998). The aim is to get guidance from the department in terms of complying to legislation regarding the
2012/13 activity involving the commissioning of sleeve pipes across the Ferndale water course without applying the environmental impact assessment.
Hazardous Waste Management
City Power has appointed ESKOM ROTEK to assist with the removal and disposal of electrical mercury, sodium and fluorescent lamps in the form of vapor approved boxes to the registered landfill.
This was due to the SABS audit conducted in November 2015 regarding non-conformance which
resulted in an underground water pollution.
Occupational Health (OHSAS 18001:2007)
For the period under review, the Occupational Health Unit focused on the following critical areas:



Reportable Occupational Diseases – One (01) Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease due to
historical exposure was reported to COID Commissioner for this period;
Communicable Diseases: City Power Health Team collaborated with Bonitas and Key Health
medical aid schemes for the 2017 Influenza Vaccination Campaign. The campaign kick-started
in May with FLU Prevention articles prepared by the company Doctor communicated to all employees via various communication strategies aiming to create awareness on the illness. This
was followed by Flu-vaccination clinics conducted at the main Wellness Centres (Reuven and
PPS depots) PPN serviced from the head office. Multivitamin/Vitamin C packs were handed out
to employees during the campaign.

Top 3 Occupational Health (OH) Risks and Mitigation plans as @ June 2017

Risk
1.

2.

Mitigation Action
Delayed Medical Surveillance
Programme 2016/2017 (Compliance) due to staffing challenges
Ineffective Medical Processes
due to staffing challenges

 Facilitation of a process of appointing an Occupational Health Practitioner (Nursing) via HR
 Facilitation of a process of appointing a supplier for the Occupational Medicine Practitioner via SCM
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Risk

Mitigation Action
 To start a procurement process for the appointment of a supplier to
conduct medical surveillance screening tests (including Executive
Medicals)

2. Shortage of medicinal stock and first
aid material at Wellness Centres

 To speed up the process of appointing a supplier for Medicines/
Pharmaceuticals via SCM (appointment process at final stage)
 Continue to utilize other SCM strategies in the interim

3. Delayed GYM processes due staffing
challenges

 Facilitation of the appointment of gym freelancers via SCM (appointment process at final stage
 Facilitation of the appointment of a supplier for the maintenance
and repair of gym equipment

Employee Assistance Program (EAP)


City Power annually commemorate 16 Days of Activism for No Violence Against Women and Children
with the aim of generating an increased level of awareness to City Power employees regarding the incidence of violence and the negative impact it has on these vulnerable groups. The campaign was commemorated on the 29th of November 2016 with unwavering conviction and endeavoured to encourage
collective action against all types of abuse and the prevention thereof. Through this campaign the objective was to alleviate the psycho-social challenges and social pathology experienced by some employees
which may impact negatively on the employee’s performance. Workplace stress is a major occupational
health and safety problem throughout the world. Trauma debriefing and post trauma stress debriefing
(PTSD) was provided to employees mainly from Engineering Operations emanating from work related
incidents. Professional counselling services were provided by internal Employee Assistance Practitioners
and some cases were referrals to external service providers, i.e., psychologists for further management.







Group/departmental and individual bereavement and depression counselling was provided for
employees.
An ongoing effort to minimize financial strain is the key driver for conducting financial management awareness programs as well as providing one-on-one financial counselling for City
Power employees. The objective is to empower employees to make better financial decisions
and be financially healthy. Financially healthy employees are a vital part of a healthy and productive workforce.
Publicized psycho-social health related articles to the business in relation to mental health
and financial matters
Provision of stress management counselling
EAP continuously provides support services to all the departments within the business.
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Employee Wellness
HIV DISEASE MANAGEMENT PROGRAMME
HIV is classified as one of the major health risks and a public health emergency. City Power has a specialised
unit where issues of HIV are dealt with intensely. City Power is also in partnership with different Medical Aid
Schemes, NGOs, AfA, the private / business sector, the government sector and many more.
The scourge of this disease affects all the sectors in life and has demonstrated gross bodily harm; depleting the
systems of the body and causing fatalities if not attended to timeously. It depletes the individual finances, budgets and the economy of the country.
The main AIM of this programme is to increase the quality of life.
HIV DISEASE MANAGEMENT
HIV COUNSELLING & TESTING (HCT)
The test is conducted on demand and during special programmes.
HIV DIAGNOSIS & PATHOLOGICAL ANALYSIS





HIV confirmatory and diagnosis
HIV pathological follow up
HIV co-infections diagnosis
HIV special investigation – e.g. resistant tests

ARV PROVISION




All our diagnosed clients are on ARV therapy or ARV prophylaxis according to the National Strategic
Health Plan
The compliance and adherence rate is at 98%
The scripts are renewed on six month basis unless other wise

HIV CASE MANAGEMENT





We have seventy clients registered on our in-house programme. Some presented with major co-infections including TB and renal failure and are on dialysis
HIV treatment monitoring, evaluation and control is done on monthly basis unless otherwise
Very ill patients are referred to hospitals / clinics and are rehabilitated back to their work posts
Clients are referred to internal and external specialists

CARE AND SUPPORT








Home and hospital visits are done
Very ill and frail client are assisted with nutritional supplements and nutritional meals
Vaccinations is done to all the vulnerable clients
A special sick leave is applied for the clients who are on long sick leave
Medical boarding is facilitated for the clients with poor prognosis
Condoms are distributed to all depots and Reuven
Different counselling sessions are provided for clients- including treatment compliance, bereavement,
trauma, etc.
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SPECIAL or ANNUAL HEALTH PROGRAMMES
City Power adheres to annual calendar events including:
 World Aids Day
 Cancer screening awareness Day
 TB Day
 Reproductive Health, etc.
 Special promotional health talks e.g. HIV Complications
Sustainability Policies and Strategies
City Power’s directive is that all policies need to be reviewed regularly to ensure that they are aligned to
the company strategies.
Material Issues
There were no material issues to be reported.
Sustainability Commitment
City Power’s sustainable practices promote growth, innovation and efficiency. City Power provides solutions. These practices enhance the quality of life of the communities in which with the company operates
and they benefit our customers, our employees, stakeholders and the shareholder.
Economic development
Providing electricity to all residents within the CoJ supply area is an integral part of City Power’s supply
mandate. The electrification of new areas and public lighting programs are critical components of the capital
budget.
In the past year City Power has created 5 410 jobs through the EPWP (Expanded Public Works Programme) utilizing its capital projects. The company is looking at ways to increase the EPWP job creation
to ensure higher levels of sustainability.

Corporate Social Responsibility Report
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is one of the elements codified in terms of King Code, which strictly
speaking applies to the Private Sector. Many of the elements that King Code has introduced to Private Sector
reporting such as Social, Economic and Environmental issues have always been addressed within the Public
Sector (including all spheres of government). There are already reporting requirements (i.t.o the Municipal Systems Act) and processes in place within municipalities with regard to Integrated Development Plans, which take
into account the needs of communities and other stakeholders in the process of municipal planning as an example. Socio-Economic Development (SED), which is an equivalent of CSR within the Public Sector, is regulated
as indicated below. The objective of SED is to facilitate sustainable access to the economy, for designated beneficiaries through monetary and non-monetary contributions.
The current regulatory framework with regard to SED include Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act
No.53 of 2003 (the B-BBEE Act) and B-BBEE Codes of 2007. The B-BBEE Act prescribes that “every organ of
state and public entity must take into account and as far as is reasonable possible, apply any relevant code of
good practice issued in terms of the B-BBEE Act”. As an organ of state City Power’s B-BBEE compliance is
measured through an Adjusted Generic Scorecard (AGS) which applies to specialized enterprises. In terms of
the AGS, one of the elements which City Power has to comply with is SED. The compliance target for SED contributions is currently 1% of Annual Net Profit After Tax. City Power’s SED contributions are covered in the BBBEE Verification Report of 2013.
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The B-BBEE Amendment Act No.46 of 2013 (the Amendment Act) has now introduced reporting obligations for
all spheres of government. In terms of the Amendment Act, B-BBEE compliance has to be reported in Audited
Financial Statements and Annual Reports. The Amendment Act also introduces a number of offences and penalty provisions.
There are no Transformation Charters or Sectoral Codes to speak of where City Power is concerned, in which
case the B-BBEE Codes becomes applicable.
City Power has spent 87% of its Social Responsibility year to date budget of R67 million in the period ending 30
June 2016 and this shows under spending of the planned year to date spend of R8 million.

1
2
3
4
5

Social Responsibility Programmes
Free basic electricity
School benefiting projects/programmes
Bursaries
Learnerships
Street Lights
Total


Actual
Budget
Variance
Variance %
7 176 223
9 497 000
2 320 777
24,44%
400 000
400 000
100,00%
1 848 068
6 720 056
4 871 988
72,50%
2 645 411
2 645 411
0,00%
28 685 343
43 125 000 14 439 657
33,48%
40 355 044

62 387 467

22 032 423

35,32%

Free Basic Electricity and Streetlight cost: This programme is about free electricity which City Power
provides to poor households whose total monthly income does not exceed R3 366. It is a subsidy scheme
in which City Power subsidizes households and the amount of subsidy a household gets is based on the
number of people that have declared a household’s account as their address when they register and their
individual level of poverty. Year to date expenditure is underspent by R2,3 million.
The underspending on Free Basic Electricity (FBE) is because Eskom has recently embarked on a project of installing prepaid meters in some parts of Soweto and they are being switched on in phases. As
soon as all these meters are up and running, the FBE will kick in, resulting in the higher expenditure per
month.



Community Development programme: City Power has a programme through which it helps schools, hospices and communities to put up vegetable gardens. No expenditure was incurred during this quarter
and year to date because of the policy which has not been approved.



Bursaries: City Power has a bursary programme through which City Power finances the education of
deserving and qualifying matriculants to further their tertiary education at Universities and Universities of
Technology. The bursary pays for tuition fees, accommodation, meals, books and transport fees. Interested students have to apply every year in order to be considered if they meet the set requirements.
Year to date budget of R6,7 million budget has been underspent by R4,9 million. The underspending is
because of outstanding costs relating to accommodation, meals and transport of which City Power has
not been invoiced by the respective institutions for the period under review, these costs will be accrued
for accordingly.



Learnerships: City Power has a programme to assist graduates to gain working experience after completion of their studies. City Power pays the learners a stipend so that they can cover their transport cost to
and from work. The programme is well on track as it can be seen by year to date and quarterly expenditure
that is in line with the budget.



Streetlights: City Power installs public lights in main roads, townships, informal settlements and other
areas as part of its capital investment programme. These streetlights installed also help communities to
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fight crime and other sorts of ills which communities experience. This is also seen as a service delivery
tool which protect communities against those who pounce on them when it is dark.
The implementation of the streetlights projects has contributed to the budget being underspent by R12
million and this is as a result of the late start of projects and community issues.
Way Forward
Other areas of Community development programmes to be explored to ensure close working partnership between
City Power and its stakeholders is strengthened
Anti-corruption and Fraud
The Board of City Power has set the ethical tone for the business. To enable this commitment, City Power
has adopted a “Zero Tolerance” stance towards fraud and corruption in line with the CoJ priorities. The anticorruption and fraud policy and the whistle blowing policy are in place, approved by the Board and reviewed
annually. Both policies are meant to enable and encourage employees/contractors and members of the public to report any fraudulent and corrupt activity relating to City Power. These policies work in conjunction with
the various reporting mechanisms in place including the independent dedicated ‘tip off’ anonymous communication channel administered by the City of Johannesburg.
In the period under review, awareness on anticorruption and fraud was in the spotlight through the following
initiatives:






Operation Clean up: an anticorruption and fraud initiative by City Power. This campaign, targeted not only
City Power employees, contractors and customers, but also looked at internal procurement processes
and controls within City Power as high fraud and corruption risk areas.
An anti-fraud and corruption message has been incorporated in the employees’ pay slips.
Consequence Management – Disciplinary actions.
Various ongoing periodic media publications highlighting the prevalence of fraud and corruption and what
measures and successes are being experienced by City Power.
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Focus Area



Response Measures

Meter Reading Operation: Operation MR



Engaging with City Revenue services and collection system



Disconnections and Normalisation of metres



Amnesty Drive



Audit of the Procurement System and Processes



Audit of Costing, Quality & Prices



Monitoring of Service Providers



Resumed the Vetting of senior employees and
high risk officials



Whistleblowing System



Development of Fraud and Corruption prevention policy. To form part of the integration into
the CoJ



Enforcement of Criminal Matters Amendment
Act, 2015 –harsher sentences on all criminal
offences relating to infrastructure



Heightened Security measures and increased
physical patrol of Hot-Spot areas



Internal Payslips Messaging



Ongoing Anti-Fraud and Corruption media
messaging



Investigations and ongoing Consequence Management

Procurement Systems and Processes: Operation
Spotlight on Procurement (Operation SP)

Fraud , Corruption and Theft : Operation Spotlight
on Fraud and Corruption

As at the 1 May 2017 the City Power Investigations unit was absorbed into the City’s Investigations unit, as a
result all investigations related matters are managed at that level.
Successes
Copper Theft




874 cases registered with SAPS and NPA
Accumulated 813 arrests made as at end of June 2016
Successful convictions- 274
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Copper theft summary of cases (June 2017)

Reduction in number of copper theft incidents reported from 2013 to date

Total incidents

3500
3000
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
0

July Augus Septe Octob Nove Dece Janua Febru Marc April
t
mber er mber mber ry
ary
h
Actual 12/13 232 260 239 318 267 223 241 239 295 255

May

June

YTD

247

241

3057

Actual 13/14 224

192

144

223

263

240

291

238

244

236

248

206

2749

Actual 14/15 237

238

207

221

217

194

204

205

213

208

218

146

2508

Actual 15/16 134

135

111

172

150

149

119

116

97

112

115

120

1530

Actual 16/17 106

97

128

108

108

91

108

105

123

113

125

97

1309

ICT
City Power recently undertook a strategic review of ICT and established the vision of City Power being a worldclass digital energy utility. This vision for the future requires an updated ICT strategy and governance framework
which meets the requirements of four key influences, chief of which is City Power’s strategic mandate, complementing the City of Johannesburg’s overarching strategy. In addition, City Power’s governance of ICT needs to
comply with regulatory and statutory obligations, such as the Department of Public Services and Administration
(DPSA) and the South African Local Government Association (SALGA) framework and guidelines on ICT governance respectively. Currently City Power does comply with regulatory and statutory obligations. Lastly, in order to transform into the digital utility of the future, City Power ICT must keep pace with current global trends in
the industry.
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ICT strategy and governance influences (Project Okhela – Target State Review ER2)

Governance Calendar
ICT has implemented governance practice using a schedule of governance meetings including the Planning,
Projects and Operations meetings
ICT Governance Performance
This section of the report provides Performance of ICT for the last quarter of the financial year 2016/17, in relation
to the implementation of the ICT Governance Framework:

ICT Demand
Management
Governance
(Plan)

Highlights






Standardized the process for
developing business cases,
in addition to identifying
where business cases are
outstanding and resolving
were applicable.
Demand Management Process communicated to Top
Management and ICT. Formalised and currently being
followed.
Successfully negotiated a
three-year contract for the
Auditing Solution. Could not
get service provider to sign
the contract. Contract ends
2018.
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Enterprise Architecture Governance (Plan)

Highlights








ICT Programme & Project Management Governance (Build)

The ICT Architecture review
approach to be adopted as a
standard
Tech assessment completed
on the Integration Platform
alignment.
Updated the CP Application
Landscape – Application
health, support and infrastructure
Finalised the CP Security Architecture approach and
docs
Reviewed the Integration deployment diagram and documents
Completed the security architecture mapping.

Highlights
 Completed and submitted final versions of the Plan and
Build policies to the ICT
governance manager,
awaiting signature from Director Engineering Services
 Created a Programme wide
document which maps all
projects and deliverables to
the PMO site in efforts to
clean up the SharePoint
structure
 First Governance monthly
status meeting with ICT
Managers held on 1 of June
2017
 First Demand Management
weekly status meeting with
ICT Managers held
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Change Management Governance Stakeholder Engagement and Solution awareness
campaigns
(Build)

Highlights








Business Intelligence BI Reporting and
Analytics with
associated
Data Warehouse - future
Data Lake
(Build)

ICT Information Security
Awareness Comms on Social Engineering.
SharePoint Migration: Successful decommissioning of
DFS 01 (all necessary
Change Management transitions completed)
Risk and Compliance: Physical Access Security MustKnow-Facts” comms.
Information Security: Kicked
off the Internal Systems Security Awareness Sessions
in collaboration with the ICT
Governance team.
Announcement of Desktop
and Laptop Security competition winners.

Highlights







Loaded May’s data for Domestic and LPU
Developed tables for the
Customer View cube
Developed the Income
Statement Cube and Dashboard for Finance Team
Finalised the backup and recovery procedure for the BI
environment
Developed the Monthly File
Status Dashboard for Domestic and LPU
Go-live of the Metering
dashboard scheduled for
the 7 of April ‘17.
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Enterprise Integration
(Build)

Highlights













Telco MPLS
Core Implementation

Concluded PowerBI Technical Operational Handover
workshop with Microsoft
Premier support
Conclusion from ICT GM
and Metering GM that the
Metering Biztalk environment will not be monitored
by Biztalk360
Installed and configured
Centralized PowerBI Desktop Publishing Management
Installed and configured
Centralized PowerBI Desktop Publishing Management
Collaborated with Enterprise
Architecture Team to produce the City Power ICT Architecture Forum Review
Session for the following demand:
o StreetLight
Operations Reports
(Conceptual)
ICT SLA Reports (Conceptual)
Metering Template and
Data verification(Conceptual)
Finance BPO Reports (Conceptual)
Deploy Bizgai Integration to
Production Integration Middleware Environment(BizTalk)

Highlights
 Decision communicated that
the Umphetho will proceed
with the installation for
ADSS Fordsburg and High
gate installation as
planned, The vendor has
communicated with City
Power ICT Management
(Ajay) that equipment was
delivered and the
installation dates committed
are end of June 2017
 Cisco has completed the
legal paperwork with
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Onsite Security
Support
(Run)

Security Operations Centre –
SOC
(Run)

Westcon, on 26 of May the
only signatories outstanding
were from Westcon process
likely to be concluded on 1
of June 2017. Dates for the
NIP activities to be allocated
to Gijima before Friday
Umphetho has delivered the
aerial equipment and
commissioning commenced
on the 15 of May 2017, the
permit issues encountered
by the contractor and will
possibly be resolved on the
30 of May 2017.

Highlights


Patch & Vulnerability
Management standard; Palo
Alto FW, Cisco FW, SQL
Server and MySQL Config
standards signed off by GMICT.
 Win Server, Server,
Desktop and VMWare
config standards completed,
awaiting signatures.
 InfoSec Desktop and Laptop
Screensaver demo
concluded, and rolled out
 Password Security &
Access Mgmt. Awareness
session held on 25 of Apr
’17
Highlights






Weekly authenticated VM
scans has been conducted
for Windows and UNIX
environment, reports
distributed to the team.
All Qualys Reports have
been uploaded onto a MSS
folder in the ICT
Governance tab on
SharePoint
SIEM team have updated
ManageEngine to the latest
version (11.5).
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Cisco-related vulnerabilities
with severity 4 & 5 have
been remediated.
ManageEngine AMS license
have been successfully
upgraded which has
resolved the issue regarding
logging hosts.

Onsite ICT
Continuity
[Disaster Recovery] Support
(Run)

Highlights
 Data Backup & System
Hardening, Change
Request and Firewall
Security Awareness
sessions to be held on 26 of
Apr ‘17.

SharePoint
Support (Run)

Highlights



Technology Services departmental site completed
Data Governance Departmental site completed
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ICT Governance Performance
This section of the report, provides a summary dashboard of the Governance of ICT Operations.

Overall ICT
Operations
(Run)

Highlights








Successful version upgrades
of ViPR SRM
network monitoring tool from
version 3.6 to
4.0.3 to address
ICT Continuity
Cisco-related
vulnerabilities
with severity 4 &
5 have been remediated.
EMC dispatched an engineer to resolve the storage connection
after there was
a power failure.
ICT has identified the cause
of the backup
failures and is
working on resolving the
issues.
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This section of the report, provides the Policies Status Summary:
ICT Policies
Summary
Status
(Run)

Highlights






ICT Policy Awareness sessions for
ICT managers and
employees completed.
Completed the Plan
and Build policies
and sent them to the
Director Engineering
Service for Recommendation to the
board for approval.
The proposed policies are included as
part of the report
pack

Supply Chain Management and Black Economic Empowerment
On the 1st October 2005, City Power Johannesburg adopted Supply Chain Management systems in compliance with the provisions of the MFMA and the National Treasury: Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations.
The entity fully complies with the provisions of SCM Policy, MFMA, B-BBEE, CIDB, PPPFA and all other
related regulations. The SCM Unit continuously monitors the implementation of SCM policies and provides
quarterly reports to the relevant governing structures. The Supply Chain Policy is amended annually and all
updated National Treasury’s Practice Notes are incorporated into the updated SCM Policy to align the entity
with the best practices of the industry.
The entity has implemented the three–stage bidding processes with separate Bid specification, Bid evaluation
and Bid Adjudication committees. During the financial year 2016/17 the entity made 25 awards to the value
of approximately R1,03 billion in value. Out of the 25 awards, 11 of them went to Black Owned Companies
and 3 went to Black Women Owned companies. All awards in excess of R40 million, are referred to an independent external review panel at the discretion of the Accounting Officer, to review the validity of the entire
Bid process for assurance. All other awards made through Regulation 36 of the MFMA, are continuously
reported to the relevant governing structures for notification. No unsolicited bids were approved by the entity
during this period.
Accreditation of Black Economic Empowerment in Respect to Both the Supplier and Contractor
From the 1st July 2016 the National Treasury is responsible for accreditation of suppliers through its Central
Supplier Database where all suppliers who want to do business with government entities can register their
businesses. Suppliers and contractors are still required to submit BEE certificates to City Power which will
show their contribution levels, thus enabling reporting on BEE spend.
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BEE spend in respect of suppliers and contractors
The YTD spend on 51% Black Owned companies amounted to R2,7bn which is 51.22% of the procurement
spend and is above the set target of 45%. Procurement spend on 30% Black Women Owned companies
amounted to R1bn, which equates to 18.36% of the total procurement spend and is above the set target of 18%.
Status of the Implementation of the COJ Integrated Supply Chain Management Policy
City Power Supply Chain Management Policy is in line with COJ Integrated Supply Chain Management Policy.
Below is the table that indicates the expenditure and BEE representations for the entity during the financial year
2016/17.
Description

Quarter 1

Total spend
Procurement spend
from suppliers that
are 51% black owned
R’000
% Spend
Target
Procurement spend
from suppliers that
are 30% black woman
owned R’000
% Spend
Target

1,799,550,225
1,035,610,087

57.55%
45%
368,201,711

20.46%
18%

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

YTD-Actual

1,387,745,257
890,616,580

1,409,635,496
594,514,025

852,662,128
270,291,720

5,449,593,106
2,791,032,412

64.18%
45%
293,878,056

42.18%
45%
237,892,997

31.70%
45%
100,398,478

51.22%
45%
1,000,371,242

16.88%
18%

11.77%
18%

18.36%
18%

21.18%
18%

SCM section 36 deviations
Emergency replacement of density monitoring system at Orlando switch yard R31 546.
Emergency installation of alarm systems at substations R1 180 094
Emergency procurement of circuit breakers at Roosevelt substation R100 000
Emergency cable maintenance at various substations R2 962 800
Emergency rehabilitation of soil around pole transformer area in Pimville R145 000
Emergency breaker repairs at Kelvin switch yard R98 051 Accrue
Emergency work after an oil leak polluting the environment at Ennerdale R95 000
Emergency procurement of dry ice to clean switchgear board at Anton Hardman substation R30 337
Emergency procurement of pole mounted transformers to replace generators in response to protests R5 026 830
Powertech Transformers procurement without tender process R1 277 804.
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CHAPTER THREE: SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE
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Core Business
City Power strategic direction that is highlighted below is aligned to the GDS 2040 which is aligned to the National Development Plan (NDP) and the Gauteng 2055. The picture below shows the vision, mission, values,
and business operating principles of City Power.

The vision, mission, values, and business operating principles above are aligned to the strategic
priorities and strategy map below.

Strategic Priorities
People
High Performance teams, customer centric, SHEQ

Service
Social transformation, quality of
service, SHEQ

Infrastructure
Network refurbishment & development, asset maintenance,
DSM, alternative energy
sources, infrastructure security,
SHEQ

87 | P a g e

88 | P a g e

Day to day operations (business of today)
The organisation has aligned its performance and day-to-day operations to the CoJ flagship programmes.
The twelve (12) priority areas for the next mayoral term of office as follows:
Strategic Priorities

City Power Contribution

Employment Creation, investment attraction and retention

Employment creation

Informal Economy, SMME and entrepreneurial support

BBBEE and SMME support

Green and Blue Economy

Green Technologies

Transforming Sustainable Human settlement

Security of energy supply

Agriculture and food security
Climate Change and Resource Sustainability

CP indicators
Improve % of Socioeconomic development Index

% Capex Spent,
% Quality of supply
(NRS048),
% Quality of service
(NRS047)
Mega Watts of energy from alternative sources

Smart City and Innovation

Smart grid

Building safer communities

Public lighting

Repositioning Joburg in the Global
Arena

Benchmarking and trend setting in
the energy industry

Financial Sustainability

• Revenue Management,
• Protection and Completeness
• Security of energy supply

• % Meter reading
rate
• % reduction of
loss

Active and Engaged Citizenry

Stakeholder engagement and communication

Improve Customer
Satisfaction index

Good Governance

Enterprise Risk Management &
compliance

Achievement Clean
Audit

Highlights and Achievements
Below are some of the highlights and achievements



Strengthening the leadership capability of the organisation by filling the 4 vacant EXCO positions on
1 November 2016, namely Director: Engineering Operations, Director: Metering, Director: Human
Resources and Director: Risk, Assurance and Compliance (RAC).
The successful hosting of the Employee Recognition Awards on 9 December 2016, whereby City
Power celebrated its employees, interns and learners in appreciation of their contribution to building
a high performance workforce. Recognition was also given to the bursars, prospective retirees and
those employees who passed away.
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Strengthening the engineering competence of the organisation through the appointment of 24 Engineering Graduates-in-Training, in collaboration with the Department of National Treasury for the Road
to ECSA Registration Programme. These individuals commenced duty on 1 January 2017 and programme will end 31 December 2019.
The successful hosting by HR of the “Take a Girl Child to Work Day” that took place on 25 May 2017,
whereby ten learners from different schools in Soweto were invited to experience City Power and its
operations.
Procurement spent from suppliers that are 51% black owned has been exceeded (51.22% achieved
vs 45% target).

City Power successfully executed a number of service delivery initiatives and projects in the 2016/17 financial
year, the five key projects are listed below:




Installation of 2 961 Public Lighting in a number of areas including Fourways, Bluehills, Hurlingham,
Swartkoppies, Kanana Park and Protea South.
Electrification of 4 850 informal settlements in a number of areas including Klipspruit, Vlakfontein,
Thembelihle, Lawley and Tshepisong infills.
City Power created 4 504 job opportunities through the Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP)

Challenges
Meter Reading
Meter reading performance has been showing an increase from 75.00% in July 2016 to 89.60% as at the
end of June 2017. Even though the target of 98% has not been met, the reading performance improvement
show that the Metering Services strategy is producing results. Metering Services is looking at means of fast
tracking to almost 80% in 2018. However, it still is a challenge to meet the target of 98%.

Action Plan to improve Meter Reading Performance:
Meter Reading Performance Forecasting: Metering Services has taken a reflection upon the 4 th quarter and
overall FY 2016/17 performance and targets. Controls and mitigations have been placed across the group in order
to attain the 98% AMR and 96% Manual Meter Reading target while also realizing the Revenue.

Jul-17

1st Quarter

2nd Quarter

Download
Read
Read %
Additional reads
to hit 98%
Total Reads for
92%
Read Target %
Additional reads
to hit 98%
Total Reads for
92%
Read Target%

Manual Domestic
46657
38662
82,86%

Itron / Hexing
101109
93307
92,28%

AMR Technologies
Addax
26
3
11,54%

AMR LPU
39911
36981
92,66%

Manual LPU
777
676
87,00%

Overall
188480
169632
90,00%

1,866

2,505

21

2,902

85

7,364

40,143

95,042

24

39,113

761

175,06

86.04%

94.00%

94.00%

98.00%

97,94%

92.88%

5,114

4,045

45,257

99,554

96.00%

98.00%

0
Converted

39,113

9,25
Converted

184,71

98.00%

98.00%

Above is a forecasting image for the next two quarters of the FY 2017/18 for Meter reading performance per
category. Initiatives and plans to attain the 98% AMR and 96% Manual meter reading target centre on:


Conversion of All Manual Meters to AMR Meters
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Data match on all systems



Fix all AMR Meters not successfully reading

Human Resources


Labour Relations
o

SAMWU Leadership factions

o

LLF (Including collective agreements, i.e. Conditions of Service)



Undefined Organisational culture and low staff morale



High vacancy rate



City Power Leadership vacuum and high number of employees appointed in acting capacity

Financial Performance
The report presents the actual performance of the Company against the budget for the period ending 30 June
2017. The following table reflects the summarised financial performance of the Company for the period under
review. Detailed analysis is included elsewhere in the report. The financial results reflect a profit after tax of
R183 million against a budgeted R1 596 million surplus.

50
Year to date

2017 Year to date actual
R’000

Revenue and other income
Expenditure (excl tax)
Surplus(Deficit)
Capital expenditure

2017 Year to date
budget
R’000

Variance

15 726 508

17 597 380

(1 870 872)

15 762 593
183 133
1 813 872

15 614 073
1 595 826
1 939 397

148 520
(1 412 693)
421 660

Revenue
Description
Service Charges
Other Income
Government
Grants
Fees Earned
Rental Income
Interest Income
Re-connection
fees

Actual
R’000
15 156 259
203 265

Budget
R’000
16 439 448
167 504

Variance
R’000
(1 283 189)
35 761

275 287

812 079

(536 792)

(67)

108 583

13 701
251
76 637

10 512
364
167 473

3 189
(113)
(90 836)

31
(31)
(54)

12 438
247
145 877

1 108

0

1 108

100

% variance
(8)
21

Previous year YTD
R’000
14 233 743
161 764

-

Service Charges
Billing charges for the year are less than budget by R728 million. The units that are sold year-to-date are
211 096 257 kWh more than budget, and the average selling price per unit is less than the budgeted value, and
this contributes immensely to the budget none-attainment.
Sales to Eskom: Sales to Eskom for the year are less than budget by R572 million due to total value of the
Eskom contract being depleted at end January, resulting in no more units sold to Eskom.
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New Connections are more than the budget by R17 million due to the increase in request by customers for new
connections and upgrades. New connections are a non-controllable budget item as the number of new applications or upgrades cannot be determined during the budget process and is based on the prior year requests.
Other Income
Other Income for the year is R36 million more than budget due to the following:


DSM Levy that is R27 million more than the budget for the year, due to the units billed being more than budget.

 Cut off fees exceeds the budget for the year by R41 million due to disconnection of customers.
Government Grants
Grants for the year are less than the budget by R537 million; less grants were received for the year than budgeted.
Interest revenue for the year is less than the budget by R91 million. This is mainly due to the interest on debtors that is less than the budget, and the interest on cash being less as the cash balance was less than the
budgeted cash balance for the period.
Fees earned for the year is more than the budget by R19 million as a result of the increase cut off fees because
of debtors outstanding.
Expenditure (YTD)
A negative variance of less than 1% against the budget was realised for the current period under review.
Description
Bulk Purchases
Employee Related costs
Administration
Depreciation
Finance costs
Lease rentals
Debt Impairment
Repairs and Maintenance
General Expenses

Actual
R’000
10 588 851
962 661
84 859
500 476
431 575
671 991
885 398
812 177
824 605

Budget
R’000
10 623 060
1 045 959
90 859
446 069
470 210
602 012
500 624
923 765
911 545

Variance
R’000
34 179
83 298
6 000
(54 407)
38 635
(69 979)
(384 774)
111 588
109 696

% variance
0,32
8
7
(12)
8
(12)
(77)
12
12

Previous year YTD
R’000
9 779 048
923 822
84 738
404 783
389 608
563 397
387 706
709 143
701 297

Bulk Purchases Eskom & Kelvin
Bulk purchases for the year is R34 million less than the budget, Eskom is less than budget by R204 million as
a result of an increase in units, however the average purchase price is 16,5% lower than budget for the year,
and no expenditure on gas turbines. Kelvin is R162 million more than the budget. Kelvin bulk purchases is
more than the budget due to the ending of the Eskom contract.
Employee Related Costs
Employee Related Costs for the year is R83 million less than the budget due to the following:
 Basic Salaries are less than the budget by R102 million less due vacancies not being filled.
 Leave provision R46 million less than the budget, as a result of staff taking leave to prevent forfeiting
leave days.
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Offset by:
 Overtime for the year exceed the budget by R11 million due to high number of vacancies that results in
employees working overtime.
Salary recoveries of R65 million for the year against capex has not been re-allocated.
Depreciation is more than the budget by R54 million against the YTD budget due to the early capitalization of
assets.
Finance cost is R39 million less than the YTD budget due to loans not received from COJ. Loans are only
bearing interest when payment is received.
Debt Impairment is more than the budget by R385 million. This is due to the payment level that decreased to
94%.
General Expenses are R110 million less than the YTD budget due to the following:


Professional fees and Consultant fees are R39m less for the year. There were less consultants utilized
during the financial year.
 Final readings & cut off fees are R7 million less than the budget for the year due to the problems
experienced with the billing.
 Staff cost is R54 million less than the budget mainly as a result of training, conferences and subsidised
education being underspent.
 Security cost is R24 million less than the budget due to less guards being utilised.
 Eskom free electricity is also R21 million less than the budget due to less units allocated.
 Telecommunication is also R12 million less than the budget due to a saving of R23m on telephone and
data costs. However software licences is overspent by R4 million.
This was been partially offset by:
Fleet costs exceed the budget by R180 million for the YTD due to an increase in additional generators utilised.
Currently there are 83 generators in the field of which 78 are leased.
Repairs & Maintenance is R112 million less than the budget. This is as a result of saving on material of R51
million and Streetlight maintenance of R30m.
Upkeep of yard has also been underspent by R20m, as well as maintenance on software, system integration
and data capture. However, maintenance on buildings exceeds the YTD budget by R27m.
Capital Projects
The originally approved City Power capital budget for the 2016/17 financial year is R1.3 billion and the revised
Capital budget is R1.9 billion.
The Year-to-Date expenditure amounted to R1.8 billion compared to the Year-to-Date budget of R1.9 billion, as
outlined in the table below.
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2016/17 Year-end Capital Expenditure
Project Detail
Project)

(By

Original
Budget for
the year
R'000

El e ctri fi ca ti on
Se
rvi ce
Upgra
diConne
ng of cti ons
El e ctri ca l Ne twork
Bui l di ng
Al te ra ti ons /
Cons tructi on

201,013

Total
Revised
Budget for
the year
R'000
747,079

YTD budget

YTD Actual

YTD Variance

R'000

R'000

R'000

747,079

418,682

328,397

71,001

51,508

51,508

93,071

-41,563

136,000

174,323

174,323

218,991

-44,668

2,143

1,893

1,893

417

1,475

1,413

1,663

1,663

1,685

-23

272

682

682

665

17

39,000

39,000

39,000

35,945

3,055

2,378

1,968

1,968

374

1,594

Pl a nt a nd Ma chi ne ry

3,225

3,225

3,225

55

3,170

Te l e communi ca ti on

5,500

5,500

5,500

5,308

Fi re & Se curi ty

5,000

5,000

5,000

-

148,955

119,182

119,182

133,400

-14,218

15,000

15,000

15,000

5,642

9,358

9,250

9,250

9,250

8,866

384

13,560

13,560

13,560

13,015

545

Compute rs
Offi ce Equi pme nt
Compute
r Softwa
Tool s a nd
Loos e re
Ge a r

Me te rs
Loa d Ma na ge me nt
Sca da
Prote cti on
Furni ture
Publ
i c Lis ghti
Re furbi
h ofng
Bul k
I nfra s tructure
I ns ura nce

TOTAL

192
5,000

570

570

570

284

286

43,125

42,619

42,619

29,416

13,203

695,927

707,375

707,375

797,398

-90,023

-

1,393,331

-

1,939,397

-

1,939,397

50,657

-50,657

1,813,872

125,524
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE DETAILS
Controllable Capex
The expenditure for the year-end on the Controllable capital projects, which are projects funded from COJ
loans, DSM levy, Grant funding, Own cash and Adopt a light funding amounted to R1, 382 billion compared to
the year-end budget of R1, 323 billion which is R58 million above the target. The overspending is mainly attributed to Upgrading of Electrical Networks and Metering projects as a result of accruals and emergency work
that had to be done.
Table on Controllable Capex
( Controllable s )
Proje ct De tail
(By Proje ct)

El e ctri fi ca ti on
Publ i c Li ghti ng
El e ctri ca l
I nfra s tructure
Se rvi ce
Conne cti ons
Powe r Sys te ms
Othe r Ca pe x &
asset
purcha s e s
Re furbi s h of
Bul k
I nfra s tructure
TOTAL

Total
Re vis e d
Budge t for
the ye ar
R'000

YTD Budge t

YTD Actual

YTD Variance

R'000

R'000

R'000

201,013

201,013

130,324

70,689

42,619

42,619

29,418

13,201

298,260

298,260

366,899

-68,639

1,048

1,048

33

1,015

13,560

13,560

13,015

545

59,500

59,500

44,734

14,766

707,375

707,375

797,201

-89,825

1,323,376

1,323,376

1,381,624

-58,248

Non Controllable Capex
The non-controllable capital projects are projects which are funded by public contributions and through insurance. The year-end expenditure amounted to R432 million compared to the full year budget of R616 million. The
underspending is mainly attributed to the late allocation of the DOE funding. However it should be noted that
this budget allocation is not within our control as it is based on contributions from the Public.
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Table on Non – Controllable Capex
(Non - Controllable s )
Proje ct De tail
(By
Proje ct)

El e ctri fi ca ti on
Publ i c Li ghti ng

Total
Re vis e d
Budge t for
the ye ar
R'000

546,066

YTD budge t

YTD Actual

YTD
Variance

R'000

R'000

R'000

546,066

288,358

257,708

0

0

-2

2

El e ctri ca l I nfra s tructure

19,495

19,495

0

19,495

Se rvi ce Conne cti ons

50,460

50,460

92,995

-42,535

0

0

0

0

0

0

198

-198

Towns hi p Re ti cul a ti on
Re furbi s h of Bul k
I nfra s tructure
I ns ura nce
TOTAL

0

0

50,699

-50,699

616,021

616,021

432,248

183,773
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Performance against IDP and City Scorecard
(See Annexure A for detail descriptions of KPI’s)
Within the strategy map, value propositions are linked to key balanced scorecard perspectives. This section outlines these value propositions, key performance areas,
indicators and actual performance for the financial year 2016/17 from financial, customer, internal and learning and growth perspectives.
The report analyses the performance of the entity in terms of the SDBIP scorecard, measuring performance in terms of both the entity’s impact and its financial and
resource management.
Performance that met or exceeded target is highlighted green and below target performance is highlighted in red.

KPI Performance

54%

46%

Achieved
Not achieved
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YTD
IDP Programme

Sustainable Human Settlement

Key Performance Area

KPI

Unit

Number of new
houses electrified

Number

Number of days to
repair street lights

Days

Number of all
Medium Voltage
network outages

Number

Target

4 000

10

2 400

Security of supply: Basic Service
Delivery

Number of all High
Voltage network
outages

Number

128

Actual

4 850

Action Plans to improve performance (reasons for over achievement
of performance)

Target for the years has been exceeded. This has been achieved on projects
such as Thembelihle, Tshepisong, Vlakfontein, Klipstruit and Elias
Motsoaledi.

The industry practice is to undertake bulk replacements of lamps and
luminaires every 3 to 4 years respectively to avoid frequent failures. For at
least the past ten years this practice had not been followed due to budget
constraints.
20
In line with Mayoral priorities for the 2017/18FY the repairs and
maintenance of streetlights is one of the prioritized KPI's where a required
level of focus will be directed in order to improve performance. A project
has been launched together with the MMC to improve the KPI.
Plant out of Service has a negative impact on the operation of the network
since redundancy is lost. The restoration of faulted plant items as the
absolute necessity in order to create redundancy of supply. Specific
3 197
programs were rolled out during the financial year to deal with the worst
performing feeders and restoring faulted plant back to service
The greatest contributors to the outages include equipment failure and
theft and vandalism.
Most Power Transformers were designed with life spans of 30 to 50 years.
In City Power major substation equipment such as Switchgear and Power
Transformers are in excess of 70 years old, long past the expected useful
253
life.
In the short term, programmes are being rolled out to address challenges
however capital investment is necessary to refurbish high risk substations in
the long term.
Total of 2 961 lights have been installed in the streets of Johannesburg
which include following areas:

Green/Blue Economy

Demand side management

Number of new
public lights
installed

Number

Number of Ripple
relays installed

Number

2 000

2 961 Bluehills, President Park, Sunninghill, Olifantsfontein Road, Witkoppen,

Fourways, Hurlingham, Bramley, Poortview, Swartkoppies, Modderfontein,
Thembelihle, Naledi and Kanana Park.
Ripple Relays expansion program has achieved 6225 installation exceeding
5 000

6 225 the FY target of 5000 installations.
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YTD
IDP Programme

Smart City

Financial Resilience and sustainability

Key Performance Area

Smart Grid

KPI

Unit

Target

% Smart meters
installed as per the %
metering policy

65

% of collection
levels

96

%

Revenue Management

% Meter reading
performance

%

98

Actual

Measures taken to improve performance (reasons for over
achievement of performance

The target for Smart Meter installations has been exceeded by 12%. A total
of 136 742 meters have successfully been installed with a percentage of
77
77% against a target of 65%. This is as a result of proper project
management.
Though the target of 96% was not met due to management changes at the
City of Johannesburg Revenue and billing challenges experienced by COJ,
COJ is currently running open billing days where customers can come and
95,86
solve their billing issues. City Power will continue to improve all KPI
affecting collection and engage CoJ on collection initiatives.
Meter reading performance has improved from 87.84% in the 3rd quarter to
89.60%. Exception like inaccessible meters, faulty meters and system
updates contributed to not achieving the set target. Although performance
is still below the set target, it is envisaged that the controls and mitigation
89,60
strategies implemented by Metering Services Group will continue to show
positive results and improved performance on meter reading performance
in the next financial year. An Open Billing day was held on 12 August 2017 to
assist consumers with billing queries.
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YTD
IDP Programme

Transformative business support and
SMME and entrepreneurial support

Good governance through: Business
efficiency and effectiveness

Key Performance Area

Socioeconomic Development

Good governance through: Business
efficiency and effectiveness

KPI

Unit

Target

Actual

Measures taken to improve performance (reasons for over
achievement of performance

Target for the year has been exceeded. Project managers have been
enforcing EPWP reporting. Programme implemented in projects such as
4 504 Sebenza substation, Thembelihle, Roodeport substation,
Tshepisong,Nirvana substation, Nancefield, Cleveland.

Number of jobs
created through
EPWP

Number

4 500

Number of jobs
created through
J@W

Number

1 500

Attainment of
unqualified ISO
accreditation

Audit
report

Unqualified
Audit report

3=
Unqualified
Audit Report

Attainment of
unqualified audit

Audit
report

Unqualified
Audit report

3=
Unqualified
Audit Report

Since there was a communication that jozi@work will be terminated , there
511 has been resistance from contractors to create job opportunities under this

programme.
On the 22 August till the 26th August 2017,the South African Bureau of
Standards (SABS), conducted the Surveillance Audit on the business SHEQ
Management System. The business is currently in the process of migrating
to the 2015 Standard version aligned to ISO 31 000 Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM).
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Assessment of Arrears on municipal taxes and service charges
Assessment of Municipal Taxes and Service Charges owed to the entity
Total Debt
2 375 847

Current

30 Days

1 935 607

142 281

60 Days

Above 90 days

24 024

273 935

Assessment of Directors’ and senior managers’ municipal accounts
Directors’ municipal accounts
Municipality

Municipality account number

Account
status

Director: Finance

City Of Johannesburg

552694502

Current

Ms. T. Masotsha

Director: Human Resources

City of Johannesburg

202414798

Current

Mr. L. Pieterse

Director: Engineering Operations

Ekurhuleni

2100027548

Current

Mr. L.Setshedi

Director: Metering

City Of Johannesburg

553976323

Current

Mr. M Nzimande

Director: Engineering Services

City Of Tshwane

5008371864

Current
Current
Current
(with Query)

Name

Designation

Mr. Tiaan Ehlers

Acting: Managing Director

Mr. Q. Green

Mr. M Smith

Company Secretary

City Of Johannesburg

300949880
301192578

Ms. P. Shabalala

Director: RAC

City Of Johannesburg

505133135

Non-Executive Directors’ municipal accounts
Municipality account number

Account
status

City of Johannesburg

403344565

current

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

205106720

30-days

Dr. H Chewane

Non-Executive Director

(Mpumalanga)

-

-

Mr. D Gibson

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

207466380

current

Mr. D Hunt

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

201083591

current

Mr. T Kgokolo

Non-Executive Director

City of Tshwane

5011133469

current

Ms. N Kahlana-Mcubuse

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

552032900
552032890

90 days

Ms. M Mbonambi

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

552948065

current

Mr. M Mello

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

440885354

30 days

Mr. L Nage

Non-Executive Director

City of Johannesburg

440890548

current

Name

Designation

Ms. L Bethlehem

Chairperson of the Board

Mr. I Bux

Municipality
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Non-Executive Directors’ municipal accounts
Municipality account number

Account
status

City of Johannesburg

553091497

current

Independent Audit Committee
Member

City of Johannesburg

503894065

30 days

Mr. M Padiaychee

Independent Audit Committee
Member

City of Johannesburg

900560012

current

Ms. S Yanguya

Independent Audit Committee
Member

City of Johannesburg

504552120

current

Name

Designation

Mr. M Seopela

Non-Executive Director

Mr. E Ngomane

Municipality

Statement on amounts owed by Government Departments and Public Entities
Account
Number

Name

Balance as 30 June 2017

220093794

ALEXANDRIA POLICE STATION

40 846,75

220057179

ALPHA PRIMARY SCHOOL

220055608

AZARA SECONDARY SCHOOL

221165106

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC TRANSPORT & WORKS

208 449,49

220008118

DEPT OF JUSTICE

185 684,61

221211024

DEPT OF ROADS AND TRANSPORT

627 492,63

221211031

DEPT OF ROADS AND TRANSPORT

2 362 268,07

220003751

DEPT. PUBLIC WORKS & LAND AFFAIRS

220061009

DEPT. HOUSING AND LOCAL GOVT.

220008816

DIE HOOFDIREKTEUR/ STELLA

163 877,00

220022970

DIE STREEKSVERTEENWOORDIGER

276 032,96

220009104

DIE STREEKSVERTEENWOORDIGER

489 711,22

220028410

DIEPKLOOF MILITARY CAMP

1 237 936,64

220028442

DIEPKLOOF PRISON P W D

8 982 100,61

220083813

EAST BANK HIGH SCHOOL

28 937,96

220010501

EDUCATION MODEL C SCHOOLS 87369371

220024991

FOREST HIGH SCHOOL

221192163

GAUTENG PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT

440 297,31

221087497

GAUTENG SHARED SERVICE CENTRE

2 800 673,89

220078676

GEN.CHRISTIAAN DE WET SKOOL

12 574,30

220092208

HILLCREST PRIMARY SCHOOL

69 904,64

220025000

HOERSKOOL DIE FAKKEL

57 961,57

220056954

HOSPITAL HILL POLICE STATION

314 089,25

220069512

JEPPE POLICE STATION

271 817,31

220091003

JHB HOSPITAL

98 323,08

220075925

JHB SECONDARY SCHOOL

12 353,78

464 975,41
7,13

223 356,21
5 599 454,60

1 117 440,33
2 055,14
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Account
Number

Name

Balance as 30 June 2017

221087673

KIASHA PARK PRIMARY

220057355

M.H JOOSUB TECHNICAL

11 534,02

220057193

MODEL PRIMARY SCHOOL

30 376,32

221442060

NATIONAL DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

109 669,04

221019218

NATIONAL DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

296 265,21

221068046

NATIONAL DEPT OF PUBLIC WORKS

56 564,73

220093787

OPENBARE WERKE EN GRONDSAKE

525 047,75

220028700

PHILIP KUSHLICK SCHOOL

220079334

R S A DEPT OF PUBLIC ROADS ATT: STELLA

47 087,28

220078845

R S A OPENBARE WERKE & GRONDSAKE

31 189,29

220042510

R S A PUBLIC WORKS

220035859

R S A PUBLIC WORKS & LAND

9 575,78

220091388

SA DEFENCE QUEENS HIGH

7 703,81

220080386

SA POLICE FLATS (TRIOMF)

70 249,34

221087401

SA.POLICE ELDORADO PARK

51 198,15

220007153

SAP BARRAKKE MAINWEG

841 752,63

220057274

SAP LENASIA

221 266,63

220028435

SAP MOTOR WERKWINKEL

220078806

SAP RADIO STATION

220057041

SAP SAM HANCOCK

4 132,59

220057027

SAP SAM HANCOCK

5 689,30

220057080

SAP SAM HANCOCK STR (PWD)

220933683

SAP STATION BOOYSENS

221092105

SIZWE TROPICAL DISEASE HOSPITAL

534 833,38

220079197

SOPHIATOWN S.A.P.S

163 932,62

220017137

SOUTH RAND HOSPITAL

941 585,01

220055421

SOUTHVIEW SECONDARY SCHOOL

Total

685,14

0,16

4 721 530,07

2 625 726,84
284 380,71

220 819,47
5 783,73

12 488 198,73
50 395 399,62
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Recommendation and Plans for next financial year
The approved budget for the 2017/18 financial year is outlined in the table below:
2017/18
Turnover

15 905 848

Cost of Sales

(10 465 014)

Gross Margin

5 440 834

Gross margin %

34%

Other Income

212 880

Grants & DSM

958 803

Net Operating Income

6 612 517

Operating overheads

(4 203 294)

Employee Related Costs Salaries

(1 106 787)

Gen. exp - Other

(964 247)

Repairs and maintenance

(1 111 052)

Contribution bad debts

(516 598)

Depreciation and amortisation

(504 610)

Operating Profit before interest and taxes

2 409 223

Interest Payable

(464 986)

Interest Receivable

208 169

Profit before taxation

2 152 406

Taxation

(366 320)

Profit after tax

1 786 086

Key Focus Areas for the 2017/18 Financial Year
City Power Priorities for the next 3 to 5 years are:
Proposed 2016/2021 Priorities

CP Response

Promote economic development and attract investment that creates jobs towards
achieving 5% economic growth

Energy efficient infrastructure provision, refurbishment and upgrade
Job creation programmes and employment creation,

Ensure pro-poor development that addresses inequality and provides meaningful redress

Job creation programmes
SMME and BBBEE support programme
Skills development programme
Electrification of informal settlement programme
Energy efficient infrastructure provision, refurbishment, upgrade and
maintenance
Skills development programme
Stakeholder engagement
Fraud and corruption reduction strategy and plan, Integrated risk assurance, Attainment of clean audit, Attainment and maintenance of
ISO accreditation,
Energy efficient infrastructure provision, refurbishment, upgrade and
maintenance
Job creation programmes
Electrification of informal settlement programme
Reduce losses
Streamlining business processes

Create a culture of enhanced service delivery with pride

Create an honest and transparent City that
fights corruption
Create a City that responds to the needs of
residents

Enhance our financial sustainability

104 | P a g e

Proposed 2016/2021 Priorities

CP Response

Use technology that encourages innovation
and efficiency
Preserve our resources for future generations

Roll out of Smart grid
Greenhouse gas reduction and improving energy mix
Energy efficient infrastructure provision, refurbishment, upgrade and
maintenance
Greenhouse gas reduction and improving energy mix

In light of the budget Lekgotla feedback, City Power would be prioritising two value propositions:
 Reducing losses
 Improving quality of supply and service
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CHAPTER FOUR: HUMAN RESOURCES
4.1 Human Resource Management Approach
Human capital is a dynamic, shifting asset because the organisation, its managers and individuals make
choices daily that help create or potentially destroy value. The sum of knowledge, skills, experience and other
relevant work attributes that reside in our workforce drives productivity, performance and achievement of other
goals. It is therefore our organisation’s imperative to develop leaders at all levels who reinforce confidence in
the future and are branded by the distinctiveness of their competence.

Newly Appointed Electricians

When HR practices align with strategies, goals are met and sustained. The strategic intent of HR is to ensure
that the business performs in a stable nurturing environment that is conducive to the achievement of its objectives. HR has developed the HR strategic framework anchored by the HR Value Chain to enable a dynamic
working environment that offers ample opportunity for all to grow and to develop greater skills. Above all, it enables an environment where the organisation buzzes with energy and people come to work anticipating a positive
experience.
The HR Strategy consists of four strategic pillars: Capacity, Capability, Commitment and Compliance.
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4.2 Progress on HR Strategy Implementation
4.2.1 Remuneration and Benefits
The City Power remuneration and rewards framework and decisions are developed in a manner that is consistent with, supports and reinforces the achievement of City Power’s vision and strategy. City Power, at all
times, strives to implement a process of remuneration management that is transparent, conducted in good faith
and in accordance with appropriate levels of confidentiality.
City Power has adopted salary scales that strive to achieve a balance between internal and external equity.
City Power remunerates all employees fairly in terms of their roles within the company. Positions are formally
evaluated to determine their relative weight in relation to other positions within City Power and consequently
their TASK or EXECUVAL grade on which the remuneration is based.
City Power strives to pay its employees an equitable remuneration, capable of attracting, retaining and motivating high quality talent.
A Politically Facilitated Agreement (PFA) was signed between Pikitiup, Samwu and the City of Johannesburg on
9 April 2016 whereby parties agreed to:
 A single key salary scale
 A common job grading system (TASK)
 Salary progression based on tenure and job performance
City Power uses a cost to company pay model. City of Johannesburg, provided the PFA salary scales on a salary plus benefits model. HR is currently in consultation with the City of Johannesburg to develop cost to company PFA scales.
4.2.1.1 Incentive Schemes to Encourage Retention
The most common incentive scheme available that City Power is leveraging on is the Performance Bonus as provided for in Section 6.5.4.2 of the Board approved Remuneration, Benefits and Recognition
Policy.



The performance bonus scheme is linked to the City Power Integrated Performance Management
System
The maximum value of the bonus calculation is capped at 14% of an individual’s annual cost-tocompany

4.2.1.2 Policies Regarding Executive Employment
City Power relies on the Board approved Talent Acquisition and Selection Policy for the employment of
Executives, read in conjunction with the requirements of the Municipal Systems Act - particularly the
Managing Director/CEO position.
4.2.1.3 Employee Benefits
The Company has a Board approved Remuneration, Benefits and Recognition Policy. The policy stipulates which benefit is applicable to which level of employee. These benefits are:
 Retirement Funds
The Company is a participating employer in the various retirement benefit schemes through which
the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality and its entities provide employment benefits to
all their permanent employees through the following four (4) Defined Contribution Funds and one
Defined Benefit Fund:
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(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

E-Joburg Retirement Fund
City Power Retirement Fund
Municipal Gratuity Fund
City of Johannesburg Pension Fund
Municipal Employees Pension Fund

Each of these funds utilises the services of actuaries to give credibility to the information and to assess the levels of funding as required. All these funds have Risk benefits such as Death, Disability
and Funeral for their respective members.
 Medical Aid
City Power employees can belong to any of the following five (5) company-approved medical aids:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Bonitas
Discovery
LA Health
Key Health
(e) SAMWUMED
A new medical aid intermediary / broker has been appointed on a three year contract.
 Other Benefits
(a) Group Life Assurance
(b) Income Protection
(c) Voluntary Cover
(d) Cell Phone Allowance
(e) Data Card Allowance
(f) Farewell Function
(g) Ill-Health (Hospitalization)
(h) Death and Memorial Services
(i) Funeral Service (Transport of employees / Donation)
(j) Health, Recreation and Sport Club Membership
(k) Car Rental for Interim Assistance
(l) Payment for Professional Affiliations
(m) Employee Wellbeing Program Services
(n) Year-end function
4.2.2 Organisational Structure Enhancement
The Company, as at 30 June 2017, had a vacancy rate of 51.75% (only 48.25% of all vacancies are filled). This
equates to 3 592 positions of which 1 733 are filled.
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The staff compliment of 1733 contributes to a total cost of R962 million. The percentage of employee cost vs
operating cost is 24,96%.
The high vacancy rate currently experienced can easily be attributed to the high position establishment and
budget constraints.
June 2014
56.34%

June 2015
52.71%

June 2016
53.55%

June 2017
51.75%

A vacancy rate is an important indicator that should be considered when evaluating the performance of the organisation. The vacancy rate as reported includes unfunded and historical vacant positions which are on the
planned structures but do not have budget attached. According to the Local Government Municipal Systems
Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000), Chapter 2 on Staff Establishment, Paragraph 3: “A municipal council must plan
within the available budgeted funds”.
Though the vacancy rate has reduced marginally by 4.59% in comparison to the last three financial years as
depicted in the table above, this reduction is still far below what is required to bring the vacancy rate to acceptable levels of between 10 to 20%.
The current vacancy rate is overstated with non-value adding positions as well as required numbers to implement the current approved shift system.
A decision was taken to remodel the organization to determine the most suitable operating model and resource
deployment strategy (shift model) that would inform the optimal staff numbers for City Power.
The primary objectives of having the organisation structure review is:




To ensure that the organisation structure design subscribes to good practice design principles and
takes into cognisance business drivers and sizing principles.
To ensure that the operating model of the structure is fully supporting the new strategic direction that
City Power is embarking upon.
That the people deployment strategy and approach (e.g. shift work) supports strategy execution effectively and efficiently.

The Company is now in the process of identifying all critical vacancies.
It must also be noted that the CEO position was filled with effect from 1 October 2017.
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Through the organisation structure review exercise, the City Power Groups’ mandates will be clarified and all
ambiguities that currently prevail will be removed.




For purposes of improving accountability, each Group Executive has to own the Group mandate wholly.
Within the Groups the General Managers are given the responsibility of developing operational plans
that are aligned to and support the Group mandate.
The General Managers are accountable for the departmental performance that is tracked monthly at the
Groups’ respect Management Committees

Subsequent to June 2017, the City Power organisational structure has been reviewed at high level to increase
accountability.
4.2.3 Employment Equity
HR endorses the four key areas of employment equity identified by the Employment Equity Act:





elimination of discrimination in decision-making;
promotion of employee diversity;
reduction of barriers to advancement of the disadvantaged; and
Introduction of measures and procedures for transformation.

City Power fosters effective human resources practices with a view to contributing to the organisation’s goals.
 The staff complement for the reporting period is 1 733 which includes permanent and contract employees.
 The Company’s target for Affirmative Action is 85%. The Company achieved 91.58% for all levels and 83.73%
for Supervisory and above levels.
 The Company’s target for Gender Equity is 26%. The Company achieved 27.64% for all levels and 35.27%
for Supervisory and above levels.
 The Company’s target for People with Disabilities is 2%. 40 employees have voluntarily declared their disability. This amounts to 2.31% of the total workforce. This compares favourably to the Government and
Private Sector figures of 0.6% and 1% respectively according to the DOL report.
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The staff complement as at 30 June 2017 is:
Categories
Top Management
(Executives)
Senior Management
Professionally qualified
and experienced
specialists and midmanagement Managers
and Professionals
Skilled technical and
academically qualified
workers, junior
management, supervisors
and Technicians
Artisans (All types)
Administrative
Semi-skilled and
discretionary decision
making
Elementary positions
Total (Permanent and
Contract)

Male
African Coloured Indian
4

Female
African Coloured Indian

1

5

2

-

1

2

3

20

6

-

168

8

3

59

238

141

4

67

15

1

32

115

32

2

297
54

14
1

3
1

49

363
56

52
94

1
6

437

5

2

444

59

13

146

1 254

13

-

Male
Total

14

1 054

-

White

44

-

10

-

-

White

Female
Total

TOTAL

-

2

7

-

7

27

8

153

391

8

44

159

-

15

53
115

416
171

1

-

1

61

505

42

2

-

44

57

428

16

32

479

1 733

1

-

2

3

4.2.4 Skills Development and Training
Our vision as City Power is to be a world-class energy utility. City Power has a Learning Academy whose mandate is to provide support to the organization, the city, the province and the country through the development,
implementation, evaluation and continuous improvement of a framework that equips our employees, our contractors and interested members of our community with the knowledge, skills and tools thereby building the strategic capabilities required to create a Professional Public Service. It is with this mandate in mind that work is
underway to refine our existing competency model to cater for both the “Business of Today” and the “Business
of Tomorrow”.
Delivery of our mandate as an organisation requires a highly capable technical workforce. This would include:





Chief Engineers, Senior Engineers, Engineers
Chief Technicians, Senior Technicians, Technicians
Electricians and
Team Leaders

The Company has commenced with a process of matching the individual competencies of our technical staff
against the defined competencies. The outcome of the assessment is placement of our staff in one of the three
proficiency levels; i.e. entry level, competent level and advanced level. The entry level is the minimum level of
proficiency required to perform in the position. The competent level is the level of proficiency required to perform
the work. The advanced level refers to the level of proficiency that exceeds expectations for the position and
demonstrates potential to progress to the entry level of the next layer in the career ladder. Given the skills based
nature of the technical jobs, our staff is expected to be at competent level. However, our talent pipeline process
allows us to have trainees/learners who enter our workplace with an entry proficiency level.
All the competency gaps identified through the skills audit and through our performance evaluation process inform
the Company’s broader learning plan, as well as the individual’s personal development plan (PDP).
The broader learning plan also referred to as the learning curriculum forms the basis of the Workplace Skills
Plan(WSP) which is compiled and submitted to the EWSETA annually. The Company’s learning efforts are
tracked and reported through the submission of an Annual Training Plan to the EWSETA.
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4.2.4.1 Work Skills Plan (WSP)
The Workplace Skills Plan for 2016/17 and the Annual Training Report for 2015/16 has been approved by
the EWSETA.
Task

Task Status

Status Comment

Responsibility
WSP/ATR evaluated
Yes
WSP/ATR evaluated WITHOUT problems EWSETA
WSP/ATR approved
Yes
WSP/ATR approved
EWSETA
This entitles you to payment of the Mandatory Grant on condition that your organisations skills development levy is up to date.
The Work Skills Plan for 2017/18 and the Annual Training Report for 2016/17 task update from the
EWSETA is as follows:

Task
Verification Document
approved at EWSETA

Task Status
Yes

Status Comment
Verification Document approved at
EWSETA

Responsibility
EWSETA (Once
submitted by
SDF)
SDF

WSP/ATR Source
Yes
Data Spreadsheet successfully uploaded
Data Spreadsheet Uploaded - WSP/ATR
PDF Available for
download
Sign-off WSP/ATR Re- Yes
Sign-off WSP/ATR Received
EWSETA
ceived
Banking Details ConYes
Banking Details Confirmed
EWSETA
firmed
WSP/ATR evaluated
No
EWSETA
WSP/ATR approved
No
EWSETA
This entitles you to payment of the Mandatory Grant on condition that your organisation’s skills development levy is up to date.

4.2.4.2 Amount spent
During 2016/17, the following amounts were spent:
Period

Quarter 1
Quarter 2
Quarter 3
Quarter 4
TOTAL

Technical,
Non-Technical and
Mandatory Training
R124,943
R838,129
R660,772
R674,867
R2,298,711

Employee
Educational
Assistance
R436,540
R266,897
R3,123,990
R1,610,308
R5,437,735

Bursaries

R592 358
R96 374
R845 165
R18,050
R1,551,947

4.2.4.3 Bursars
As at 30 June 2017, City Power has 35 bursars. A total of 20 bursars are currently studying whilst the remaining 15 have subsequently completed their studies and are now on a Graduate-in-Training programme.
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4.2.5 Performance Management
The table below gives an indication of the annual scores comparison from 2013/2014, 2014/2015 and
2015/2016 financial years

Company and Group Performance
4.5
4
3.5
3
2.5
2
1.5
1
0.5
0

4.00

3.96
3.35

3.29

3.61
3.56

2.94
3.25

3.39
3.18

3.42
3.47

2013/ 2014

3.1
3.24

3.88

3.79

3.40

3.24

3.23

3.74
3.34

2014/ 2015

3.23

3.24

3.22
3.23

3.22

3.62
3.85

3.22
3.23

2015/ 2016

HR is currently in the process of reviewing the entire Performance Management process to:



Simplify the process for Line Management and employees (i.e. template)
Establish Performance Moderation Committees and Performance Rating Appeal Committees within the
various Groups

It is envisaged that the consolidation and reporting of the 2016/17 performance scores will be finalised by midSeptember 2017.
4.2.6 Employee Relations Matters
The HR Strategy takes into account that HR is a highly regulated environment. Consequence management is
effected for employees who are not complying with City Power Conditions of Service as well as related Policies.
During 2016/17, a total of 23 disciplinary cases had been concluded by means of a formal disciplinary process.
Of these 23 finalised cases, a total of 6 cases resulted in a dismissal.
Charges
Disgraceful and unbecoming conduct
Alleged act of fraud corruption and negligence
Absenteeism and Disgraceful and unbecoming conduct
Alleged theft

Not
Guilty
1

Written
Warning

Final Written
Warning

Dismissal

Other

1
1

And EAP
referral

1
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Alleged gross negligence and insubordination
Non-compliance with policies
Non-compliance with SCM policy, Competition Act & Negligence
Insubordination
Fraud and Absenteeism
Misappropriation, disgraceful and unbecoming conduct
Misappropriation, disgraceful and unbecoming conduct
Insubordination and negligence
Non-compliance with SCM policies
Non-compliance with SCM policies, Competition Act & Negligence
Negligence, Dilatory in performance of duty
and disgraceful and unbecoming behaviour
Misappropriation. Disgraceful, unbecoming
and dishonest conduct
Insubordination and negligence

4
1
1
3
1
1
1
1
1
Resignation
1
1
Resignation /
Early Retirement

Theft

1

Precautionary suspensions are regulated in terms of paragraph 19.6.1 of the Disciplinary Code. Precautionary suspensions are imposed as “holding operation” pending forensic investigations by Risk Control and the facilitation of the disciplinary process by the Employee Relations Department. Precautionary suspension is not a
form of disciplinary penalty and/or sanction.
City Power Disciplinary Code is a Collective Agreement as contemplated by Section 23 of the Labour Relations
Act 66 of 1995, as amended. The Code’s paragraph 19.6.1 provides for suspension with full pay. The Code consequently places a legal duty on City Power to pay an employee(s) placed on precautionary suspension. City
Power is thus bound to the Agreement in terms of paying in full an employee(s) placed on precautionary suspension pending forensic investigation and/or sequel formal disciplinary processes as prescribed in the Disciplinary Code.
As at 30 June 2017, the Company had a total of 6 employees on precautionary suspension (with full pay).
Group
Engineering
Services

Finance

RAC

Date of
Suspension
2017/06/08

Reason

Management Comment

Gross Negligence and dereliction of duty

Investigation on-going

Gross Negligence and dereliction of duty

Investigation on-going

2015/04/08

Alleged theft of cable and Fraud and Corruption

Investigation on-going

2016/04/18

Alleged collusion of tendering process

2017/04/26

Case on Review - Labour Court

2017/03/28

Alleged theft

Employee charged. Disciplinary
process on-going
Case on Review pending Labour
Court outcome
Investigation on-going
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4.2.7 Leave & Productivity Matters


The LLF Agreement of 30 May 2013, inter alia, included a two year grace period in which all employees
with accumulated leave were to utilize accumulated leave by 30 June 2015. If employees, for valid reasons which were to be properly motivated, were unable to reduce the level of their accumulated leave,
the encashment thereof would be under exceptional circumstances be permitted. The original grace
period expired on 30 June 2015.



Line managers were continually urged to have leave plans in place for all employees to manage the
normalization of leave balances.



On 31 May 2016 the Board took the following decision:
o
o
o

Group

Operations
Eng. Services
Finance
HR
OMD/COO
Metering
RAC
TOTALS

To allow all employees to have a maximum leave balance of 27.5 days at any point in time
To extend the grace period for the utilization of accumulated leave to 31 December 2016, for
employees with leave balances from 27.5 and up to 40.
To extend the grace period for the utilization of accumulated leave to 30 June 2017, for employees with leave balances from 41 and above.

31 December 2016
Total leave balance
Total leave liability
days
33,852.79
R47,679,643.56
4,417.17
R11,270,721.16
4,687.59
R6,977,316.86
1,302.56
R2,787,503.94
463.33
R1,764,951.97
1,649.49
R3,091,278.33
2,523.83
R4,987,346.98
48,896.76
R78,558,762.80

30 June 2017
Total leave balance
Total leave liability
days
28,569.99
R40,289,678.49
3,937.28
R9,864,573.76
4,508.26
R6,631,433.09
1,365.20
R2,338,931.52
364.41
R1,359,513.51
1,335.32
R2,750,034.62
1,881.24
R3,776,642.78
41,961.71
R67,010,807.77

4.2.8 Workplace Culture and Morale


How Healthy is the City Power Workplace Culture and Employee Morale

Workplace Culture and Employee Morale can be measured using surveys and assessment tools. City of
Johannesburg has recently in the month of May 2017 conducted an Employee Satisfaction Survey for Core
departments and all the Municipal Entities. There were several challenges in this process and the results
have not been released as yet. The biggest challenge was that employees did not want to complete the
surveys and only few employees participated in the process.
City Power HR Management conducted employee engagement sessions in the months of April and May
2017. A total of 14 departments were visited with an objective of gaining input on what is working and what
is not working from the employee perspective. The main target for that round of sessions was employees
who currently work shift. The results will inform the scope of the Workplace Culture and Employee Morale
Programme that will be delivered through a three pronged plan in 2017/18.
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1.

Working on the
Organisation

2.

Working on
Leadership and
Management

3.

Working on the
Empolyees

A detailed roll out plan will be tabled at EXCO with the intention to commence with implementation during
mid-August 2017.
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CHAPTER FIVE: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Annual Financial Statements
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Index
The reports and statements set out below comprise the financial statements presented to the provincial legislature.
Index
Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval
Audit Committee Report
Directors Report
Company Secretary Certification
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Financial Performance
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Statement of Cash Flow
Budget Comparison Statement of Financial Position
Budget Comparison Statement of Financial Performance
Accounting Policies
Notes to the Financial Statements
Abbreviations
COID
CRR
DBSA
GRAP
HDF
IMFO
IPSAS
ME’s
MEC
MFMA
MIG
NPC
SOC

Page
121
122-125
126-130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138-153
154-187

Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases
Capital Replacement Reserve
Development Bank of South Africa
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
Housing Development Fund
Institute of Municipal Finance Officers
International Public Sector Accounting Standards
Municipal Entities
Member of the Executive Council
Municipal Finance Management Act
Municipal Infrastructure Grant
Non Profit Company
State Owned Company
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CHAPTER SIX AUDITOR-GENERAL AUDIT FINDINGS

A possible incident of wasteful expenditure is being investigated. Payment has not been made as yet.

Reconciliation of irregular Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Procurement of good and services without competitive bids and written price

14,727
14

,727 quotations
14,727
14,
727
The expenses were incurred in normal cause of business. The actions does not represent improper conduct
by the employees however it falls within the definition of irregular expenditure as defined by MFMA.
44. Reportable supply chain deviations in terms of regulation 36 (1) (a)
Emergency upgrade of 88kV switchyard R8 053 276.
Emergency procurement
of Hydraulic oil R42 037.
Emergency repairs to Bordeaux and Randburg 6,6kv substations
R786 590. Emergency repairs to transformer at Eikenhof substation
R389 768
Emergency repairs to Khanyisa substation due to fire damage R13
000 000. Emergency procurement of low level stock items R805 845.
Contract for meters awarded R442 885 640.
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Auditor General Report
The Constitution S188 (1) (b) states that the functions of the Auditor-General include the auditing and reporting
on the accounts, financial statements and financial management of all municipalities. MSA section 45 states that
the results of performance measurement must be audited annually by the Auditor-General.
Please refer to the Annual Financial Statements set out in Chapter 5 and the timescale for the audit of these
accounts and the audit of performance and the production of reports on these matters by the Auditor-General as
set out in this Chapter.

2012/13
Financial
Opinion

Audit

Performance Audit
Opinion

Qualified

N/A

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

Unqualified with
emphasis of matters
Qualified

Unqualified with
emphasis of matters
Unqualified

Unqualified with
emphasis of matters
Unqualified

The external audit is conducted once a year by the Auditor General. During the period under review, the Auditor
General indicated that the financial statements were free from material misstatements; that there were no material findings on usefulness and reliability on performance information reported and that the City Power complied
with all key laws and regulations.
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Report of the auditor-general to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature and
the council of the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality on City
Power Johannesburg (SOC) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
1. I have audited the financial statements of City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Limited set out on
pages 117 to 187, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement,
statement of financial position comparison: budget vs actual and statement of financial performance comparison: budget vs actual for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of City Power Johannesburg (SOC) Limited as at 30 June 2017, and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Municipal
Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and the Companies
Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies Act).

Basis for opinion
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.
4. I am independent of the municipal entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Key audit matters
6. Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance
in my audit of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the
financial statements as a whole and in forming my opinion thereon and I do not provide a separate
opinion or conclusion on these matters.
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Key audit matter: Revenue billing
Revenue from service charges for electricity, as disclosed in note 25 in the annual financial statements,
was recognised based on actual meter readings or estimates of consumption. The revenue is recognised by
City Power Johannesburg who is the municipal entity
responsible for billing service charges.
Revenue recognition for electricity service charges
has been identified as a key audit matter due to the
significant judgement applied in calculating the estimations of consumption used and the significant volume of transactions processed and interfaced through
a complex information system, creating a risk that
revenue is incorrectly recognised at entity.

How the matter was addressed in the audit
My procedures included the following:













Understanding and evaluating the flow of information, the information technology (IT) system
and the controls relating to the meter reading
process, the billing process and the systems interface process, which included involving my IT
audit specialists.
Identifying the significant risks associated with
service billing and designing specific procedures
to address the risks identified.
Performing substantive test of detail using computer assisted audit techniques by IT audit specialists on the electricity consumption billed to
identify estimations used, that exceeded the
City’s' by-laws.
Performing substantive tests of detail on a sample basis on the estimation and meter reading
process.
Performing procedures to determine the appropriateness of assumptions made by management
to determine the estimate.
Physical inspection of a sample of meter readings to validate the meter readings captured.
I further assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
respect of revenue by reference to the applicable
accounting standards.

I found that manual and IT controls were designed, however these controls were not adequately implemented and did not operate effectively throughout the year. I found that the
significant judgement made by management in
calculating the estimate was reasonable. My
substantive procedures revealed that the extent
of estimated readings were significant, resulting in adjustment journals in the annual financial statement before year end. I was thereafter
satisfied that the revenue recognised was fairly
stated.
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Emphasis of matters
7. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Material electricity losses
8. As disclosed in notes 37 and 45 to the financial statements, material losses amounting to
R1 970 946 000 (2016: R2 260 114 000) were incurred as a result of electricity distribution losses,
which represent 18,6% (2016: 23.1%) of the total electricity purchased. The total technical losses
amounted to R878 234 000 (2016: R906 280 000). Non- technical losses amounted to
R1 092 712 000 (2016: R1 353 834 000) and were due to theft and bypass of meters, illegal
decalibration of meters, damaged meters and faulty voltage and current transformers, billing errors and customers without meters.

Material uncertainties
9. With reference to note 40 to the financial statements, the municipal entity is the defendant in various lawsuits. The municipal entity is opposing the claims. The outcome of these matters cannot
presently be determined and/or reliably measured; therefore no provision for any liabilities that
may result has been made in the financial statements.

Restatement of corresponding figures
10. As disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2016
have been restated as a result of an error in the financial statements of the municipal entity at,
and for the year ended, 30 June 2017.

Irregular expenditure
11. As disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure to the amount of R212
569 000 was incurred, due to budget overspending on operating expenditure budget.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for financial statements
12. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA and
Companies Act and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
13. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the City
Power Johannesburg (SOC) Limited’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
there is an intention either to liquidate the municipal entity or to cease operations, or there is no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
14. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
15. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in
the annexure to the auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report
Introduction and scope
16. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the
general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to
gather evidence to express assurance.
17. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance planning documents of the municipal entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the planning documents.
My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the
reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

18. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance
with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the municipal entity for the year ended 30 June 2017:

Programmes

Pages in the annual
performance report

Smart city

99

Green/blue economy

98

Sustainable human settlements

98

Transformative business support and SMME and entrepreneurial
support

100

Financial resilience and sustainability

99
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19. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed
the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate
and complete.
20. The material findings in respect of the reliability of the selected programmes are as follows:

Green/blue economy
Number of ripple relays installed
21. The municipal entity did not have an adequate performance management system to maintain records to enable reliable reporting on achievement of targets. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence
could not be provided in some instances. In other cases, the evidence provided did not agree to
the recorded achievements which resulted in a misstatement of the target achievement reported
as the evidence provided indicated that it was 3 891 and not 6 225. I was also unable to confirm
the reported achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether
any further adjustments were required to the reported achievements.

Sustainable human settlements
Number of days to repair streetlights
22. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of 20
days. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work. I was unable to confirm the reported achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any
adjustments were required to the reported achievement of 20 days.
23. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information for the following programmes:


Smart city



Transformative business support and SMME and entrepreneurial support



Financial resilience and sustainability

Other matters
24. I draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets
25. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 97 to 100 for information on the achievement of
planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under and overachievement of a
number of targets. This information should be considered in the context of the material findings on
the reliability of the reported performance information in paragraphs 21 and 22 of this report.
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Adjustment of material misstatements
26. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These
material misstatements were on the reported performance information of smart city, green/blue
economy, sustainable human settlements, transformative business support and SMME and entrepreneurial support and financial resilience and sustainability. As management subsequently only
corrected some of the misstatements, I raised material findings on the usefulness and reliability of
the reported performance information. Those that were not corrected are reported above.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope
27. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof I have a responsibility
to report material findings on the compliance of the municipal entity with specific matters in key
legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
28. The material findings in compliance matters are as follows:

Annual financial statements
29. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of section 122 of the MFMA. Material misstatements of property,
plant and equipment, trade and other receivables, related parties, trade and other payables, revenue and operating leases disclosures identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were subsequently corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified
audit opinion.

Procurement and contract management
30. Some of the goods and services of a transaction value above R200 000 were procured without
inviting competitive bids, as required by Municipal Supply Chain Management (SCM) regulation
19(a). Deviations were approved by the accounting officer even though it was not impractical to
invite competitive bids, in contravention of SCM regulation 36(1).
31. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that construction contracts were
awarded to contractors that were registered with the Construction Industry Development Board
Act,2000 (Act No. 38 of 2000) (CIDB) and qualified for the contract in accordance with section
18(1) of the CIDB Act and CIDB regulations 17 and 25(7A).
32. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that some contracts were awarded in
accordance with the legislative requirements as a result of poor record keeping.
33. The contract performance and monitoring measures and methods were insufficient to ensure effective contract management, in contravention of section 116(2)(c) of the MFMA.
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Expenditure management
34. Money owed by the municipal entity was not always paid within 30 days, as required by section
99(2)(b) of the MFMA.

Consequence management
35. Irregular expenditure incurred by the municipal entity were not investigated to determine if any
person is liable for the expenditure, as required by Municipal budget and reporting regulations
75(1).

Revenue management
36. An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for revenue when
is earned was not in place, as required by section 97(1) (h) of the MFMA.

Other information
37. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report which includes the director’s report, the audit committee’s report and the company secretary’s certificate as required by Companies Act. The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report thereon and those selected programmes presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported on in the auditor’s report.
38. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and
compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
39. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and
the selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
40. If, based on the work I have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Internal control deficiencies
41. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance
information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express
any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal
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control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the annual performance report and the findings
on compliance with legislation included in this report.

Leadership
42. The accounting officer did not exercise adequate oversight responsibility regarding financial and
performance reporting and compliance with laws and regulations as well as related internal controls.

Financial and performance management
43. Senior management did not implement adequate control disciplines over financial and performance reporting. There was a lack of a proper records management system that could support
the information reported in the financial statements and the annual performance report; as a result, material misstatements were identified during the audit process.
44. Senior management did not ensure adequate controls are designed, implemented and monitored
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Other reports
45. I draw attention to the following engagement conducted by various parties that had, or could have,
an impact on the matters reported in the municipal entity’s financial statements, reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters. This report
did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation.
46. An investigation into the contracts for the upgrade of the Eldorado Park and Hopefield substations
regarding SCM irregularities, project management and fraud allegations was undertaken in the
year under review. This investigation was commissioned by the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan
Municipality and is conducted by an independent party. The investigation was still in progress at
the reporting date.

Johannesburg
30 November 2017
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit
1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported performance information for selected programmes and on the municipal entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the auditor’s report, I also:


identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the municipal entity’s internal control.



evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officer.



conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the City power Johannesburg (SOC) Limited ability to continue
as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the
material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of
the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a municipal entity to
cease to continue as a going concern.



evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance
3. I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that I identify during my audit.
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4. I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to have a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
Historical Audit Findings and Remedial Action
2015/2016 Financial year
Management SelfAssessment

Finance
Human Resources
Metering Section
Information Technology
Total AG Findings

Number of
items to be
resolved
24
1
2
3
30

Resolved
22
0
0
3
25

Detail to unresolved

Unresolved In agreement
2
1
2
0
5

22
0
0
3
25

Not in
agreement
0
0
0
0
0
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Analysis of Outstanding Audit Findings
Finding
AOPO- Streetlight turnaround time control
deficiency

Comments to support % completion
Reinforcement of the Procure to Pay process
along with training of resources.

During the audit of predetermined objectives, a
walkthrough test was performed on the performance indicator, streetlight turnaround times.
The turnaround time to resolve streetlight outages begins from the time the query was logged
until the query has been resolved.
Inspected work order number, E1532262 and it
was confirmed that as per the work order the
start date to resolve the query was the 6th of
September 2016 and the end date to resolve the
query was the 9th of September 2016.
The work order was traced to the SAP system
(work order confirmation) and it was confirmed
that the start and completion date of the work
order captured on the system was the 9th of October 2016.
Fixed asset register per substation not provided

Implementation of the Procure to Pay process
will be strengthened as follows:
• Training of administrators
• Review of work orders by Team Leaders and
sign off
• Approval by Field Services Manager

When obtaining accounting evidence on Property Plant and Equipment it was noted some assets are allocated at substations. Management
was unable to provide a fixed asset register per
substation for all substations. The fixed asset
register is not mapped per substation.
High vacancy rate
During the audit of employee related costs we
noted that there is a high vacancy rate within the
entity which is greater than fifty percent of the
total positions. It was also noted at senior management level the vacancy rate is at 20.45%.

Revenue from sale of electricity (Estimated
for longer than 12 months) (COAF B13)
• In contravention of GRAP 9, the bylaws and
the MFMA, the revenue amount for the sale of
electricity could not be confirmed to be reliably
measured.
• It was identified that for certain meters as documented below, there are meters estimated for
longer than 12 months:
1) Meters estimated for longer than 12 months
(730 meters)
2) Actual readings not obtained (R88 848 242)

Resolution of the finding is still on-going.

Management is currently in the process of
sourcing funding for project NAIL (An asset verification project that is aimed at identifying all the
assets of City Power). Once funding has been
acquired, the project will be implemented and
the asset register will be updated accordingly.

A decision was taken to remodel the organization to determine the most suitable operating
model and resource deployment strategy (shift
model) that would inform the optimal staff numbers for City Power. The revised operating
model will guide the redesign of the high level
and low level organization. A service provider
has been appointed to assist HR with this process. A new high-level design was tabled at
Exco on 26/7/2017 and will also be tabled at the
Social, Ethics and HR Committee on 3/8/2017.
The day-to-day operational plans to improve
performance through the Forums (Domestic,
LPU and Prepaid) have been established to address this matter, along with other issues affecting performance.
The process to improve meter read performance
is on-going.
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Finding
3) Changed meters (R1 777 323)
4) Changed meters billed actual readings (R6
686 242)
5) Changed meters invoiced actual readings
(R781 422)
6) Meters removed (R3 039 820)
7) Billed actual readings and invoiced actual
readings (R12 452 271)
Revenue from sale of electricity (Electricity
installations not billed for electricity)
In contravention of GRAP9 and the MFMA, the
revenue amount for sale of electricity could not
be confirmed to be reliably measured.
As part of our audit procedures, CAATS procedures were performed to identify if all active
electricity installations are billed for the financial
year. We identified that for certain installations,
not all installations were billing electricity services for the 2015-16 financial year as at 30
June 2016. Subsequent to issuing the finding,
management has provided evidence that these
installations were indeed billing for the service
or the service was linked to a prepaid meter
where the conventional meter was removed
from SAP.

Comments to support % completion

The day-to-day operational plans to improve
performance through the Forums (Domestic,
LPU and Prepaid) have been established to address this matter, along with other issues affecting performance.
The process to improve meter read performance
and billing issues is on-going.
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Abbreviations/Acronyms
Abbreviation/ Acronym

AGS
AMR
ARV
B-BBEE
BEE
c/kwh
Capex
CIDB
CIPC
COGTA
COJ
CRM
CSR
DIFR
DoE
DPSA
DSM
ECSA
EE
EIA
ELCONOP
EPWP
ERM
EWSETA
EXCO
FBE
GDS
GE
GM
GRAP
GWh
HCT
HIV
HR
HV
IA
ICT
IDP
IFRS
IPMP
ISO

Explanation/ Description

Adjusted Generic Scorecard
Automated Meter Reading
Anti- Retro Viral
Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment
Black Economic Empowerment
cents per kilowatt hours
Capital Expenditure
Central Data Input Bureau
Companies and Intellectual Property Commission
Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
City of Johannesburg
Customer Relationship Management
Corporate Social Responsibility
Disabling Injury Frequency
Department of Energy
Department of Public Services and Administration
Demand Side Management
Engineering Council of South Africa
Employment Equity
Environmental Impact Assessment
Electrician Construction Operator
Expanded Public Works Programme
Enterprise Risk Management
Energy and Water Sector Education and Training
Authority
Executive Committee
Free Basic Electricity
Growth and Development Strategy
Gender Equity
General Manager
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
Giga watt hours
HIV Counselling and Testing
Human Immunodeficiency Virus
Human Resources
High Voltage
Internal Audit
Information Communication Technology
Integrated Development Plan
International Financial Reporting Standards
Integrated Performance Monitoring Policy
Internal Organisation for Standardization
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Abbreviation/ Acronym

IT
JMPD
Joburg
KPI
kWh
LLF
LPU
MD
MEC
MFMA
MIG
MMC
MRQC
MSA
MV
MWh
NEMA
NERSA
NRS
NT
OHSAS
PIP
PL
PPPFA
R&CRM
RAC
Rev
RR
SABS
SAIEE
SALGA
SAP
SCM
SDA
SED
SHEQ
SLA
SOC
SOD
STEP
SWH

Explanation/ Description

Information Technology
Johannesburg Metro Police Department
Johannesburg
Key Performance Indicator
Kilowatt Hours
Local Labour Forum
Large Power User
Managing Director
Member of the Executive Council
Municipal Finance Management Act
Municipal Infrastructure Grant
Member of the Mayoral Committee
Meter Reading Quality Control
Municipal Systems Act
Medium Voltage
Mega Watt hours
National Environmental Management Act
National Energy Regulator of South Africa
National Rationalised Standards
National Treasury
Occupational Health and Safety Audit Series
Priority Implementation Plan
Public Lighting
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
Revenue and Customer Relationship Management
Risk Assurance and Compliance Department
Reverend
Residual Risk
South African Bureau of Standards
South African Institute for Electrical Engineers
South African Local Government Authority
System Application and Production in Data Processing
Supply Chain Management
Service Delivery Agreement
Socio-Economic Development
Safety Health Environment and Quality
Service Level Agreement
State Owned Company
Segregation of Duties
Service Delivery, Transformation, Excellence, Performance
Solar Water Heating
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Abbreviation/ Acronym

TB
VAT
WSP
YTD

Explanation/ Description

Tuberculosis Bacillus
Value Added Tax
Workplace Skills Plan
Year to Date
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Annexure A TECHNICAL DATA SHEET

Indicator

Type of
Indicator (eg
outcome,
output?)

Compact Responsible
Type
Group

Short Description

Total Capex
Spend as a %
Output
targeted capex
spend

%

Total Capex Spend as a
Board
% targeted capex spend

Engineering
Services

Financial resiliance and
SAP & Spreadsheet
sustainability

Internal
customer
satisfaction

Outcome

%

Results of the Internal
Customer Satisfaction
Survey

HR

Active and engaged
employees

Results of Internal
Customer Satisfaction Results as per the satisfaction survey
Survey

None

Non-cumulative.
Results of the
satisfaction survey

Improve
Customer/Stak
Outcome
eholder
Satisfaction

%

Results of Customer
Satisfaction Survey

Metering
Service

Active and engaged
citizenry

CoJ customer and City Results as per the report from COJ
Power information in
an Excel spreadsheet

Subject to the
correctness of
the information
provided by CoJ

Satifaction Survey
Comparison (Done
annually)
non-cumulative

If service
provider contract
expires then we
will be unable to
calculate a
sentiment score

Traditional Media &
Traditiona Media &
Social Media
Social Media: sentiment calculation Yes - Sentiment
Calculated monthly
received monthly
score
non-cumulative

Index
Improve
Outcome
Company
reputation/per
ception

%

Board

Board KPI

Sentiment anlysis
conducted
acrossTraditional media
(Print, Online,
Board
Broadcast) and Social
Media (Weighted 75%
& 25%) respectively

Purpose/Importance

Source Collection of
Data

Unit

Relationship Active and engaged
Management citizenry.

Sentiment score is
received from News
clip for Print,
broadcast and onlinePdf files
Accenture for social
media - Power point
presentation
Excel sheet prepared
internally for
calculating overall
score.

Method of Calculation

Data Limitations Calculation Type

Total Capex Spend divide by the budget Capex Spend X100
None

(This is calcualted by assigning a fixed numerical to the
polarities (positive, neutral, mixed, negative). Each value is
multiplied by the respective percentage of each polarity and
added together to achieve the overall sentiment score. Final
group compact scoring = Overall sentiment score of
traditional mediax weighting (75%) + Overall sentiment score
of social media x weighting (25%)

Cumulative

Desired
Performance

Reporting Cycle

New indicator

Quarterly

No

100% of targeted
capex spent

Every three years

No

Positive
employee
perception

No

75% Customer
satisfaction

Anually

Positive
customer
perception
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Indicator

Type of
Indicator (eg
outcome,
output?)

Achievement of
Outcome
SLA

Number of new
houses
Output
electrified

Compact Responsible
Type
Group

Unit

Short Description

%

Percentage
achievement of Service
Level Agreement key
IDP
Performance Indicators
as agreed with COJ

Purpose/Importance

Source Collection of
Data

Metering
Service

Good Governance and CoJ customer
active engaged
information in an
citizenry
Excel spreadsheet

SpreadsheetSummary and Listing
Commissiong sheets
Work completion
certificates

Number

Number of electrified
IDP
households per annum

Engineering
Services

Transforming
sustainable human
settlements

Number

Number of informal
settlements electrified

IDP

Engineering
Services

Transforming
sustainable human
settlements

SpreadsheetSummary and Listing
Commissiong sheets
Work completion
certificates

Number

Number of public lights
IDP
installed

Engineering
Services

Building safer
communities and
transforming
sustainable human
settlements

SpreadsheetSummary and Listing
Work completion
certificates

EPWP (Number
of jobs created
Outcome
through the
EPWP)

Number

Number of Jobs created
IDP
as per EPWP policy

Engineering
Services

Employment creation,
Spreadsheet
investment attraction
Copies of ID
and retention

Jozi@Work
(Number of
jobs created
through
Jozi@Work)

Number

Number of Jobs created
as per Jozi@Work
IDP
policy

Engineering
Services

Employment creation,
Spreadsheet
investment attraction
Copies of ID
and retention

Number of
informal
settlements
electrified
(Deviation
request)

Output

Number of new
public lights
Output
installed

Outcome

Method of Calculation
Number of KPIs achieved/Total Number of KPIs in SLA x
100%
List the 5 KPI and the target

Total number of households electrified per annum

Number of informal settlements electrified

Desired
Performance

Data Limitations Calculation Type

Reporting Cycle

New indicator

Subject to the
correctness of
the information
provided by CoJ

non-cumulative

Quartely

No

80%
Achievement of
SLA

Cumulative

Quarterly

No

4000 houses
electrified in the
year

Cumulative

Quarterly

New

5 Informal
Settlements

Cumulative

Quarterly

No

2000 public light
installed in the
year

Cumulative

Quarterly

No

4500 job created
through the
EPWP

Cumulative

Quarterly

No

1500 job created
through the
EPWP

The accuracy
depends on the
commissioning
sheets provided
by the
contractors
The accuracy
depends on the
commissioning
sheets provided
by the
contractors

Total number of Public lights installed
None

The accuracy
Number of Jobs created as per EPWP policy (beneficiaries per
depends on the
project )
ID documents
provided by the
contractors
The accuracy
depends on the
Number of Jobs created as per Jozi@Work policy
ID documents
(beneficiaries per project )
provided by the
contractors
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Indicator

Type of
Indicator (eg
outcome,
output?)

Socioeconomic
Development
(50% black
owned
companies;
30% women
Outcome
owned
company;
EPWP and
Jozi@ work
opex and capex
spent)

Mega watts of
energy from
alternative
sources

Outcome

Unit

Index

Short Description

Development of the
community and BBBEE
suppliers

Compact Responsible
Type
Group

Board

Finance for
BBBEE & all
departments
regarding
EPWP and
Jozi@work

Purpose/Importance

Source Collection of
Data

Method of Calculation

The following KPI's are weighted to calculate the index.
30% black women owned companies (25% weighting)
50% black owned companies (25% weighting) Method of
Calculation:1.Exclude payments for one time vendor,ESKOM
Informal economy,
SAP Transaction
and SARS. 1.Multiply the value paid to suppliers by the BEE
SMME and
Code:z_procurement Level of the supplier to get the adjusted procurement spent.
entrepreneurial
spent,Excel
2.If the company is 50% Black owned or 30% women owned
support, employment spreadsheet,Copies of the adjusted spent will allocate to respective columns.
creation
ID's
3.Sum of 50% Black Owned,30%Women owned divided by
the Total Value to get the percentage allocation.

Data Limitations Calculation Type

Reporting Cycle

New indicator

Desired
Performance

Availibility and
correctness of
spreadsheets
Cumulative
from contractors;
SAP master data
not updated

Quarterly

No

55% attainment
of socio
economic
development
index

None

Cumulative

Quarterly

No

879,1 MWh for
alternative
sources of
energy

None

Cumulative

Quarterly

No

Reduction of
986,99
tCO2e/MWh

EPWP (25% weighting) See EPWP calculations,J@W (25%
weighting).See J@W calculation.

MWh

Energy from alternative
sources, apart from
that generated from
Board
coal. Alternative energy
is intended to include
renewable energy.

Engineering
Services

Green economy,
sustainable human
settlements and
Database
climate change and
resource sustainability

The Energy Mix KPI comprises energy from sources that are
renewable as well as those that could be dispatchable. The
self-dispatched ones are for example wind, solar, etc, this
means that they contribute power by "act of nature" like the
sun coming up or the wind blowing, while the dispatchable
ones will contribute to the KPI at the switch of a button
because they can somehow store energy only to discharge it
when needed. So "A" below is appropriate for those that are
dispatchable e.g. a gas fired plant (MTN), LFG to Energy
Project, etc. while "B" for those that are self-dispatched
(specifically solar PV).
A. Energy Mix (MWh) = MW X Loadfactor X Period, where
• MW refers to the installed capacity of the generation,
• Loadfactor is output as a factor of installed capacity (i.e.
100% or less) and
• Period as expressed in hours of generation over the
reporting period
B. Energy Mix (MWh) = MW X 5.5kW per Day X Period,
where
• MW refers to the installed capacity of the PV,

Tons of CO2
emmission
reduced per
mega watt
hour

Outcome

t
CO2e/M
Wh

Total Green House
Gasses Reduction
Contribution - tonnes of
CO2emisions per mega Board
Watt hour

Engineering
Services

Green economy,
sustainable human
settlements and
Database
climate change and
resource sustainability

Green House Gasses Reduction= MWh* Agreed Carbon
Dioxide Emission Factor for Eskom and Kelvin Grid Supply
(1.1227)
= MWh*1.1227
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Type of
Indicator (eg
outcome,
output?)

Indicator
Number of
Ripple relays
installed
Outcome
(Deviation
request from
10000 to 5000)
% Smart
Meters
Ouput
installed as per
the metering
Street lights
repair Turn
around Time

Outcome

Number of all
meduim
Outcome
voltage
outages

Number of all
high voltage
Outcome
outages

Unit

Number

Compact
Short Description
Type
Number of Ripple relays
replaced, reinstated
and installed as an
IDP
interventions towards
mitigating load
shedding

Responsible
Group

Purpose/Importance

Source Collection of
Data

Engineering
Services

Spreadsheet
Blue/ Green economy Job cards
Photos

Desired
Performance

Method of Calculation

Data Limitations Calculation Type

Reporting Cycle

New indicator

Total number of ripple relays replaced, installed and
reinstated

None

Cumulative

Quarterly

No

5000 Ripple
Relays installed

None

Cumulative

Monthly

No

65% meters
installed in the
year

%

Percentage of smart
meters installed for the IDP
period

Metering
Service

Smart City and
Innovation

Spreadsheet based on
SAP ISU

Days

Number of days to
repair faulty street
lights

IDP

Engineering
Operations

Sustainable human
settlements and
building safer
communities

SAP

Total number of days to repair faulty street lights for the
period automated calculation in SAP

None

Cumulative

Monthly

No

12 days to
restore

Number

Total number of
Meduim Voltage (6,6 11 KV) outages

IDP

Engineering
Operations

Transforming
sustainable human
settlements

Forcelink (Count, no
formula)

Total number of Meduim Voltage (6,6 - 11 KV) outages for
the period automated calculation in Forcelink (MV/HV raw
data pulled from Forcelink and filtered accordingly for count
determination)

None

Cumulative

Monthly

No

Number of all
MV outages to
2450

Number

Total number of High
Voltage (22- 275 KV)
outages.
• HV/MV outages (all) –
includes NPR, theft and
IDP
vandalism and any
other external factors
that disrupt the
network causing
outages.

Engineering
Operations

Transforming
sustainable human
settlements

Forcelink (Count, no
formula)

Total number of High Voltage (22- 275 KV) outages for the
period automated calculation in Forcelink MV/HV raw data
pulled from Forcelink and filtered accordingly for count
determination)

None

Cumulative

Monthly

No

Number of all HV
outages 130

Number of Smart Meters installed/ total number of Smart
meters to be installed (176 517) X100
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Indicator

NRS 047
Compliance
(Restoration
time: 1,5
hours;
Restoration
time: 3,5
hours;
Restoration
time: 7,5
hours;
Restoriation
time: 24
hours)

NRS 047
Compliance
Continue

Type of
Indicator (eg
outcome,
output?)

Outcome

Outcome

Compact Responsible
Type
Group

Unit

Short Description

%

National Regulatory
Standard 047: Quality
of Service activities and
the minimum standards
for measuring
Board
the quality-of-service
provided to customers
by electricity as outlined
by NERSA

%

National Regulatory
Standard 047: Quality
of Service activities and
the minimum standards
for measuring
the quality-of-service
provided to customers
by electricity as outlined
by NERSA

Core

Purpose/Importance

Source Collection of
Data
Account queries and
dispute: source is COJ
Spreadsheet

Method of Calculation
Data Limitations Calculation Type
Restoration Times
30% restoration times of outages within 1,5 hours
60% restoration times of outages within 3,5 hours
90% restoration times of outages within 7,5 hours
98% restoration times of outages within 24 hours (Formula
Provision of Vending
= [Customer interruptions within set period / Total customer
Systems and Stations:
interruptions]
SAP & Suprima
100% NRS 047 compliance: Account queries and dispute
System
• Total Number of Account Queries Resolved within 21
Active and engaged
days/Total Number of Customer Account Queries (excluding
Provision of Vending
Subject to the
citizenry, green
rejected)X100
Stations ( 1/5km of
correctness of
economy, sustainable
Cumulative
every customer OR
the information
human settlments and
Provision of supply * Number of customers connected is
1/2000 clients): SAP
provided by CoJ
resource sustainability
compared to the number of applications received for the
& Suprima System
month
provision of qoutation Report is drawn from IW58 on SAP
Notices for planned
* It is then sorted according to SPU done for the month
interruptions:
* An average of days taken to qoute a customer is then used
Notification of work
* A percentage per month is used ( Takes the number of days
documents and
over 10 days target)
Spreadsheet

100% NRS 047 compliance: Provision of Vending Systems
and Stations
Customer complaints
Provision of Vending Stations ( 1/5km of every customer OR
and enquiries: COJ
1/2000 clients)
Spreadsheet
• Target Number of Vending Stations per customer/Target
Number of vending stations X100
Incoming calls
100% NRS 047 compliance: Notices for planned interruptions
answered in 30
• Number of customers to receive notification/ Number of
seconds: COJ
customers that actually received at least 48 hours
Spreadsheet
notificationX100
Lost Call: COJ
100% NRS 047 compliance: Customer complaints and
Spreadsheet
enquiries
Average talk time: COJ
• Total Number of Customer Complaints and Enquires
Spreadsheet
Resolved/Total Number of Customer Compliants and
Enquires (excluding rejected)X100

Subject to the
correctness of
the information
provided by CoJ

Cumulative

Desired
Performance

Reporting Cycle

New indicator

Monthly

No

95% Compliance
with NRS047

Monthly

No

95% Compliance
with NRS047
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Indicator

NRS 047
Compliance
Continue

NRS 048
Compliance

% Collection
levels

% Meter
reading
performance

Type of
Indicator (eg
outcome,
output?)

Unit

Short Description

Compact Responsible
Type
Group

Purpose/Importance

Source Collection of
Data

100% NRS 047 compliance: Incoming calls answered in 30
Customer complaints seconds
and enquiries: COJ
• Number of Calls answered in 30 seconds/ Total Number of
Spreadsheet
CallsX100
• (Percentage answered in 30 seconds= Calls answered in 30
Incoming calls
sec/ Call Volume*100)
answered in 30
100% NRS 047 compliance: Lost Call
seconds: COJ
• Number calls lost/Total number of callsX100
Spreadsheet
100% NRS 047 compliance: Average talk time
Lost Call: COJ
• Actual Average Talk Time/Targeted Average Talk TimeX100
Spreadsheet
The following KPI's are not included:
Average talk time: COJ Meter disconnection TAT
Spreadsheet
Meter reconnection TAT

%

National Regulatory
Standard 047: Quality
of Service activities and
the minimum standards
for measuring
the quality-of-service
provided to customers
by electricity as outlined
by NERSA

Outcome

%

National Regulatory
Standard 048: Quality
of Supply as outlined by
NERSA eg Voltage
Board
characteristics,
compatibility levels,
limits and assessment
methods

Core

Active and engaged
citizenry, green
Quality of supply
economy, sustainable
system
human settlments and
resource sustainability

Output

%

Payment received from
customers as a
IDP
pecentage of electricity
sales for the period

Metering
Service

Excel spreadsheet
Financial Sustainability from Revenue
Management

Output

%

Number of read meters
as % of Bill orders
IDP
received from CoJ

Metering
Service

Financial Sustainability

Outcome

Method of Calculation

Comparitive analysis between QOS System output and
National Standard

the billing for the previous month divide by the cash
collected for the current month

Flat files from CoJ , Number of meters in the upload (read) file divided by the
Device Management Number of meters in the download file
and Meter Reading
Contractors

Desired
Performance

Data Limitations Calculation Type

Reporting Cycle

New indicator

Subject to the
correctness of
the information
provided by CoJ

Non-Cumulative

Monthly

No

95% Compliance
with NRS047

Subject to
correctness of
information,
system,
instrument and
resource
reliability

average per element
Monthly
(cumulative)

No

95% Compliance
with NRS048

none

non-cumulative

Monthly

No

96% Payment
levels

Non Cumulative Subject to the
Reported as is at the
correctness of
end of the Qtr or
Quartely
the information
Year. (Last month of
provided by CoJ
each)

No

98% Meter
reading
performance
(Deviation
request to 95%)
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Indicator

Type of
Indicator (eg
outcome,
output?)

Unit

Short Description

% total Losses

Outcome

%

Billed units as a
percentage of
purchased units

Ratio

Disabling Injury
Frequency Ratio to
measure disabling
injuries and diagnosed
diseases compared to
number of hours
worked in a period

DIFR

Outcome

Compact Responsible
Type
Group

Board

Metering
Service

Board

Risk
Assurance &
Compliance
(RAC)

Attainment of
unqualified ISO Outcome
accreditation

Results of the SABS ISO
ISO Audit
accreditation audit
IDP
report
process

Attainment of
an unqualified Outcome
audit

Audit
report

Results of the Auditor
General auditing
process

Compliance
and Assurance Outcome
Index

Index

Weighting of unqualifed
ISO accreditiation &
Board
Unqualified AG audit
KPIs

IDP

Purpose/Importance

Source Collection of
Data

Method of Calculation
Data Limitations Calculation Type
The variances between purchases and sales less accountable
Subject to the
Excel sheet from
losses (Excluding Free basic electricity, Own use and Street
correctness of
Financial Sustainability Revenue Management
lights)
Cumulative
the information
and COJ
provided by CoJ

Desired
Performance

Reporting Cycle

New indicator

Monthly

No

Reduce total
losses to 19%
(technical & nontechnical)

Good Governance

Data or information is
collected or send to
Safety coordinators
Number of Disabling Injuries + Diagnosed diseases X 200
who are based in all 000 /Total number of man hours worked per year.
the Depots. (Incident
reports)

When incidents
are not reported
timeosly or as
Non -cumulative
per the SHEQ
policy

Quarterly ( Results are
No
annualised )

No incidents or 1< less than zero

Risk
Assurance &
Compliance
(RAC)

Good Governance

An Annual audit
scheduled by SABS
and a report

Results from SABS assessment report

None

Non Cumulative

Annual

No

Unqualified SABS
audit report

Finance

Good Governance

An annual Auditor
General Final Report

Results from AG assessment report

None

Non Cumulative

Annual

No

Unqualified AG
audit report

All (RAC
Finance)

Good Governance

An audit SABS report
Results from SABS assessment report x 50% + Results from
and an annual Auditor
AG assessment report x 50%
General Final Report

None

Non Cumulative

Annual

No

Unqualified audit
reports
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Indicator

Type of
Indicator (eg
outcome,
output?)

Unit

Short Description

Compact
Type

Responsible
Group

Purpose/Importance

Source Collection of
Data

Method of Calculation

Data Limitations Calculation Type

Reporting Cycle

New indicator

Desired
Performance

The following KPI's are weighted to calculate the index.

High
Performance
Team Index

Outcome

Index

A diverse team that is
focussed on achieving
results

Board

All (HR)

* Job Vacancy rate SAP HR &
Spreadsheets
* Performance
scores Spreadsheet
* PDP Spreadsheet
* Youth
Development Employment creation,
Spreadsheet
Resource sustainability
* AA - SAP HR
&
Spreadsheet
* GE - SAP HR &
Spreadsheet
* PWD - Formal
declaration forms
submitted by affected
employees - info
captured on SAP HR

* Job vacancy rate(20% weighting) - Filled positions as a % of
total positions. Calculation - Filled positions (active staff) as
a % of total positions (Filled positions + vacant positions)

* Job vacancy rate Non-cummulative monthly

* Performance scores submitted (20% weighting) - % of
eligible individuals who have been through the PM process
and who have submitted scores. Calculation - % of eligible
employees who have been through the PM process and
who have submitted scores

* Performance scores
submitted - Noncummulative - twice
per year in line with
performance

* PDP (20% weighting) - No of staff trained against the skills
plan. Calculation - Number of staff trained against the skills
plan

* PDP - Cummulative

* Youth development (10% weighting) - No of peopled
developed through youth development against the planned
youth development (includes mandatory, training, skills
transfer and subsidized education). Calculation - Number of
youth (under 35) developed through youth development
against the planned youth development
* AA (10% weighting) - No of affirmative action employees.
Calculation - Number of employees minus white males as a
% of the total number of employees
* GE (10% weighting) - No of gender equity employees.
Calculation - Number of female employees as a % of the
total number of employees

* PWD (10% weighting) - No of people with disabilities.
Calculation - Number of employees who have voluntary
declared their disabilities as a % of the total number of
employees
the following KPI's are not included due to weighting being
zero(0)

Subject to the
correctness of
the information
provided by the
different HR
Divisions and
Payroll Dept

* Youth development
No

78% attainment
of the High
Performance
Team Index

* AA- Noncummulative monthly
* GE - Noncummulative monthly

* PWD - Noncummulative monthly

Turnaround time
Satisfaction survey rating

212 | P a g e

Appendix B: Audit Committee Recommendations
Date of Audit
Committee
meeting

Committee
Meeting

Audit Committee Recommendations
Committee Recommendations during 2016/2017

Recommendations adopted
(enter Yes)

If not adopted
(provide explanation)

18 Aug 2016

18 Aug 2016

18 Aug 2016

18 Aug 2016

18 Aug 2016

29 Aug 2016

29 Aug 2016

29 Aug 2016

24 Nov 2016

Ordinary

STATUS OF PAYMENT OF AG’S
FEES FOR 2014/2015 AUDIT

Yes

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED that the AG Fees for the 2014/2015 audit be APPROVED for payment and submitted to Board for
NOTING.
NERSA APPROVED TARIFFS FOR 2016/2017

Yes

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that the final NERSA
approved Tariffs of an average increase of 6.91% for
2016/2017 be submitted to Board for ADOPTION and for
APPROVAL of inclusion into the Business Plan.
TAX COMPLIANCE STATUS OF THE COMPANY

Yes

Ordinary

Ordinary

Special

Special

Special

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED that the status of the Company’s tax
compliance report be NOTED and submitted to Board for
NOTING.
INTERNAL AUDIT’S COMBINED ASSURANCE
4-YEAR PLAN – FY 2016/2017 TO 2019/2020 AND
1-YEAR OPERATIONAL PLAN – FY 2016/2017
It was RESOLVED that the Combined Assurance 4-Year
Plan for the Financial Years 2016/2017 to 2019/2010 and
the 1-Year Operational Plan for 2016/2017 be APPROVED and be submitted to Board for NOTING.
HIGH VALUE TENDER REVIEW
It was RESOLVED that a one page report on the mitigation
processes put in place in the procurement process be submitted to Board for NOTING.
AG’S AUDIT STRATEGY PLAN & FEES
FOR 2015/2016 AUDIT
It was RESOLVED that the Auditor-General’s Strategy
Plan and Fees for the 2015/2016 audit be APPROVED and
that it be submitted to Board for NOTING.
DRAFT ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR 2015/2016 FY
It was RESOLVED that the Draft Annual Financial Statement for the 2015/2016 Financial Year be RECOMMENDED to Board for APPROVAL for submission to the
AG and the Shareholder.
DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2015/2016
It was RESOLVED that the Draft Annual Report for the
2015/2016 Financial Year be RECOMMENDED to Board
for APPROVAL for submission to the AG and the Shareholder.
THE AG’s AUDIT REPORT ON THE AUDIT OUTCOMES FOR THE 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Date of Audit
Committee
meeting

Committee
Meeting

Audit Committee Recommendations
Committee Recommendations during 2016/2017

Recommendations adopted
(enter Yes)

If not adopted
(provide explanation)

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED that, subject to the changes as discussed, the Auditor-General’s Report on the audit outcomes for the 2015/2016 Financial Year be NOTED and
RECOMMENDED to Board for NOTING.
AG’S MANAGEMENT REPORT (30 JUN 2016)
It was RESOLVED that, subject to the amendments as discussed, the Auditor-General’s Management Report for the
Year ended 30 June 2016 be NOTED and RECOMMENDED to Board for NOTING.
AUDITED ANNUAL INTEGRATED REPORT FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUN 2016
It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the audited Annual
Integrated Report for the Year ended 30 June 2016, subject to finalisation, to Board for APPROVAL.
AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUN 2016
It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the audited Annual
Financial Statements for the Year ended 30 June 2016 to
the Board for APPROVAL and for APPROVAL of its
inclusion into the 2015/2016 Annual Integrated Report.
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (2015/2016)
It was RESOLVED that the Audit Committee Report
2015/2016 be APPROVED for inclusion in the Annual
Integrated Report for the 2015/2016 Financial Year.
STATUS OF TAX COMPLIANCE OF THE
COMPANY
It was RESOLVED that the status of the Company’s tax
compliance be NOTED and that a report be submitted to
Board for CONSIDERATION.
MFMA CIRCULAR 82 – COST CUTTING
MEASURES

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED that the Cost Cutting Measures implemented as required by the MFMA Circular 82 be NOTED
and submitted to Board for NOTING.
MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW 2016/2017

Yes

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the draft Revised
Mid-Year Budget for 2016/2017 to Board for NOTING and
inclusion into the Business Plan of 2016/2017 and for
Board to MANDATE the Quarterly Review Committee to
APPROVE the Revised Mid-Year Budget for submission to
the Shareholder, at its meeting to be held in January 2017
on behalf of the Board.
DRAFT 2017/2018 BUDGET

Yes

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the draft 2017/2018
Budget to Board for NOTING and inclusion into the Business Plan of 2016/2017 and for Board to MANDATE the
Quarterly Review Committee to approve the submission of
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Date of Audit
Committee
meeting

Committee
Meeting

Audit Committee Recommendations
Committee Recommendations during 2016/2017

Recommendations adopted
(enter Yes)

If not adopted
(provide explanation)

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

24 Nov 2016

06 Mar 2017

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

the draft 2017/2018 Budget to the Shareholder at its meeting to be held in January 2017 on behalf of the Board.
REVISED WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY –
FOR NOTING OF AMENDMENTS
It was RESOLVED that the amendments to the Whistle
Blowing Policy be NOTED and submitted to Board for NOTING.
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2016/2017
It was RESOLVED that the revised Internal Audit Charter
for 2016/2017 be APPROVED and submitted to Board for
NOTING.
REVIEW OF TERMS OF REFERENCE
OF THE COMMITTEE

Yes

Yes

Yes

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the reviewed Terms
of Reference of the Audit Committee to the Board for APPROVAL, subject to the changes being effected.
AG’S FRAUD QUESTIONNAIRE (RATIFICATION)

Yes

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED that the round robin approval of submission of the completed Fraud Questionnaire to the AuditorGeneral be NOTED and submitted to the Board for RATIFICATION.
BOARD ASSESSMENT 2015/2016

Yes

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMENDED that Board NOTE
the performance assessments made by Board Members
and Audit Committee Members for the 2015/2016 financial
year.
DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN 2017-2021 & TECHNICAL
BUDGET STEERING COMMITTEE PRESENTATION
FRAMEWORK 2017/2018
It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the draft 2017/2018
Business Plan and Budget Steering Committee Presentation to Board for NOTING and for Board to MANDATE the
Quarterly Review Committee to approve the proposed
Business Plan for submission to the Shareholder at its January 2017 meeting on behalf of the Board.
PERFORMANCE BONUS PAYMENT
It was RESOLVED that the Performance Bonus Payment
report be submitted via Round Robin for recommendation
by the Committee before submission to the Board on 30
November 2016 for approval.
STATUS OF TAX COMPLIANCE OF
THE COMPANY

Yes

Yes

Yes

It was RESOLVED that the status of Tax compliance by
the Company be NOTED and be submitted to Board for
NOTING.
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Date of Audit
Committee
meeting

Committee
Meeting

Audit Committee Recommendations
Committee Recommendations during 2016/2017

Recommendations adopted
(enter Yes)

If not adopted
(provide explanation)

06 Mar 2017

06 Mar 2017

06 Mar 2017

15 May 2017

15 May 2017

15 May 2017

15 May 2017

15 May 2017

15 May 2017

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

CURRENT POSITION WITH REGARD TO 2016/2017
BUSINESS PLAN AND ADJUSTMENT OPERATING
AND CAPITAL BUDGET
It was RESOLVED that the report be NOTED and submitted to Board for NOTING.
INVESTIGATIONS REPORT
It was RESOLVED that the LPU Review be formally put on
hold by City Power until after the Sizwe Ntsaluba Gobodo
Investigation.
UPDATE ON BUSINESS PLAN &
BUDGET 2017/2018
It was RESOLVED that the update on the Budget and
Business Plan 2017/2018 be NOTED and submitted to
Board for NOTING.
STATUS OF TAX COMPLIANCE OF THE COMPANY
It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND that the status of the
Company’s tax compliance be NOTED and the report be
submitted to the Board for NOTING.
2016/2017 ADJUSTMENT TO OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET AND BUSINESS PLAN

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the 2016/2017 adjustment to Operating and Capital Budget, with concerns,
to Board for APPROVAL and amendment to the
2016/2017 Business Plan in line with the budget adjustments.
DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN & BUDGET 2017/2018

Yes

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the 2017/2018
Budget to Board for APPROVAL with serious concerns regarding the risks of being unable to achieve the revenue
and together with serious concerns regarding the possible
negative impact of the CAPEX cuts and for inclusion into
the 2017/2018 Business Plan.
CAPITAL BUDGET REALLOCATION 2017/2018

Yes

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the Capital Budget
Reallocation for 2017-2018 to Board for APPROVAL and
for inclusion into the Business Plan.
TARIFF INCREASE PROPOSAL FOR 2017/2018 FY

Yes

Ordinary

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the Tariff Increase
Proposal for the 2017/2018 Financial Year as contained in
the report to Board for APPROVAL.
INVESTIGATIONS – CONFIDENTIAL REPORT

Yes

It was RESOLVED to RECOMMEND the report to Board
for NOTING.
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